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1.A A A A Financial Statements.Page 4JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESCONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS(In thousands, except share information)December 27,
2024September 27, 2024(Unaudited)ASSETSCurrent Assets:Cash and cash equivalents$1,299,657A $1,144,795A Receivables and contract assets2,912,513A 2,845,452A Prepaid expenses
and other136,855A 155,865A Investment in equity securities597,939A 749,468A Total current assetsd,946,964A 4,895,580A Property, Equipment and Improvements,

net293,148A 315,630A Other Noncurrent Assets:Goodwill4,683,356A 4,788,181A Intangibles, net795,285A 874,894A Deferred income tax assets207,980A 195,406A Operating lease right-
of-use assets287,661A 303,856A Miscellaneous396,455A 385,458A Total other noncurrent assets6,370,737A 6,547,795A $11,610,849A $11,759,005A LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERSA€™ EQUITYCurrent Liabilities:Current maturities of long-term debt$818,545A $875,760A Accounts payable984,963A 1,029,140A Accrued

liabilities1,012,218A 1,087,764A Operating lease liability114,293A 119,988A Contract liabilities1,013,076A 967,089A Total current liabilities3,943,095A 4,079,741A Long-term
debt1,717,270A 1,348,594A Liabilities relating to defined benefit pension and retirement plans285,388A 298,221A Deferred income tax liabilities142,971A 116,655A Long-term operating
lease liability383,966A 407,826A Other deferred liabilities116,600A 120,483A Total other noncurrent liabilities2,646,195A 2,291,779A Commitments and ContingenciesRedeemable
Noncontrolling interests794, 593A 820,182A Stockholdersa€™ Equity:Capital stock:Preferred stock, $1 par value, authorized - 1,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding -

nonea€”A 4€”A Common stock, $1 par value, authorized - 240,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding - 122,912,389 shares and 124,253,511 shares as of DecemberA 27, 2024 and
SeptemberA 27, 2024, respectively122,912A 124,084A Additional paid-in capital2,735,155A 2,758,064A Retained earnings2,179,509A 2,366,769A Accumulated other comprehensive
loss(832,217)(699,450)Total Jacobs stockholdersa€™ equity4,205,359A 4,549,467A Noncontrolling interests21,607A 17,836A Total Group stockholdersa€™

equity4,226,966A 4,567,303A $11,610,849A $11,759,005A Page 5See the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4€“ Unaudited.Page 6JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. AND
SUBSIDIARIESCONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGSThree Months Ended DecemberA 27, 2024 and DecemberA 29, 2023 (In thousands, except per share information)
(Unaudited)For the Three Months EndedDecember 27, 2024December 29, 2023Revenues$2,932,956A $2,810,227A Direct cost of contracts(2,211,689)(2,145,497)Gross

profit721,267A 664,730A Selling, general and administrative expenses(512,849)(522,730)Operating Profit 208,418A 142,000A Other Income (Expense):Interest

income9,656A 7,519A Interest expense(34,820)(43,350)Miscellaneous expense(130,107)(2,964)Total other expense, net(155,271)(38,795)Earnings from Continuing Operations Before
Taxes53,147A 103,205A Income Tax (Expense) Benefit from Continuing Operations(57,149)31,610A Net (Loss) Earnings of the Group from Continuing Operations(4,002)134,815A Net
(Loss) Earnings of the Group from Discontinued Operations, net of tax(1,001)46,639A Net (Loss) Earnings of the Group(5,003)181,454A Net Earnings Attributable to Noncontrolling
Interests from Continuing Operations(6,080)(3,851)Net Earnings Attributable to Redeemable Noncontrolling interests(7,047)(2,618)Net (Loss) Earnings Attributable to Jacobs from
Continuing Operations(17,129)128,346A Net Earnings Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests from Discontinued Operationséél"A (3,375)Net (Loss) Earnings Attributable to Jacobs from
Discontinued Operations(1,001)43,264A Net (Loss) Earnings Attributable to Jacobs$(18,130)$171,610A Net Earnings Per Share:Basic Net (Loss) Earnings from Continuing Operations Per
Share$(0.10)$1.03A Basic Net (Loss) Earnings from Discontinued Operations Per Share$(0.01)$0.34A Basic (Loss) Earnings Per Spare$(0.11)$1.37A Diluted Net (Loss) Earnings from
Continuing Operations Per Share$(0.10)$1.03A Diluted Net (Loss) Earnings from Discontinued Operations Per Share$(0.01)$0.34A Diluted (Loss) Earnings Per Share$(0.11)$1.37A See the
accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Unaudited.Page 7JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESCONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE
INCOMEThree Months Ended DecemberA 27, 2024 and DecemberA 29, 2023 (In thousands)(Unaudited)For the Three Months EndedDecember 27, 2024December 29, 2023Net (Loss)
Earnings of the Group$(5,003)$181,454A Other Comprehensive Income:Foreign currency translation adjustment(lGO,148)108,048A Change in cash flow hedgesS,SZlA (27,666)Change in
pension plan liabilities24,176A (10,753)Other comprehensive (loss) income before taxes(130,151)69,629A Income Tax (Expense) Benefit:Cash flow hedges(1,484)7,196A Change in pension
plan liabilities(1,132)(462)Income Tax (Expense) Benefit:(2,616)6,734A Net other comprehensive (loss) income(132,767)76,363A Net Comprehensive (Loss) Income of the
Group(137,770)257,817A Net Earnings Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests(6,080)(7,226)Net Earnings Attributable to Redeemable Noncontrolling interests(7,047)(2,618)Net
Comprehensive (Loss) Income Attributable to Jacobs$(150,897)$247,973A See the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Unaudited.Page 8JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIESCONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS4€™ EQUITYThree Months Ended DecemberA 27, 2024 and DecemberA 29, 2023(In thousands)
(Unaudited)Common StockAdditional Paid-in CapitalRetained EarningsAccumulated OtherA Comprehensive Income (Loss)Total Jacobs Stockholdersa€™ EquityNoncontrolling InterestsTotal
Group Stockholdersa€™ EquityBalances at September 29, 2023$125,977A $2,735,325A $4,542,872A $(857,954)$6,546,220A $53,862A $6,600,082A Net earnings

4€”A a€”A 171,610A a4€”A 171,610A 7,226A 178,836A Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of deferred taxes of $04€”A 4€”A 4€”A 108,048A 108,048A a€”A 108,048A Pension plan
liability, net of deferred taxes of $462&€”A a€”A a€”A (11,215)(11,215)a€”A (11,215)Change in cash flow hedges, net of deferred taxes of $(7,196)a€”A a€”A a€”A (20,470)

(20,470)a€”A (20,470)Dividendsa€”A &4€”A (361)a€”A (361)a€”A (361)Redeemable Noncontrolling interests redemption value

adjustmenta€”A a€”A (25,718)a€"A (25,718)a€”A (25,718)Repurchase and issuance of redeemable noncontrolling interestsa€”A a€”A 1,898A a€”A 1,898A a€”A 1,898A Noncontrolling
interests - distributions and othera€”A a€”A 4€”A 4€”A 4€”A (4,512)(4,512)Stock based compensationa€”A 19,310A 4€”A a€”A 19,310A a€”A 19,310A Issuances of equity securities including
shares withheld for taxes411A (8,093)(3, 350)a€’ "A (11,032)a€”A (11,032)Repurchases of equity securities(789)(17,126)(82,101)a€’ "A (100,016)4€”A (100,016)Balances at DecemberA 29,
2023$125,599A $2,729,416A $4,604,850A $(781,591)$6,678,274A $56,576A $6,734,850A Balances at September 27,

2024$124,084A $2,758,064A $2,366,769A $(699,450)$4,549,467A $17.836A $4,567,303A Net (loss) earningsa€”A a€”A (18,130)a€”A (18,130)6,080A (12,050)Foreign currency translation
adjustments net of deferred taxes of $04€”A a€”A 4€”A (160,148)(160,148)a€”A (160,148)Pension plan liability, net of deferred taxes of

$1,132a€”A 4€”A a€”A 23,044A 23,044A 4€”A 23,044A Change in cash flow hedges, net of deferred taxes of

$1,4844€”A a€”A 4€”A 4,337A 4,337A 4€”A 4,337A Dividendsa€”A a€”A (261)a€”A (261)a€”A (261)Redeemable Noncontrolling interests redemption value

adjustmenta€”A 4€”A 54A a4€”A 54A 4€”A 54A Repurchase and issuance of redeemable noncontrolling interestsa€”A a€”A 983A a€”A 983A 4€”A 983A Noncontrolling interests - distributions
and othera€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A (2,309)(2,309)Distribution of SpinCo Businessa€”A 4€”A 1,000A a€”A 1,000A 4€”A 1,000A Stock based compensation

a€”A 13,059A a€”A a€”A 13,059A a€”A 13,059A Issuances of equity securities including shares withheld for taxes284A (3,609)(3,095)a€”A (6,420)a€”A (6,420)Repurchases of equity
securities(1,456)(32,359)(167,811)a€”A (201,626)a€”A (201,626)Balances at December 27, 2024$122,912A $2,735,155A $2,179,509A $(832,217)$4,205,359A $21,607A $4,226,966A See
the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4€“ Unaudited.Page 9JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESCONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWSFor
the Three Months Ended DecemberA 27, 2024 and DecemberA 29, 2023 (In thousands)(Unaudited)For the Three Months EndedDecember 27, 2024December 29, 2023Cash Flows from
Operating Activities:Net (loss) earnings attributable to the Group$(5,003)$181,454A Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) earnings to net cash flows provided by operations:Depreciation and
amortization:Property, equipment and improvements20,922A 25,169A Intangible assets38,661A 51,119A Loss on investment in equity securities145,215A 4€”A Stock based
compensation13,059A 19,310A Equity in earnings of operating ventures, net of return on capital distributions(2,236)1,870A (Gain) loss on disposals of assets, net(622)608A Deferred income
taxes20,253A (58,239)Changes in assets and liabilities:Receivables and contract assets, net of contract liabilities(57,753)102,705A Prepaid expenses and other current

assets9 617A 50,216A Miscellaneous other assets17,243A 28,385A Accounts payable(37,225)(35, 843)Accrued llabllltles(31 398)37,584A Other deferred

borrowings589,000A 540, 401A Repayments of long-term borrowings(221,000)(567, 752)Repayments of short-term borrowings(5,345)(6, 262)Debt issuance costsa€"A (1,606)Proceeds from
issuances of common stock7,984A 11,355A Common stock repurchases(201,626)(100,016)Taxes paid on vested restricted stock(14,404)(22,387)Cash dividends to shareholders(36,481)
(33,366)Net dividends associated with noncontrolling interests(2,245)(4,708)Repurchase of redeemable noncontrolling interests(3,729)(24,360)AAAAAA A A A A A A Net cash provided
by (used for) financing activities112,154A (208,701)Effect of Exchange Rate Changes(58,180)34,148A Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted

Cash153,510A 227,811A Cash and Cash Equivalents, including Restricted Cash, at the Beginning of the Period1,146,931A 929,445A Cash and Cash Equivalents, including Restricted Cash,
at the End of the Period$1,300,441A $1,157,256A Less Cash and Cash Equivalents included in Assets held for spin$é€”A $(215,622)Cash and Cash Equivalents, including Restricted Cash of
Continuing Operations at the End of the Period $1,300,441A $941,634A See the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4€“ Unaudited.Page 10JACOBS SOLUTIONS
INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS1.Basis of PresentationUnless the context otherwise requires:a€¢References herein to a&€ceJacobsa€ are to
Jacobs Solutions Inc. and its predecessors;a€¢References herein to the a€ceCompanya€, a€cewead€, a€oeusa€ or a€ceoura€ are to Jacobs Solutions Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries;
anda€¢References herein to the &€ceGroupa€ are to the combined economic interests and activities of the Company and the persons and entities holding noncontrolling interests in our
consolidated subsidiaries.On August 29, 2022, Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. ("JEGI"), the predecessor to Jacobs Solutions Inc., implemented a holding company structure, which resulted in
Jacobs Solutions Inc. becoming the parent company of, and successor issuer to, JEGI (the "Holding Company Reorganization"). For purposes of this report, references to Jacobs and the
"Company", "we", " or "our" or our management or business at any point prior to the Holding Company Implementation Date refer to JEGI, or JEGI and its consolidated subsidiaries as the
predecessor to Jacobs Solutions Inc.The accompanying consolidated financial statements and financial information included herein have been prepared pursuant to the interim period
reporting requirements of Form 10-Q. Consequently, certain information and note disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States (a€ceU.S. GAAPA€) have been condensed or omitted. Readers of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q should also read our consolidated financial
statements and the notes thereto included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended SeptemberA 27, 2024 (4€0e2024 Form 10-K4€).In the opinion of management, the
accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements contain all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring adjustments) necessary for a fair presentation of our consolidated
financial statements as of DecemberA 27, 2024, and for the three months ended DecemberA 27, 2024.0ur interim results of operations are not necessarily indicative of the results to be
expected for the full fiscal year.On SeptemberA 27, 2024, Jacobs Solutions Inc. ("Jacobs") completed the previously announced Reverse Morris Trust transaction pursuant to which (i) Jacobs
first transferred its Critical Mission Solutions business (4€0eCMS4€) and portions of its Divergent Solutions (4€eDVS&€) business (referred to herein as the Cyber & Intelligence business
(a€eC&la€) and together with CMS referred to as the &€ceSpinCo Businessa€), to Amazon Holdco Inc., a Delaware corporation, that was subsequently renamed Amentum Holdings, Inc.
(a€eSpinCoaf€) (the a€ceSeparationa€), (ii) Jacobs then effectuated a spin-off of SpinCo by distributing 124,084,108 shares of SpinCo common stock, par value $0.01 per share (the
a€eSpinCo Common Stocka€) by way of a pro rata distribution to its shareholders such that each holder of shares of Jacobs common stock, par value $1.00 per share, (the 4€ceJacobs
Common Stocka€) was entitled to receive one share of SpinCo Common Stock for each share of Jacobs Common Stock held as of the record date, September 23, 2024 (the
a€ceDistributiona€), and (iii) finally, Amentum Parent Holdings LLC merged with and into SpinCo, with SpinCo surviving the merger (the 4€eMergera€ and together with the Separation
and the Distribution, the &€ceSeparation Transactiona€). As a result of the Separation, substantially all SpinCo Business-related assets and liabilities have been separated and distributed
(the "Disposal Group"). The Company determined that the Disposal Group should be reported as discontinued operations in accordance with ASC 205-20, Discontinued Operations because
their disposal represents a strategic shift that had a major effect on the Company's operations and financial results. As such, the financial results of the SpinCo Business are reflected in the
Company's Consolidated Statements of Earnings as well as relevant disclosures as discontinued operations for all periods presented. See Note 15- Discontinued Operations for more
information.2.A A A A Use of Estimates and AssumptionsThe preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires us to employ estimates and make assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of certain assets and liabilities; the revenues and expenses reported for the periods covered by the financial statements; and certain amounts disclosed in these
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Although such estimates and assumptions are based on managementa€™ s most recent assessment of the underlying facts and



circumstances utilizing the most current information available and past experience, actual results Page 11JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)could differ significantly from those estimates and assumptions. Our estimates, judgments and assumptions are evaluated periodically and
adjusted accordingly.Please refer to Note 2- Significant Accounting Policies of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in our 2024 Form 10-K for a discussion of other
significant estimates and assumptions affecting our consolidated financial statements. 3.A A A A Fair Value and Fair Value MeasurementsCertain amounts included in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements are presented at fair value. Fair value is defined as the price that would be received from selling an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants as of the date fair value is determined (the a&€cemeasurement datea€). When determining fair value, we consider the principal or most
advantageous market in which we would transact, and we consider only those assumptions we believe a typical market participant would consider when pricing an asset or liability. In
measuring fair value, we use the following inputs in the order of priority indicated:Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.Level 2 - Observable inputs other
than quoted prices in active markets included in Level 1, such as (i) quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; (ii) quoted prices in markets that have insufficient volume or infrequent
transactions (e.g., less active markets); and (iii) model-driven valuations in which all significant inputs are observable or can be derived principally from, or corroborated with, observable
market data for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.Level 3 - Unobservable inputs to the valuation methodology that are significant to the fair value measurement.Please refer
to Note 2- Significant Accounting Policies of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in our 2024 Form 10-K for a more complete discussion of the various items within the
consolidated financial statements measured at fair value and the methods used to determine fair value. Please also refer to Note 18- Commitments and Contingencies and Derivative
Financial Instruments for discussion regarding the Company's derivative instruments Note 14- Discontinued Operations for discussion regarding the Company's investment in Amentum
ordinary shares. The net carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and payables and short-term debt approximate fair value due to the short-term nature of these
instruments. See Note 12- Borrowings for a discussion of the fair value of long-term debt.Page 12JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)4.A A A A New Accounting PronouncementsASU 2024-03, Income Statement, (Subtopic 220-40): Reporting Comprehensive Income - Disaggregation of
Income Statement Expenses, requires disclosure, in the notes to financial statements, of specified information about certain costs and expenses. The amendments in this update also provide
guidance on the disaggregation disclosure requirements for certain expense captions presented on the face of an entitya€™s income statement and provide guidance on the disclosure of
selling expenses. The amendments in ASU 2024-03 are effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2026, and interim reporting periods beginning after December
15, 2027, with early adoption permitted. The amendments should be applied prospectively; however, retrospective application is also permitted. ASU 2024-03 will be effective for the
Company in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2027. The Company is evaluating the impact of this guidance on its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.ASU 2023-09, Income
Taxes, (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures, provides qualitative and quantitative updates to the Company's effective income tax rate reconciliation and income taxes paid
disclosures, among others, in order to enhance the transparency of income tax disclosures, including consistent categories and greater disaggregation of information in the rate
reconciliation and disaggregation by jurisdiction of income taxes paid. The amendments in ASU 2023-09 are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024, with early adoption
permitted. The amendments should be applied prospectively; however, retrospective application is also permitted. ASU 2023-09 will be effective for the Company in the first quarter of fiscal
2026. The Company is evaluating the impact of this guidance on its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures and is implementing changes to processes and internal controls
to meet the standarda€™ s updated reporting and disclosure requirements. ASU 2023-07, Segment Reporting, (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures, requires
disclosure of significant segment expenses that are regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker (4€0eCODMa€) and included within each reported measure of segment profit or
loss, an amount and description of its composition for other segment items to reconcile to segment profit or loss, and the title and position of the entitya€™s CODM. The amendments in this
update also expand the interim segment disclosure requirements. ASU 2023-07 is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2023 and interim periods within fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2024. Early adoption is permitted and the amendments in this update are required to be applied on a retrospective basis. ASU 2023-07 will be effective for the
Company's annual fiscal 2025 period. The Company is evaluating the impact of this guidance on its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.ASU 2023-06, Disclosure
Improvements: Amendments - Codification Amendments in Response to the Disclosure Update and Simplification Initiative of the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"). The
Financial Accounting Standards Board issued the standard to introduce changes to US GAAP that originate in either SEC Regulation S-X or S-K, which are rules about the form and content
of financial reports filed with the SEC. The provisions of the standard are contingent upon instances where the SEC removes the related disclosure provisions from Regulation S-X and S-K.
ASU 2023-06 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024, with early adoption permitted. The amendments should be applied prospectively; however, retrospective
application is also permitted. ASU 2023-06 will be effective for the Company in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2026. The Company does not expect that the application of this standard will have
a material impact on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.5.A A A A Revenue Accounting for ContractsDisaggregation of RevenuesOur revenues are principally
derived from contracts to provide a diverse range of technical, professional, and construction services to a large number of industrial, commercial, and governmental clients. We provide a
broad range of engineering, design, and architectural services; construction and construction management services; operations and maintenance services; and technical, digital, process,
scientific and systems consulting services. We provide our services through offices and subsidiaries located primarily in North America, Europe, the Middle East, India, Australia, Africa, and
Asia. We provide our services under cost-reimbursable and fixed-price contracts. Our contracts are with many different customers in numerous industries. Refer to Note 19- Segment
Information for additional information on how we disaggregate our revenues by reportable segment.Page 13JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)The following table further disaggregates our revenue by geographic area for the three months ended DecemberA 27, 2024 and DecemberA 29,

clients in excess of revenue recogmzed to date. Revenue recognized for the three months ended DecemberA 27, 2024 that was previously included in the contract liability balance on
SeptemberA 27, 2024 was $410.7 million. Revenue recognized for the three months ended DecemberA 29, 2023 that was included in the contract liability balance on SeptemberA 29, 2023
was $339.4 million.Remaining Performance ObligationThe Companya€™s remaining performance obligations as of DecemberA 27, 2024 represent a measure of the total dollar value of
work to be performed on contracts awarded and in progress. The Company had approximately $14.6 billion in remaining performance obligations as of DecemberA 27, 2024. The Company
expects to recognize approximately 49% of its remaining performance obligations into revenue within the next twelve months and the remaining 51% thereafter. The majority of the
remaining performance obligations after the first twelve months are expected to be recognized over a four-year period.Although our remaining performance obligations reflect business
volumes that are considered to be firm, normal business activities including scope adjustments, deferrals or cancellations may occur that impact volume or expected timing of their
recognition. Remaining performance obligations are adjusted to reflect any known project cancellations, revisions to project scope and cost, foreign currency exchange fluctuations and
project deferrals, as appropriate.6.A A A A Earnings Per Share and Certain Related InformationBasic and diluted earnings per share (4€ceEPSa€) are computed using the two-class method,
which is an earnings allocation method that determines EPS for common shares and participating securities. The undistributed earnings are allocated between common shares and
participating securities as if all earnings had been distributed during the period. Participating securities and common shares have equal rights to undistributed earnings. Net earnings used
for the purpose of determining basic and diluted EPS is determined by taking net earnings, less earnings available to participating securities and the preferred redeemable noncontrolling
interests redemption value adjustment associated with the PA Consulting transaction.The following table reconciles the denominator used to compute basic EPS to the denominator used to
compute diluted EPS for the three months ended DecemberA 27, 2024 and DecemberA 29, 2023 (in thousands):Page 14JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNOTES TO
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)Three Months EndedDecember 27, 2024December 29, 2023Numerator for Basic and Diluted EPS:Net (loss) earnings
attributable to Jacobs from continuing operations$(17,129)$128,346A Preferred Redeemable Noncontrolling interests redemption value adjustment (See Note 16- PA Consulting
Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests)4,568A 1,766A Net (loss) earnings from continuing operations allocated to common stock for EPS calculation$(12,561)$130,112A Net (loss) earnings
from discontinued operations allocated to common stock for EPS calculation$(1,001)$43,264A Net (loss) earnings allocated to common stock for EPS

calculation$(13,562)$173,376A Denominator for Basic and Diluted EPS:Shares used for calculating basic EPS attributable to common stock124,055A 126,105A Effect of dilutive
securities:Stock compensation plans (1)a€”A 708A Shares used for calculating diluted EPS attributable to common stock124,055A 126,813A Net Earnings Per Share:Basic Net (Loss)
Earnings from Continuing Operations Per Share$(0.10)$1.03A Basic Net (Loss) Earnings from Discontinued Operations Per Share$(0.01)$0.34A Basic (Loss) Earnings Per
Share$(0.11)$1.37A Diluted Net (Loss) Earnings from Continuing Operations Per Share$(0.10)$1.03A Diluted Net (Loss) Earnings from Discontinued Operations Per

Share$(0.01)$0.34A Diluted (Loss) Earnings Per Share$(0.11)$1.37A Note: Per share amounts may not add due to rounding.(1)For the three months ended DecemberA 27, 2024, because
net (loss) earnings from continuing operations was a loss, the effect of antidilutive securities of 576 was excluded from the denominator in calculating diluted EPS.Share RepurchasesOn
January 16, 2020, the Company's Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program of up to $1.0 billion of the Company's common stock (the "2020 Repurchase Authorization").
The 2020 Repurchase Authorization expired on January 15, 2023. On January 25, 2023, the Company's Board of Directors authorized an incremental share repurchase program of up to $1.0
billion of the Company's common stock, to expire on January 25, 2026 (the "2023 Repurchase Authorization"). At DecemberA 27, 2024, the Company hadA $270.8 million remaining under
the 2023 Repurchase Authorization. On January 30, 2025, the Company's Board of Directors authorized an incremental share repurchase program of up to $1.5 billion of the Company's
common stock, to expire on January 30, 2028 (the "2025 Repurchase Authorization"). No repurchase activity has taken place under the 2025 Share Repurchase Authorization to date.Page
15JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)The following table summarizes repurchase activity under the
2023 Repurchase Authorization through the first fiscal quarter of 2025: AmountA Authorized(2023 Repurchase Authorization)AverageA PriceA Per Share (1)TotalA Shares Repurchased and
Retired$1,000,000,000$138.501,455,839(1)Includes commissions paid and excise tax due under the Inflation Reduction Act of 2022 and calculated at the average price per share.Our share
repurchase program does not obligate the Company to purchase any shares. Share repurchases may be executed through various means including, without limitation, accelerated share
repurchases, open market transactions, privately negotiated transactions, purchases pursuant to Rule 10b5-1 plans or otherwise. The authorization for the share repurchase programs may
be terminated, increased or decreased by the Companya€™s Board of Directors in its discretion at any time. The timing, amount and manner of share repurchases may depend upon market
conditions and economic circumstances, availability of investment opportunities, the availability and costs of financing, currency fluctuations, the market price of the Company's common
stock, other uses of capital and other factors.DividendsOn JanuaryA 30, 2025, the Companya€™s Board of Directors declared a quarterly dividend of $0.32 per share of the Companya€™s
common stock to be paid on MarchA 21, 2025, to shareholders of record on the close of business on FebruaryA 21, 2025. Future dividend declarations are subject to review and approval by
the Companya€™s Board of Directors. Dividends paid through the first fiscal quarter of 2025 and the preceding fiscal year are as follows: Declaration DateRecord DatePayment DateCash
Amount (per share)September 26, 20240October 25, 2024November 22, 2024$0.29July 11, 2024]July 26, 2024August 23, 2024$0.29May 2, 2024May 24, 2024June 21, 2024$0.29January 25,
2024February 23, 2024March 22, 2024$0.29September 28, 20230ctober 27, 2023November 9, 2023$0.26Page 16JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNOTES TO
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)7.A A A A Goodwill and IntangiblesThe carrying value of goodwill appearing in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets
at DecemberA 27,2024 and SgptemberA 27, 2024 was as follows (in thousands):Infrastructure & Advanced FacilitiesPA ConsultingTotalBalance September 27, . R
2024$3,362,760A $1,425,421A $4,788,181A Foreign currency translation and other (20,125)(84,700)(104,825)Balance December 27, 2024$3,342,635A $1,340,721A $4,683,356A The
following table provides certain information related to the Companya€™ s acquired intangibles in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets at DecemberA 27, 2024 and

SeptemberA 27, 2024 (in thousands):Customer Relationships, Contracts and BacklogDeveloped TechnologyTrade NamesTotalBalance September 27,

2024$651,894A $31,515A $191,485A $874,894A Amortization(32,029)(2,995)(3,637)(38, 661)Foreign currency translation and other(30,198)(46)(10,704)(40,948)Balance December 27,
2024$589,667A $28,474A $177,144A $795,285A The following table presents estimated amortization expense of intangible assets for the remainder of fiscal 2025 and for the succeeding
years. FiscalA Year(inA millions)2025$114.0A 2026133.3A 2027103.5A 202893.1A 202993.1A Thereafter258.3A Total$795.3A Page 17JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. AND
SUBSIDIARIESNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)8.A A A A Receivables and Contract AssetsThe following table presents the components of
receivables and contract assets appearing in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets at DecemberA 27, 2024 and SeptemberA 27, 2024, as well as certain other related information
(in thousands):December 27, 2024September 27, 2024Components of receivables and contract assets:Amounts billed, net$1,403,877A $1,278,980A Unbilled receivables and
other1,099,585A 1,132,980A Contract assets409,051A 433,492A Total receivables and contract assets, net$2,912,513A $2,845,452A Amounts billed, net consist of amounts invoiced to
clients in accordance with the terms of our client contracts and are shown net of an allowance for expected credit losses. We anticipate that substantially all of such billed amounts will be
collected over the next twelve months.Unbilled receivables and other, which represent an unconditional right to payment subject only to the passage of time, are reclassified to amounts
billed when they are billed under the terms of the contract. We anticipate that substantially all of such unbilled amounts will be billed and collected over the next twelve months. Contract
assets represent unbilled amounts where the right to payment is subject to more than merely the passage of time and includes performance-based incentives and services that have been
provided in advance of agreed contractual milestones. Contract assets are transferred to unbilled receivables when the right to consideration becomes unconditional and are transferred to
amounts billed upon invoicing.9.A A A A Accumulated Other Comprehensive IncomeThe following table presents the Company's roll forward of accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss) after-tax as of DecemberA 27, 2024 (in thousands):Change in Net Pension ObligationForeign Currency Translation Adjustment (1)Gain/(Loss) on Cash Flow Hedges (2)TotalBalance at
SeptemberA 27, 2024$(370,937)$(369,516)$41,003A $(699,450)Other comprehensive Income (loss)23,044A (160,148)6,412A (130,692)Reclassifications from accumulated other
comprehensive lossa€”A a€”A (2,075)(2,075)Balance at DecemberA 27, 2024$(347,893)$(529,664)$45,340A $(832,217)(1) Included in the overall foreign currency translation adjustment for
the three months ended DecemberA 27, 2024 and DecemberA 29, 2023 are $(1.3)A million and $(37.7)A million, respectively, in unrealized gains (losses) on long-term foreign currency
denominated intercompany loans not anticipated to be settled in the foreseeable future.(2) Included in the Companya€™s cumulative net unrealized gains from interest rate and cross
currency swaps recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income as of DecemberA 27, 2024 were approximately $7.0A million in unrealized gains, net of taxes, which are expected to
be realized in earnings during the twelve months subsequent to DecemberA 27, 2024.Page 18JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)10.A A A A Income TaxesThe Companya€™s effective tax rates from continuing operations for the three months ended DecemberA 27, 2024 and

DecemberA 29, 2023 were 107.5% and (30.6)%, respectively. The most significant items contributing to the difference between the statutory U.S. federal corporate tax rate of 21.0% and
the Company's effective tax rate for the three-month period ended DecemberA 27, 2024 was due to $37.0 million in unfavorable tax impacts associated with the non-deductibility of losses



from our investment in Amentum stock, as well as U.S. state income tax expense of $5.4 million and U.S. tax on foreign earnings of $4.9 million. The U.S state income tax and U.S. tax on
foreign earnings are expected to have a continuing impact on the Company's effective tax rate for the remainder of the fiscal year.The most significant item contributing to the difference
between the statutory U.S. federal corporate tax rate of 21.0% and the Company's effective tax rate for the three-month period ended DecemberA 29, 2023 was related to the election to
treat an Australian subsidiary as a corporation versus a partnership for U.S. tax purposes, which resulted in the derecognition of a deferred tax liability and yielded a discrete income tax
benefit of $61.6 million as the Company asserted that a component of the investment will be indefinitely reinvested.In December 2021, the Organization for Economic Cooperation and
Development ("OECD") released the Pillar Two Model Rules (also referred to as the global minimum tax or Global Anti-Base Erosion "GloBE" rules), which were designed to ensure large
multinational enterprises pay a minimum 15 percent level of tax on the income arising in each jurisdiction in which they operate. Several jurisdictions in which we operate have enacted
these rules, which are effective for the first quarter of the fiscal year ending September 26, 2025. The Company is continually monitoring developments and evaluating the potential
impacts. At this time, implementation of these rules has not generated a material impact on consolidated income taxes.The amount of income taxes the Company pays is subject to ongoing
audits by tax jurisdictions around the world. In the normal course of business, the Company is subject to examination by tax authorities throughout the world, including such major
jurisdictions as Australia, Canada, India, the Netherlands, the United Kingdom and the United States. Our estimate of the potential outcome of any uncertain tax issue is subject to our
assessment of the relevant risks, facts, and circumstances existing at the time. The Company believes that it has adequately provided for reasonably foreseeable outcomes related to these
matters. However, future results may include favorable or unfavorable adjustments to our estimated tax liabilities in the period the assessments are made or resolved, which may impact our
effective tax rate.11.A A A A Joint Ventures, VIEs and Other InvestmentsFor the Company's consolidated variable interest entities ("VIE") joint ventures, the carrying value of assets and
liabilities was $172.8 million and $125.0 million, respectively, as of DecemberA 27, 2024 and $161.9 million and $122.7 million, respectively, as of SeptemberA 27, 2024. There are no
consolidated VIEs that have debt or credit facilities.For the Company's proportionate consolidated VIEs, the carrying value of assets and liabilities was $133.2 million and $123.7 million,
respectively, as of DecemberA 27, 2024, and $138.8 million and $138.0 million, respectively, as of SeptemberA 27, 2024.The carrying values of our investments in equity method joint
ventures in the Consolidated Balance Sheets (reported in Other Noncurrent Assets: Miscellaneous) as of DecemberA 27, 2024 and SeptemberA 27, 2024 were $36.5 million and $36.6
million, respectively. Additionally, income from equity method joint ventures (reported in Revenue) was $3.7 million and $2.7 million, respectively, during the three months ended
DecemberA 27, 2024 and DecemberA 29, 2023. As of DecemberA 27, 2024, the Company's equity method investment carrying values do not include material amounts exceeding their share
of the respective joint ventures' reported net assets. Accounts receivable from unconsolidated joint ventures accounted for under the equity method was $18.0 million and $12.3 million as of
DecemberA 27, 2024 and SeptemberA 27, 2024, respectively.Page 19JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -
(CONTINUED)12.A A A A BorrowingsAt DecemberA 27, 2024 and SeptemberA 27, 2024, long-term debt consisted of the following (principal amounts in thousands):Interest
RateMaturityDecember 27, 2024September 27, 2024Revolving Credit FacilityBenchmark + applicable margin (1) (2)February 2028$508,000A $140,000A 2021 Term Loan Facility - USD
PortionBenchmark + applicable margin (1) (3)February 2026120,000A 120,000A 2021 Term Loan Facility - GBP Portion Benchmark + applicable margin (1) (3)September

2025818,545A 870,415A Fixed-rate:5.9% Bonds, due 20335.9% (4)March 2033500,000A 500,000A 6.35% Bonds, due 20286.35%August 2028600,000A 600,000A Less: Current Portion (5)
(818,545)(870,415)Less: Deferred Financing Fees(10,730)(11,406)Total Long-term debt, net$1,717,270A $1,348,594A (1)During the year ended SeptemberA 27, 2024, the aggregate
principal amounts denominated in U.S. dollars under the Revolving Credit Facility and the 2021 Term Loan Facility (each as defined below) transitioned from underlying LIBOR
benchmarked rates to the Term Secured Overnight Financing Rate ("SOFR"). During fiscal 2022, the aggregate principal amounts denominated in British pounds under the Revolving Credit
Facility, 2021 Term Loan Facility transitioned from underlying LIBOR benchmarked rates to Sterling Overnight Index Average ("SONIA") rates.(2)Depending on the Companya€™s
Consolidated Leverage Ratio or Debt Rating (each as defined in the Revolving Credit Facility (defined below)), U.S. dollar denominated borrowings under the Revolving Credit Famhty bear
interest at either a SOFR rate plus a margin of betweenA 0.975%A and 1.725%A or a base rate plus a margin of between 0%A andA 0.625%. The applicable SOFR rates, or LIBOR rate for
the prior fiscal year end, including applicable margins at DecemberA 27, 2024 and SeptemberA 27, 2024 were approximately 5.61% and 6.64%. Borrowings denominated in British pounds
bear interest at an adjusted SONIA rate plus a margin of between 0.908% and 1.658%. There were no amounts drawn in British pounds as of DecemberA 27, 2024.(3)Depending on the
Companya€™s Consolidated Leverage Ratio or Debt Rating (each as defined in the Amended and Restated Term Loan Agreement (defined below)), U.S. dollar denominated borrowings
under the 2021 Term Loan Facility bear interest at either a SOFR rate plus a margin of betweenA 0.975% and 1.725%A or a base rate plus a margin of between 0%A andA 0.625%. The
applicable SOFR, or LIBOR rate for the prior fiscal year end, including applicable margins for borrowings denominated in U.S. dollars at DecemberA 27, 2024 and SeptemberA 27, 2024 was
approximately 5.80% and 6.52%. Borrowings denominated in British pounds bear interest at an adjusted SONIA rate plus a margin of between 0.908% and 1.658%, which was
approximately 5.86% and 6.23% at DecemberA 27, 2024 and SeptemberA 27, 2024, respectively. (4)From and including SeptemberA 1, 2028 (the a€ceFirst Step Up Datea€), the interest
rate payable on the 5.90% Bonds (as defined below) will be increased by an additional 12.5 basis points to 6.025% per annum (the 4€ceFirst Step Up Interest Ratea€) unless the Company
notifies the Trustee (as defined below) on or before the date that is 15 days prior to the First Step Up Date that the Percentage of Gender Diversity Performance Target (as defined in the
First Supplemental Indenture (as defined below)) has been satisfied and receives a related assurance letter verifying such compliance. From and including SeptemberA 1, 2030 (the
a€eSecond Step Up Datea€), the interest rate payable on the 5.90% Bonds will be increased by 12.5 basis points to (x) 6.150% per annum if the First Step Up Interest Rate was in effect
immediately prior to the Second Step Up Date or (y) 6.025% per annum if the initial interest rate was in effect immediately prior to the Second Step Up Date, unless the Company notifies
the Trustee on or before the date that is 15 days prior to the Second Step Up Date that the GHG Emissions Performance Target (as defined in the First Supplemental Indenture) has been
satisfied and receives a related assurance letter verifying such compliance.(5)Balance as of DecemberA 27, 2024 and SeptemberA 27, 2024 is associated with the September 1, 2025
scheduled maturity of the 2021 Term Loan Facility, which was reclassified from long-term debt in September 2024. We believe the carrying value of the Revolving Credit Facility, the Term
Loan Facility and other debt outstanding approximates fair value based on the interest rates and scheduled maturities applicable to the outstanding borrowings. At DecemberA 27, 2024, the
fair value of the 5.90% Bonds and the 6.35% bonds is estimated to be $503.0 million and $624.2 million, respectively, based on Level 2 inputs. The fair value is determined by discounting
future cash flows using interest rates available for issuances with similar terms and average maturities.Page 20JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)Revolving Credit Facility and Term LoansThe Company and certain of its subsidiaries maintain a sustainability-linked $2.25A billion unsecured
revolving credit facility (the a&€eRevolving Credit Facilitya€) established under a third amended and restated credit agreement, dated February 6, 2023 (the "Revolving Credit Agreement"),
among Jacobs and certain of its subsidiaries as borrowers and a syndicate of U.S. and international banks and financial institutions. The credit extensions under the Revolving Credit Facility
can be funded in U.S. dollars, British Sterling, Euros, Canadian dollars, Australian dollars, Swedish Krona, Singapore dollars and other agreed upon alternative currencies. The Revolving
Credit Agreement also provides for a financial letter of credit sub facility of $400.0A million, permits performance letters of credit, and provides for a $100.0A million sub facility for swing
line loans. Letters of credit are subject to fees based on the Companya€™s Consolidated Leverage Ratio and Debt Rating, whichever is more favorable to the Company. The Revolving Credit
Agreement amended and restated the second amended and restated credit agreement dated March 27, 2019, by and among JEGI and certain of its subsidiaries and a syndicate of banks and
financial institutions, in order to, among other things, (a) extend the maturity date of the Revolving Credit Facility to February 6, 2028, (b) replace and adjust interest rates based on market
conditions and incorporate a sustainability-linked pricing adjustment, (c) revise the commitment fee on the unused portion of the facility to a range of 0.10% to 0.25% depending on the
higher of the pricing level associated with JEGI's Debt Rating or the Consolidated Leverage Ratio, (d) increase the Consolidated Leverage Ratio financial covenant to 3.50:1.00 (subject to
temporary increases to 4.00:1.00 following the closing of certain material acquisitions), (e) eliminate the net worth financial covenant and (f) add the Company as a guarantor of the
obligations of JEGI and its subsidiaries under the Revolving Credit Agreement.The Company and JEGI maintain an unsecured delayed draft term loan facility (the &€0e2021 Term Loan
Facilitya€) established under an amended and restated term loan agreement dated February 6, 2023 (the "Amended and Restated Term Loan Agreement"), by and among the Company and
JEGI and a syndicate of banks and financial institutions. JEGI borrowed $200.0A million and A£650.0A million of term loans under the 2021 Term Loan Facility (reflecting scheduled
maturities in February 2026 and September 2025, respectively) and the proceeds of such term loans were used primarily to fund JEGI's investment in PA Consulting. The Amended and
Restated Term Loan Agreement amended and restated the term loan agreement dated January 15, 2021, by and among JEGI and a syndicate of U.S. banks and financial institutions to,
among other things: (a) extend the maturity date of the U.S. dollar term loan to February 6, 2026 and the British sterling term loan to September 1, 2025, (b) replace and adjust interest
rates based on market conditions and incorporate a sustainability-linked pricing adjustment, (c) increase the Consolidated Leverage Ratio financial covenant to 3.50:1.00 (subject to
temporary increases to 4.00:1.00 following the closing of certain material acquisitions), (d) eliminate the net worth financial covenant, and (e) add Jacobs as a guarantor of the obligations of
JEGI under the Amended and Restated Term Loan Agreement. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2023, the Company repaid $80.0A million of the USD portion of the 2021 Term Loan
Facility.In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2022, the Revolving Credit Facility and 2021 Term Loan Facility were amended to permit the Holding Company Reorganization.On December 20,
2023, the Revolving Credit Facility and 2021 Term Loan Facility were amended to adjust the point in time at which certain compliance thresholds are tested in connection with the
Separation Transaction.On April 10, 2024, the 2021 Term Loan Facility was amended to permit the potential exchange of Jacobs' retained equity stake in the combined company after the
Separation Transaction for the effective repayment of a portion of the Term Loan Facility. We were in compliance with the covenants under the Revolving Credit Facility and 2021 Term
Loan Facility at DecemberA 27, 2024.Page 21JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)5.90% Bonds, due
2033 On FebruaryA 16, 2023, JEGI completed an offering of $500A million aggregate principal amount of 5.90% Bonds due 2033 (the 4€0e5.90% Bondsa€). The 5.90% Bonds are fully and
unconditionally guaranteed by the Company (the 4€0e5.90% Bonds Guaranteea€). The 5.90% Bonds and the 5.90% Bonds Guarantee were offered pursuant to a prospectus supplement,
dated FebruaryA 13, 2023, to the prospectus dated FebruaryA 6, 2023, that forms a part of the Company's and JEGI&€™ s automatic shelf registration statement on Form S-3ASR previously
filed with the SEC, and were issued pursuant to an Indenture, dated as of February 16, 2023, between JEGI, as issuer, the Company, as guarantor, and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National
Association, as trustee (the a€ceTrusteea€), as amended and supplemented by the First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of February 16, 2023 (the &€ceFirst Supplemental Indenturea€).
Interest on the 5.90% Bonds is payable semi-annually in arrears on each MarchA 1 and SeptemberA 1, until maturity. The 5.90% Bonds bear interest at 5.90% per annum, subject to
adjustments as discussed in note (5) to the table above. Prior to DecemberA 1, 2032 (the 4€0e5.90% Bonds Par Call Datea€), JEGI may redeem the 5.90% Bonds at its option, in whole or in
part, at any time and from time to time, at the redemption price calculated by JEGI (expressed as a percentage of principal amount and rounded to three decimal places) equal to the greater
of: (1) (a) the sum of the present values of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest on the 5.90% Bonds being redeemed, assuming that such 5.90% Bonds matured on
the 5.90% Bonds Par Call Date, discounted to the redemption date on a semiannual basis (assuming a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months), at the Treasury Rate (as defined in the First
Supplemental Indenture) plus 35 basis points, less (b)A interest accrued to the redemption date, and (2) 100% of the principal amount of such 5.90% Bonds to be redeemed, plus, in either
case, accrued and unpaid interest on the 5.90% Bonds, if any, to, but excluding, the redemption date. At any time and from time to time on or after the 5.90% Bonds Par Call Date, JEGI may
redeem the 5.90% Bonds, at its option, in whole or in part, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 5.90% Bonds to be redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid
interest thereon, if any, up to, but excluding, the redemption date.6.35% Bonds, due 20280n August 18, 2023, JEGI completed an offering of $600A million aggregate principal amount of
6.35% Bonds due 2028 (the 4€0e6.35% Bondsa€). The 6.35% Bonds are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by the Company (the &€0e6.35% Bonds Guaranteea€). The 6.35% Bonds and the
6.35% Bonds Guarantee were offered pursuant to a prospectus supplement, dated August 15, 2023, to the prospectus dated February 6, 2023, that forms a part of the Company and

JEGI&€™ s automatic shelf registration statement on Form S-3ASR previously filed with the SEC, and were issued pursuant to the Indenture, as amended and supplemented by the Second
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 18, 2023 (the a€oeSecond Supplemental Indenturea€). Interest on the 6.35% Bonds is payable semi-annually in arrears on each February 18 and
August 18, until maturity. The Notes will bear interest at a rate of 6.35% per annum and will mature on August 18, 2028. The 6.35% Bonds bear interest at 6.35% per annum.Prior to July
18, 2028 (the 4€0e6.35% Bonds Par Call Datea€), JEGI may redeem the 6.35% Bonds at its option, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time, at the redemption price calculated
by JEGI (expressed as a percentage of principal amount and rounded to three decimal places) equal to the greater of: (1) (a) the sum of the present values of the remaining scheduled
payments of principal and interest on the 6.35% Bonds being redeemed, assuming that such 6.35% Bonds matured on the 6.35% Bonds Par Call Date, discounted to the redemption date on
a semiannual basis (assuming a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months), at the Treasury Rate (as defined in the Second Supplemental Indenture) plus 30 basis points, less (b) interest
accrued to the redemption date, and (2) 100% of the principal amount of such 6.35% Bonds to be redeemed, plus, in either case, accrued and unpaid interest on the 6.35% Bonds, if any, to,
but excluding, the redemption date. At any time and from time to time on or after the 6.35% Bonds Par Call Date, JEGI may redeem the 6.35% Bonds, at its option, in whole or in part, at a
redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 6.35% Bonds to be redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon, if any, to, but excluding, the redemption date.Other
arrangementsDuring fiscal 2020, the Company entered into interest rate and cross currency derivative contracts to swap a portion of our variable rate debt to fixed rate debt. See Note 18-
Commitments and Contingencies and Derivative Financial Instruments for discussion regarding the Company's derivative instruments.Page 22JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. AND
SUBSIDIARIESNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)The Company has issued $0.5 million in letters of credit under the Revolving Credit Facility, leaving
$1.74 billion of available borrowing capacity under the Revolving Credit Facility at DecemberA 27, 2024. In addition, the Company had issued $282.8 million under various separate,
committed and uncommitted letter-of-credit facilities for issued letters of credit totaling $283.3 million at DecemberA 27, 2024.13.A A A A LeasesThe components of lease expense (reflected
in selling, general and administrative expenses ("SG&A")) for the three months ended DecemberA 27, 2024 and DecemberA 29, 2023 were as follows (in thousands):Three Months
EndedDecember 27, 2024December 29, 2023Lease expenseOperating lease expense$27,542A $29,503A Variable lease expenses8, 022A 8,500A Sublease income(5,390)(4,660)Total lease
expense$30,174A $33,343A Supplemental information related to the Company's leases for the three months ended DecemberA 27, 2024 and DecemberA 29, 2023 was as follows (in
thousands):Three Months EndedDecember 27, 2024December 29, 2023Cash paid for amounts included in the measurements of lease liabilities$38,387$39,609Right-of-use assets obtained
in exchange for new operating lease liabilities$10,396$6,813Weighted average remaining lease term - operating leases5.6 years5.9 yearsWeighted average discount rate - operating
leases3.8%3.5%Total remaining lease payments under the Company's leases for the remainder of fiscal 2025 and for the succeeding years is as follows (in thousands): Fiscal YearOperating
Leases2025$102,786A 2026114,775A 202795,185A 202877,687A 202957,667A Thereafter106,726A 554,826A Less Interest(56,567)$498,259A Page 23JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. AND
SUBSIDIARIESNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)14.A A A A Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit PlansThe following table presents the
components of net periodic pension benefit expense recognized in earnings during the three months ended DecemberA 27, 2024 and DecemberA 29, 2023 (in thousands):Three Months
EndedDecember 27, 2024December 29, 2023Component:Service cost$2,499A $2,261A Interest cost20,402A 21,560A Expected return on plan assets(24,687)(23,726)Amortization of
previously unrecognized items3,002A 1,949A Total net periodic pension benefit expense recognized$1,216A $2,044A The service cost component of net periodic pension benefit is presented



in the same line item as other compensation costs (direct cost of contracts and selling, general and administrative expenses) and the other components of net periodic pension expense are
presented in miscellaneous income (expense), net on the Consolidated Statements of Earnings.The following table presents certain information regarding the Companya€™s cash
contributions to our pension plans for fiscal 2025 (in thousands):Cash contributions made during the first three months of fiscal 2025$4,836A Cash contributions projected for the remainder
of fiscal 202530,806A Total$35,642A 15.Discontinued OperationsSeparation of Critical Mission Solutions (4€ceCMSa€) and Cyber & Intelligence (4€0eC&I&€) BusinessesOn September 27,
2024, Jacobs completed the previously announced Reverse Morris Trust transaction pursuant to which (i) Jacobs first transferred its CMS and portions of its DVS business to Amazon Holdco
Inc., a Delaware corporation ("SpinCo"), which has since been renamed Amentum Holdings, Inc., (ii) Jacobs then effectuated a spin-off of SpinCo by distributing 124,084,108 shares of
SpinCo Common Stock, by way of a pro rata distribution to its shareholders such that each holder of shares of Jacobs Common Stock was entitled to receive one share of SpinCo Common
Stock for each share of Jacobs common stock held as of the record date, September 23, 2024, and (iii) finally, Amentum Parent Holdings LLC merged with and into SpinCo, with SpinCo
surviving the merger. Amentum Holdings, Inc., as the surviving entity of the Separation Transaction is now an independent public company with common stock listed on the New York Stock
Exchange under the symbol 4€eAMTMAEE (a€ceAmentumé€).In connection and in accordance with the terms of the Separation Transaction, prior to the Distribution and the Merger, Jacobs
received a cash payment from SpinCo of approximately $911A million, after adjustments based on the levels of cash, debt and working capital in the SpinCo Business, which continues to be
subject to final settlement between the parties, as set forth in the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of November 20, 2023 (as amended, the &€ceMerger Agreement").Page
24JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)Summarized Financial Information of Discontinued

OperationsA A A A The following table represents earnings from discontinued operations, net of tax (in thousands):Three Months EndedDecember 27, 2024December 29,
2023Revenues$64A $1,348,998A Direct cost of contracts(60)(1,163,190)Gross profit4A 185,808A Selling, general and administrative expense(1,348)(123,745)Operating (Loss)
Profit(1,344)62,063A Other income, neta€”A 482A (Loss) Earnings Before Taxes from Discontinued Operations(1,344)62,545A Income Tax Benefit (Expense)343A (15,332)Net (Loss)
Earnings of the Group from Discontinued Operations(1,001)47,213A Net Earnings Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests from Discontinued Operationséél"A (3,375)Net (Loss) Earnings
Attributable to Jacobs from Discontinued Operations$(1,001)$43,838A Notable components included in our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for these discontinued operations are as
follows (in thousands):For the Three Months EndedDecember 27, 2024December 29, 2023Depreciation and amortization:Property, equipment and improvements$a€”A $3,475A Intangible
assets$a€”A $14,187A Deferred income taxes$a€”A $(6,206)Additions to property and equipment$a€”A $(2,340)There were no assets and liabilities held for spin as of September 27, 2024.
Investment in Amentum StockAs a result of the Separation Transaction on September 27, 2024, Jacobs held approximately 29A million of the outstanding shares of AMTM common stock
initially recorded on a net book value basis under spin-off accounting rules.Following the Merger and in accordance with the Escrow Agreement, Jacobs transferred 11A million shares of
AMTM shares into escrow to be held and distributed between the parties to the Escrow Agreement based on terms and conditions set forth in the Merger Agreement, with final settlement
of the shares between the parties (and associated financial statement impacts, if any) expected to be completed in fiscal 2025. To the extent the Company and its shareholders become
entitled to any portion of the contingent consideration, the first 0.5% of the outstanding shares of AMTM will be released from escrow and delivered to the Company. Any further contingent
consideration to which we and our shareholders may become entitled will be distributed on a pro rata basis to shareholders as of a record date to be determined in the future. Any shares of
contingent consideration to which we and our shareholders do not become entitled to receive will be delivered to the former equity holder of Amentum.Page 25]JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIESNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)The Company's investment in AMTM shares (including shares held in escrow) is measured at
fair value through net income as it is an investment in equity securities with a readily determinable fair value of approximately $597.9A million as of DecemberA 27, 2024. Additionally, fair
value ("market") mark-to market losses of approximately $145.2A million were recorded in Miscellaneous income (expense), net during the first quarter of fiscal 2025 in association with the
total AMTM share positions held. Further, as quoted market prices are available for these securities in an active market, the fair value measurement of the shares is categorized as a Level 1
input.The Company intends to dispose of all of its final determined investment in AMTM shares within 12 months of the completion of the Separation and the Distribution, but there can be
no assurance regarding the ultimate timing of such divestiture. The Company cannot predict the trading price of shares of Amentum&€™s common stock and the market value of the
Amentum shares are subject to market volatility and other factors outside of our control. Unanticipated developments could delay, prevent or otherwise adversely affect the divestiture,
including but not limited to financial market conditions.Transition Services AgreementUpon closing of the Separation Transaction, the Company entered into a Transition Services
Agreement (the "TSA") with Amentum pursuant to which the Company, on an interim basis, will provide various services to Amentum including corporate, information technology, and
project services. The initial term of the TSA began immediately following the closing of the transaction on September 27, 2024 and expires in September 2025. Pursuant to the terms of the
TSA, the Company will receive payments for the interim services. Since inception of the TSA agreement, the Company has recognized costs recorded in SG&A expense incurred to perform
the TSA, offset by $11.4 million in TSA related income for such services that is reported in miscellaneous income (expense) for the three month period ended DecemberA 27, 2024.Sale of
Energy, Chemicals and Resources ("ECR") BusinessOn April 26, 2019, Jacobs completed the sale of its Energy, Chemicals and Resources ("ECR") business to Worley Limited, a company
incorporated in Australia ("Worley"), for a purchase price of $3.4 billion consisting of (i) $2.8 billion in cash plus (ii) $58.2 million ordinary shares of Worley, subject to adjustments for
changes in working capital and certain other items. For the three months ended DecemberA 27, 2024 and DecemberA 29, 2023, $0 and $(0.6) million were reported in Net Earnings
Attributable to Jacobs from Discontinued Operations on the Consolidated Statement of Earnings related to ECR.Page 26JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNOTES TO
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)16.A A A A PA Consulting Redeemable Noncontrolling Interestsin connection with the Company's strategic investment in PA
Consulting, the Company recorded redeemable noncontrolling interests, including subsequent purchase accounting adjustments, representing the noncontrolling interest holders' equity
interests in the form of preferred and common shares of PA Consulting, with substantially all of the value associated with these interests allocable to the preferred shares. During the first
quarter of 2025 and 2024, PA Consulting repurchased certain shares of the redeemable noncontrolling interest holders for cash amounts of $3.7A million and $24.4A million, respectively.
The difference between the cash purchase prices and the recorded book values of these repurchased interests was recorded in the Companya€™s consolidated retained earnings. The
Company held approximately 70% of the outstanding ownership of PA Consulting as of DecemberA 27, 2024 and SeptemberA 27, 2024.During the first quarter of 2025, there was a $0.04
increase in earnings per share resulting from adjustments to the redeemable noncontrolling interests to reflect the reduction of the excess in the redemption values over fair values of the B
common shares component of the redeemable equity. During the first quarter of 2024, there was a $0.01 increase in earnings per share resulting from redemption value adjustments
associated with redeemable noncontrolling interests preference share repurchase and reissuance activities that were recorded. The changes above had no impact on the Companya€™s
overall results of operations, financial position or cash flows. See Note 6- Earnings Per Share and Certain Related Information for more information.Changes in the redeemable
noncontrolling interests during the three months ended DecemberA 27, 2024 are as follows (in thousands):Balance at September 27, 2024$820,182A Accrued Preferred Dividend to
Preference Sharehqlder318,867A Attribution of Preferred Dividend to Common Shareholders(18,867)Net earnings attributable to redeemable noncontrolling interests to Common
Shareholders7,047A Redeemable Noncontrolling interests redemption value adjustment(54)Repurchase of redeemable noncontrolling interests(4,712)Cumulative translation adjustment and
other(27,870)Balance at December 27, 2024$794,593A In addition, certain employees and non-employees of PA Consulting are eligible to receive equity-based incentive grants in the future
under the terms of the applicable agreements. During the first three months of fiscal 2025 and 2024, the Company recorded $5.9 million and $1.6A million, respectively, in expenses
associated with these agreements which is reflected in selling, general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of earnings.The Company, through its investment in PA
Consulting, held $0.8 million and $2.1A million at DecemberA 27, 2024 and SeptemberA 27, 2024, respectively, in cash that is restricted from general use and is included in Prepaid
expenses and other in the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheets.Page 27JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -
(CONTINUED)17.A A A A Restructuring and Other ChargesDuring fiscal 2023, the Company implemented restructuring and separation initiatives relating to the Separation Transaction
which are expected to continue through fiscal 2025. Restructuring initiatives were also implemented during fiscal 2023 relating to our investment in PA Consulting, which is substantially
completed. While restructuring activities for each of these programs are comprised mainly of employee termination costs, the separation activities and costs are primarily related to the
engagement of outside services, dedicated internal personnel and other related costs dedicated to the Separation Transaction.Collectively, the above-mentioned restructuring activities are
referred to as a€ceRestructuring and other charges.a€ The following table summarizes the impacts of the Restructuring and other charges by operating segment for the three months ended
DecemberA 27, 2024 and DecemberA 29, 2023 (in thousands): Three Months EndedDecember 27, 2024December 29, 2023Infrastructure & Advanced Facilities$14,976A $37,179A PA
Consulting(236)1,175A Total$14,740A $38,354A Amounts included in:Operating profit (mainly SG&A) (1)$14,740A $38,354A $14,740A $38,354A (1)The three months ended DecemberA 27,
2024 and DecemberA 29, 2023 included approximately $15.0 million and $37.1 million, respectively, in restructuring and other charges mainly relating to the Separation Transaction
(primarily professional services and employee separation costs). The activity in the Companya€™s accruals for Restructuring and other charges for the three months ended DecemberA 27,
2024 is as follows (in thousands):Balance at SeptemberA 27, 2024$44,935A Net Charges (Credits) 14,740A Payments and other(42,742)Balance at December 27, 2024$16,933A The
following table summarizes the Restructuring and other charges by major type of costs for the three months ended DecemberA 27, 2024 and DecemberA 29, 2023 (in thousands): Three
Months EndedDecember 27, 2024December 29, 2023Lease Abandonments and Impairments$a€”A $49A Terminations385A 11,142A Outside Services (1)11,412A 23,793A Other

(2)2,943A 3,370A Total$14,740A $38,354A (1) Amounts in the three months ended DecemberA 27, 2024 and DecemberA 29, 2023 are comprised of professional services relating to the
Separation Transaction. (2) Amounts in the three months ended DecemberA 27, 2024 and DecemberA 29, 2023 are comprised of charges relating to the Separation Transaction.Page
28JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)CumuIatlve amounts incurred to date for restructuring and other
programs that were active as of DecemberA 27, 2024 by each major type of cost are as follows (in thousands):Terminations$79, 673A Outside Services145,488A Other (1)
(1,157)Total$224,004A (1)Cumulative amount includes a $35.2A million realized gain on interest rate swaps settled during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2024.18.A A A A Commitments and
Contingencies and Derivative Financial InstrumentsDerivative Financial InstrumentsThe Company is exposed to interest rate risk under its variable rate borrowings and additionally, due to
the nature of the Company's international operations, we are at times exposed to foreign currency risk. As such, we sometimes enter into foreign exchange hedging contracts and interest
rate hedging contracts in order to limit our exposure to fluctuating foreign currencies and interest rates. During fiscal 2022, the Company entered into two treasury lock agreements with a
total notional value of $500A million to manage its interest rate exposure to the anticipated issuance of fixed rate debt before December 2023. On FebruaryA 13, 2023, the Company settled
these treasury lock agreements and issued the 5.90% Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of $500A million, which resulted in the receipt of cash and a pre-tax gain of $37.4A million,
which is being amortized to interest expense and recognized over the term of the 5.90% Bonds. See Note 12- Borrowings for further discussion relating to the terms of the 5.90% Bonds. The
unrealized net gain on these instruments was $23.0 million and $23.6 million, net of tax, and is included in accumulated other comprehensive income as of DecemberA 27, 2024 and
SeptemberA 27, 2024, respectively. In fiscal 2020 we entered into interest rate swap agreements to manage the interest rate exposure on our variable rate loans. By entering into the swap
agreements, the Company converted the LIBOR and SONIA rate based liabilities into fixed rate liabilities, for periods ranging from five to ten years. As of DecemberA 27, 2024 and
SeptemberA 27, 2024, the Company has one outstanding instrument with a notional value of $200.0A million.The fair value of the interest rate swap at DecemberA 27, 2024 and
SeptemberA 27, 2024 was $29.8A million and $23.0A million, respectively, included within miscellaneous other assets on the consolidated balance sheet. The unrealized net gain on the
interest rate swap as of DecemberA 27, 2024 and SeptemberA 27, 2024 was $22.4A million and $17.4A million, respectively, net of tax, and was included in accumulated other
comprehensive income. During fiscal 2023, the aggregate liability amounts denominated in U.S. dollars transitioned from underlying LIBOR benchmarked rates to the SOFR and the terms
of the swaps were amended accordingly. The swaps were designated as cash-flow hedges in accordance with ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging. Additionally, the Company held foreign
exchange forward contracts in currencies that support our operations, including British Pound, Australian Dollar and other currencies, with notional values of $693.4 million at

DecemberA 27, 2024 and $827.3A million at SeptemberA 27, 2024. The length of these contracts currently ranges from one to twelve months. The fair value of the foreign exchange
contracts at DecemberA 27, 2024 was $(7.8) million, of which $(8.2) million is included within current liabilities and $0.4 million is included within current assets on the consolidated
balance sheet as of DecemberA 27, 2024. The fair value of the contracts as of SeptemberA 27, 2024 was $15.3A million, of which $15.8 million is included within current assets and $(0.5)
million is included within current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet as of SeptemberA 27, 2024. Associated income statement impacts are included in miscellaneous income
(expense) in the consolidated statements of earnings for both periods. The fair value measurements of these derivatives are being made using Level 2 inputs under ASC 820, Fair Value
Measurement, as the measurements are based on observable inputs other than quoted prices in active markets. We are exposed to risk from credit-related losses resulting from
nonperformance by counterparties to our financial instruments. We perform credit evaluations of our counterparties under forward exchange and interest rate contracts and expect all
counterparties to meet their obligations. We have not experienced credit losses from our counterparties.Page 29JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)Contractual Guarantees, Legal Proceedings, Claims, Investigations and Insuranceln the normal course of business, we make contractual
commitments (some of which are supported by separate guarantees) and on occasion we are a party in a litigation or arbitration proceeding. The litigation or arbitration in which we are
involved includes personal injury claims, professional liability claims and breach of contract claims. Where we provide a separate guarantee, it is strictly in support of the underlying
contractual commitment. Guarantees take various forms including surety bonds required by law, or standby letters of credit ("LOC" and also referred to as 4&€cebank guaranteesa€) or
corporate guarantees given to induce a party to enter into a contract with a subsidiary. Standby LOCs are also used as security for advance payments or in various other transactions. The
guarantees have various expiration dates ranging from an arbitrary date to completion of our work (e.g., engineering only) to completion of the overall project. We record in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets amounts representing our estimated liability relating to such guarantees, litigation and insurance claims. Guarantees are accounted for in accordance with ASC
460-10, Guarantees, at fair value at the inception of the guarantee.At DecemberA 27, 2024 and SeptemberA 27, 2024, the Company had issued and outstanding approximately $283.3
million and $306.2 million, respectively, in LOCs and $2.6A billion and $2.3A billion, respectively, in surety bonds.We maintain insurance coverage for most insurable aspects of our business
and operations. Our insurance programs have varying coverage limits depending upon the type of insurance and include certain conditions and exclusions which insurance companies may
raise in response to any claim that is asserted by or against the Company. We have also elected to retain a portion of losses and liabilities that occur through using various deductibles,
limits, and retentions under our insurance programs. As a result, we may be subject to a future liability for which we are only partially insured or completely uninsured. We intend to
mitigate any such future liability by continuing to exercise prudent business judgment in negotiating the terms and conditions of the contracts which the Company enters with its clients.
Our insurers are also subject to business risk and, as a result, one or more of them may be unable to fulfill their insurance obligations due to insolvency or otherwise.Additionally, as a
contractor providing services to the U.S. federal government, we are subject to many types of audits, investigations, and claims by, or on behalf of, the government including with respect to
contract performance, pricing, cost allocations, procurement practices, labor practices, and socioeconomic obligations. Furthermore, our income, franchise, and similar tax returns and



filings are also subject to audit and investigation by the Internal Revenue Service, most states within the United States, as well as by various government agencies representing jurisdictions
outside the United States.Our Consolidated Balance Sheets include amounts representing our probable estimated liability relating to such claims, guarantees, litigation, audits, and
investigations. We perform an analysis to determine the level of reserves to establish for insurance-related claims that are known and have been asserted against us, as well as for
insurance-related claims that are believed to have been incurred based on actuarial analysis but have not yet been reported to our claims administrators as of the respective balance sheet
dates. We include any adjustments to such insurance reserves in our consolidated results of operations. Insurance recoveries are recorded as assets if recovery is probable and estimated
liabilities are not reduced by expected insurance recoveries.The Company believes, after consultation with counsel, that such guarantees, litigation, U.S. government contract-related audits,
investigations and claims, and income tax audits and investigations should not have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial statements, beyond amounts currently
accrued.19.A A A A Segment InformationThe Company's two operating segments are comprised of Infrastructure and Advanced Facilities ("I&AF") and its majority investment in PA
Consulting. Subsequent to the Separation Transaction, the SpinCo businesses are now presented as discontinued operations for all periods and therefore not reflected in the segment
disclosures below. For further information, refer to Note 15- Discontinued Operations. The Companya€™s Chief Executive Officer is the Chief Operating Decision Maker (4€ceCODM&€) and
evaluates the performance of each of these segments and make appropriate resource allocations among each of the segments. For purposes of the Companya€™s goodwill impairment
testing, it has been determined that the Companya€™s operating segments are also its reporting units based on managementa€™ s conclusion that the components comprising each of its
operating segments share similar economic characteristics and meet the aggregation criteria for reporting units in accordance with ASC 350, Intangibles-Goodwill and Other.Page
30JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)Financial information for each segment is reviewed by the CODM
to assess performance and make decisions regarding the allocation of resources. The CODM evaluates the operating performance of our operating segments using segment operating profit.
The Company incurs certain SG&A that relate to its business as a whole which are not allocated to the segments.The following tables present total revenues and segment operating profit
from continuing operations for each reportable segment (in thousands) and includes a reconciliation of segment operating profit to total U.S. GAAP operating profit by including certain
corporate-level expenses, Restructuring and other charges (as defined in Note 17- Restructuring and Other Charges) and transaction and integration costs (in thousands). For the Three
Months EndedDecember 27, 2024December 29, 2023Revenues from External Customers:Infrastructure & Advanced Facilities$2,626,208A $2,504,226A PA

Profit:Infrastructure & Advanced Facilities (1)$157,776A $128,892A PA Consulting66,738A 54,455A Total Segment Operating Profit224,514A 183,347A Restructuring, Transaction and
Other Charges (2)(16,096)(41,347)Total U.S. GAAP Operating Profit208,418A 142,000A Total Other (Expense) Income, net (3)(155,271)(38,795)Earnings from Continuing Operations Before
Taxes$53,147A $103,205A (1)Segment operating profit for Infrastructure & Advanced Facilities includes consolidated intangibles amortization of $38.7 million and $36.9 million and other
corporate transaction related costs for the three months ended DecemberA 27, 2024 and DecemberA 29, 2023, respectively. Excluding these amounts, operating profit for the segment was
$210.3 million and $167.4 million, respectively.(2)The three months ended DecemberA 27, 2024 and DecemberA 29, 2023 included $15.0 million and $37.1A million, respectively, of
restructuring and other charges mainly relating to the Separation Transaction (primarily professional services and employee separation costs). (3)The three months ended DecemberA 27,
2024 included $145.2 million in mark-to-market losses associated with our investment in Amentum stock in connection with the Separation Transaction.See also the further description of
results of operations for our operating segments in Item 2- Managementa€™s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.Page 31Item

Financial Condition and Results of Operations (4€ceMD&AA4€) is to provide a narrative analysis explaining the reasons for material changes in the Companya€™s (i)A financial condition from
the most recent fiscal year-end to DecemberA 27, 2024 and (ii)A results of operations during the current fiscal period(s) as compared to the corresponding period(s) of the preceding fiscal
year. In order to better understand such changes, readers of this MD&A should also read:a€¢The discussion of the critical and significant accounting policies used by the Company in
preparing its consolidated financial statements. The most current discussion of our critical accounting policies appears in Item 7, Managementa€™ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations of our 2024 Form 10-K, and the most current discussion of our significant accounting policies appears in Note 2- Significant Accounting Polices in Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements of our 2024 Form 10-K;a€¢The Companya€™s fiscal 2024 audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in our 2024 Form 10-K;
anda€¢ltemA 7, Managementa€™ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations included in our 2024 Form 10-K.In addition to historical information, this MD&A
and other parts of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of the United States Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
Forward-looking statements are statements that do not directly relate to any historical or current fact. When used herein, words such as a€meexpects,a€ a€ceanticipates,a€ a€mbelieves,a€
a€mseeks,a€ a€ceestimates,a€ a€ceplans,a€ a€mintends,a€ a€mefuture,a€ a€cewill,4€ 4€ewould,a€ d€cecould,a€ d€ecan,a€ &€cemay,a€ "target," "goal" and similar words are intended to
identify forward-looking statements. Examples of forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, statements we make concerning the financial condition and results of operations
and our expectations as to our future growth, prospects, financial outlook and business strategy and any assumptions underlying any of the foregoing. Although such statements are based
on managementa€™s current estimates and expectations, and/or currently available competitive, financial, and economic data, forward-looking statements are inherently uncertain, and you
should not place undue reliance on such statements as actual results may differ materially. We caution the reader that there are a variety of risks, uncertainties and other factors that could
cause actual results to differ materially from what is contained, projected or implied by our forward-looking statements. Such factors include but are not limited to: 4€¢general economic
conditions, including inflation and the actions taken by monetary authorities in response to inflation, changes in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates, changes in capital
markets and stock market volatility, instability in the banking industry, labor shortages, or the impact of a possible recession or economic downturn or changes to monetary or fiscal policies
or priorities in the U.S. and the countries where we do business on our results, prospects and opportunities; &€¢competition from existing and future competitors in our target markets, as
well as the possible reduction in demand for certain of our product solutions and services, including delays in the timing of the award of projects or reduction in funding, or the
abandonment of ongoing or anticipated projects due to the financial condition of our clients and suppliers or due to governmental budget constraints or changes to governmental budgetary
priorities, or the inability of our clients to meet their payment obligations in a timely manner or at all;a€¢our ability to fully execute on our corporate strategy, including (i) uncertainties as
to the impact of the completed Separation Transaction (as defined below) on our business, such as a possible impact on our credit profile or our ability to operate as a separate public-
company without the benefit of the resources and capabilities divested as part of the SpinCo Business (as defined below), the possibility that the Separation Transaction will not result in the
intended benefits to us or our shareholders, that we will not realize the value expected to be derived from the disposition of our retained stake in Amentum (as defined below), or that we
will incur unexpected costs, charges or expenses related to the provision of transition services in connection with the Separation Transaction, (ii) the impact of acquisitions, strategic
alliances, divestitures, and other strategic events resulting from evolving business strategies, including on our ability to maintain our culture and retain key personnel, customers or
suppliers, or our ability to achieve the cost-savings and synergies contemplated by our recent acquisitions within the expected time frames or to achieve them fully and to successfully
integrate acquired businesses while retaining key personnel, and (iii) our ability to invest in the tools needed to implement our strategy;Page 32&€¢financial market risks that may affect us,
including by affecting our access to capital, the cost of such capital and/or our funding obligations under defined benefit pension and post-retirement plans; a€¢legislative changes,
including potential changes to the amounts provided for, under the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act, as well as other legislation and executive orders related to governmental
spending, and changes in U.S. or foreign tax laws, statutes, rules, regulations or ordinances, including the impact of, and changes to, tariffs or trade policies that may adversely impact our
future financial position or results of operations; 4€¢increased geopolitical uncertainty and risks, including policy risks and potential civil unrest, relating to the outcome of elections across
our key markets and elevated geopolitical tension and conflicts, including the Russia-Ukraine and Israel-Hamas conflicts and the escalating tensions in the Middle East, among others;
anda€¢the impact of any pandemic, and any resulting economic downturn on our results, prospects and opportunities, measures or restrictions imposed by governments and health officials
in response to the pandemic, as well as the inability of governments in certain of the countries in which we operate to effectively mitigate the financial or other impacts of any future
pandemics or infectious disease outbreaks on their economies and workforces and our operations therein.The foregoing factors and potential future developments are inherently uncertain,
unpredictable and, in many cases, beyond our control. For a description of these and additional factors that may occur that could cause actual results to differ from our forward-looking
statements, see the Companya€™s filings with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, including in particular the discussions contained in our fiscal 2024 Form 10-K under Item 1 -
Business, Item 1A - Risk Factors, Item 3 - Legal Proceedings, and Item 7 - Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations; and in this Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q under Part I, Item 2 - Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, and Part II, Item 1 - Legal Proceedings and Item 1A -
Risk Factors. We undertake no obligation to release publicly any revisions or updates to any forward-looking statements. We encourage you to read carefully the risk factors, as well as the
financial and business disclosures contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and in other documents we file from time to time with the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission (the "SEC").Business OverviewAt Jacobs, our foundation guides us to create a more connected and sustainable world.We are challenging today to reinvent tomorrow - delivering
outcomes and solutions for the worlda€™s most complex challenges. With a team of approximately 45,000, we provide end-to-end services in advanced manufacturing, cities & places,
energy, environmental, life sciences, transportation and water markets. From advisory and consulting, feasibility, planning, design, program and lifecycle management, we are creating a
more connected and sustainable world.Whether tackling water scarcity, aging infrastructure, access to life-saving therapies or sophisticated cyberattacks, we take on some of the

worlda€™ s biggest challenges, bringing a different way of thinking to everything we do. We channel our creativity, agility and our domain expertise to create value for our clients and
society.Over the last seven years, Jacobs has been on a transformation journey, starting with a re-emphasis on business excellence, our culture and brand, and evolving our portfolio to
become a science-based consulting and advisory solutions provider focused on delivering solutions for some of the worlda€™s most complex sustainability, critical infrastructure and
advanced manufacturing challenges. This transformation included acquiring a 65% stake in PA Consulting Group Limited ("PA Consulting") in fiscal 2021. Acquisitions of BlackLynx and
StreetLight further positioned us as a leader in high-value critical infrastructure and technology-enabled solutions.In March of 2022, Jacobs launched Boldly Moving Forward, a three-year
strategy that builds on our success over the preceding three years to take advantage of a new lens crafted from the incredible pace of change in the world and in our markets. We are now
focused on broadening our leadership in high growth sectors aligned with long-term secular trends, such as infrastructure renewal and investment, and the global transition to more
sustainable ways of living. Our strategy is driven by our purpose to create a more connected, sustainable world, applying our values and delivering on our brand promise of 4&€ceChallenging
today. Reinventing tomorrow.a€ Extensive evaluation of global trends, capabilities and markets identified three growth accelerators: Climate Response, Data Solutions, and Consulting &
Advisory, which cut across our entire organization and key sectors creating connections among global market trends, our Page 33client solutions and our company purpose. Our three
growth accelerators are delivering significant value for our clients, positioning Jacobs for high-margin growth while advancing sustainability and social value in our communities.Today, our
clients face a rapidly changing world - navigating multifaceted challenges such as the increasing pace of technological change, budget and supply chain limitations, global climate change
events and complex geopolitical conditions. At Jacobs, we strive to help them meet these challenges.Climate ResponseAs a purpose-led company, we know we have a pivotal role to play
across the entire Climate Response value chain 4€“ focusing on end-to-end solutions in energy transition, decarbonization, adaptation and resilience, and regenerative and nature-based
climate solutions.Data SolutionsWe are harnessing our data and digital capabilities, products and tools to help our clients operate more efficiently in a safe environment and capitalize on
their data more than ever before. We invest in big data, technology-enhanced and artificial intelligence solutions to help clients find better, safer and more agile ways of working. We
provide solutions in data analytics and insights, digital architecture, advisory and transformation, software development and cybersecurity and operational technology. Consulting and
AdvisoryTogether with our visionary partner, PA Consulting, we're expanding our position in high-end advisory services and deploying our collective strengths to create significant
opportunities for our clients to adapt, innovate and transform.Operating SegmentsThe services we provide to our markets fall into the following two operating segments: 1) Infrastructure &
Advanced Facilities and 2) our majority investment in PA Consulting. For additional information regarding our segments, including information about our financial results by segment and
financial results by geography, see Note 19- Segment Information and Note 5- Revenue Accounting for Contracts of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.Infrastructure & Advanced
Facilities (I&AF)Jacobs' Infrastructure & Advanced Facilities line of business provides end-to-end solutions for our clientsd€™ most complex challenges related to climate change, energy
transition, connected mobility, buildings and infrastructure, integrated water management and biopharmaceutical manufacturing. In doing so, we combine deep experience in the following
end markets - Critical Infrastructure, Water & Environmental and Life Sciences & Advanced Manufacturing. Our core skills revolve around consulting, planning, architecture, design,
engineering, infrastructure delivery services including project, program and construction management and long-term operation of facilities. Solutions are delivered as standalone
professional service engagements, comprehensive program management partnerships, and selective progressive design-build and construction management at-risk delivery services.
Increasingly, we use data science and technology-enabled expertise to deliver positive and enduring outcomes for our clients and communities.Our clients include national, state and local
governments in the U.S., Europe, U.K., Middle East, and Asia Pacific, and multinational and local private sector clients throughout the world.Page 34PA ConsultingJacobs invested in a 65%
stake in PA Consulting, the global innovation and transformation consultancy firm. PA Consulting accelerates new growth ideas from concept, through design and development and to
commercial success, and revitalizes organizations, building leadership, culture, systems and processes to make innovation a reality. PA Consulting's global team of approximately 4,000,
which includes strategists, innovators, designers, consultants, digital experts, scientists, engineers and technologists, work across seven sectors: consumer and manufacturing, defense and
security, energy and utilities, financial services, government, health and life sciences, and transport to make a positive impact alongside the clients it supports, bringing ingenuity to life. PA
Consulting has a diverse mix of private and public sector clients. Private sector clients include global household names like Unilever, Microsoft, and Pret A Manger, and start-ups like
PulPac, which converts plant fibers into sustainable packaging to reduce single-use plastic. PA's work includes creating more sustainable airports with Amsterdam Airport Schiphol and
accelerating the energy transition with Invenergy and energyRe, to new digital platforms for the American College of Emergency Physicians, pioneering medtech with Hubly Surgical, and
resilient banking with Bankomat. Public sector clients include the U.K.'s Ministry of Defence, National Highways, The Norwegian Labour and Welfare Administration, and The Danish Tax
Agency.The Company is deploying the collective strengths of Jacobs and PA Consulting to create significant opportunities for our clients. Alongside Copenhagen Metro 4€“ one of the most
advanced public transport systems in Europe a€“ wea€ ™re providing strategic management and technical services to support its operations and maintenance. Wea€ ™ re also supporting the
Frederick Douglass Tunnel program, one of the largest national transportation infrastructure investments in the U.S. Drawing on our extensive experience with Louisianad€™ s critical state
infrastructure, wea€ ™ re developing a comprehensive offshore wind roadmap for the Louisiana Department of Energy and Natural Resources, U.S. that aims to promote the statea€™s
energy independence, diversification and security while developing its workforce and local economy. Supporting the U.K.a€™s decarbonization and energy security future, we are delivering
technical project management support to the U.K. Department for Energy Security & Net Zeroa€™s Carbon Capture, Usage and Storage program, an essential element of the U.K.4€™s



commitment to deliver a net-zero economy by 2050.Separation of Critical Mission Solutions (CMS) and Cyber & Intelligence (C&I)On September 27, 2024, Jacobs Solutions Inc. ("Jacobs")
completed the previously announced Reverse Morris Trust transaction pursuant to which (i) Jacobs first transferred its Critical Mission Solutions business (4€ceCMS&€) and portions of the
Divergent Solutions (4€eDVSa€) business (referred to herein as the Cyber & Intelligence business (4€0eC&Ia€) and together with CMS referred to as the 4€eSpinCo Businessa€), to
Amazon Holdco Inc., a Delaware corporation, which has been renamed Amentum Holdings, Inc. (4€ceSpinCoa€) (the &€ceSeparationa€), (ii) Jacobs then effectuated a spin-off of SpinCo by
distributing 124,084,108 shares of SpinCo common stock, par value $0.01 per share (the 4€eSpinCo Common Stocka€), by way of a pro rata distribution to its shareholders such that each
holder of shares of Jacobs common stock, par value $1.00 per share (the 4€ceJacobs Common Stocka€) was entitled to receive one share of SpinCo Common Stock for each share of Jacobs
Common Stock held as of the record date, September 23, 2024 (the &€ceDistributiona€), and (iii) finally, Amentum Parent Holdings LLC merged with and into SpinCo, with SpinCo surviving
the merger (the &€ceMergera€ and together with the Separation and the Distribution, the a€ceSeparation Transactiona€). The surviving entity of the Separation Transaction is now an
independent public company with common stock listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol 4€ceAMTMA€ (a&€ceAmentuma€). As a result of the Separation Transaction,
substantially all SpinCo Business-related assets and liabilities have been separated and distributed (the "Disposal Group"). The Company determined that the Disposal Group should be
reported as discontinued operations in accordance with ASC 205-20, Discontinued Operations because their disposal represents a strategic shift that had a major effect on operations and
financial results. As such, the financial results of the SpinCo Business are reflected in our Consolidated Statements of Earnings as discontinued operations for all periods presented. No
amounts remained held for spin at the end of fiscal 2024. See Note 15- Discontinued Operations.Prior to the Separation Transaction, Jacobsa€™ Critical Mission Solutions line of business
provided a full spectrum of solutions for clients to address evolving challenges like digital transformation and modernization, national security and defense, space exploration, digital asset
management, the clean energy transition, and nuclear decommissioning and cleanup. Clients included government agencies, as well as private sector clients mainly in the aerospace,
automotive, motorsports, energy and telecom sectors. Prior to the Separation Transaction, the DVS business unit served as the core foundation for developing and delivering innovative,
next-generation cloud, cyber, data and digital technologies. DVS clients included government agencies and commercial clients in the U.S. and international markets. Certain portions of the
DVS business were retained and are now part of I&AF, which include advising digital strategy and transformation and Page 35developing digital solutions that facilitate capital, operational
and cybersecurity decisions for our clients across our segments and their end markets.Results of Operations for the three months ended Decem})erA 27, 2024 and DecemberA 29, 2023(in
thousands, except per share information)For the Three Months EndedDecember 27, 2024December 29, 2023Revenues$2,932,956A $2,810,227A Direct cost of contracts(2,211,689)
(2,145,497)Gross profit721,267A 664,730A Selling, general and administrative expenses(512,849)(522,730)Operating Profit 208,418A 142,000A Other Income (Expense):Interest
income9,656A 7,519A Interest expense(34,820)(43,350)Miscellaneous expense(130,107)(2,964)Total other expense, net(155,271)(38,795)Earnings from Continuing Operations Before
Taxes53,147A 103,205A Income Tax (Expense) Benefit from Continuing Operations(57,149)31,610A Net (Loss) Earnings of the Group from Continuing Operations(4,002)134,81SA Net
(Loss) Earnings of the Group from Discontinued Operations, net of tax(1,001)46,639A Net (Loss) Earnings of the Group(5,003)181,454A Net Earnings Attributable to Noncontrolling
Interests from Continuing Operations(6,080)(3,851)Net Earnings Attributable to Redeemable Noncontrolling interests(7,047)(2,618)Net (Loss) Earnings Attributable to Jacobs from
Continuing Operations(17,129)128,346A Net Earnings Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests from Discontinued Operationsa€ A (3,375)Net (Loss) Earnings Attributable to Jacobs from
Discontinued Operations(1,001)43,264A Net (Loss) Earnings Attributable to Jacobs$(18,130)$171,610A Net Earnings Per Share:Basic Net (Loss) Earnings from Continuing Operations Per
Share$(0.10)$1.03A Basic Net (Loss) Earnings from Discontinued Operations Per Share$(0.01)$0.34A Basic (Loss) Earnings Per Share$(0.11)$1.37A Diluted Net (Loss) Earnings from
Continuing Operations Per Share$(0.10)$1.03A Diluted Net (Loss) Earnings from Discontinued Operations Per Share$(0.01)$0.34A Diluted (Loss) Earnings Per Share$(0.11)$1.37A Page
360verview a€“ Three Months Ended DecemberA 27, 2024Net loss attributable to the Company from continuing operations for the first fiscal quarter of 2025 was $(17.1) million (or $(0.10)
per diluted share), a decrease of $145.5 million, from net earnings of $128.3 million (or $1.03 per diluted share) for the corresponding period last year. Included in the Companya€™s
operating results from continuing operations for the first fiscal quarter of 2025 were $145.2 million in pre-tax fair value losses recorded in miscellaneous (expense) income, net, associated
with our investment held in Amentum stock after finalization of the Separation Transaction as well as pre-tax Restructuring and other charges and transaction costs of $16.1 million
associated primarily to expenses incurred relating to the Separation Transaction (primarily professional services and employee separation costs), compared to 2024 amounts of $41.4
million, which are discussed in Note 17- Restructuring and Other Charges.Net loss attributable to the Company from discontinued operations for the first fiscal quarter of 2025 was $(1.0)
million (or $(0.01) per diluted share), a decrease of $44.3 million, from net earnings of $43.3 million (or $0.34 per diluted share) for the corresponding period last year. The change year-
over-year was primarily driven by prior year operating results of the SpinCo Business which were divested and therefore are no longer in Company's financial results in fiscal year 2025. See
note 15- Discontinued Operations.Consolidated Results of OperationsRevenues for the first fiscal quarter of 2025 were $2.93 billion, an increase of $122.7 million, or 4.4%, from $2.81
billion for the corresponding period last year. Revenue increases for the quarterly year over year period were due mainly to the Company's I&AF business, as well as slightly higher
revenues year over year in our PA Consulting business. The I&AF business benefited primarily from stronger performance in its Americas, Energy & Power and Asia Pacific and Middle East
business operations. Our revenues were favorably impacted by foreign currency translation of $16.4 million for the first fiscal quarter of 2025 across our international businesses, as
compared to a favorable impact of $37.6 million for the first fiscal quarter of 2024, respectively.Gross profit for the first fiscal quarter of 2025 was $721.3 million, an increase of $56.5
million, or 8.5%, from $664.7 million from the corresponding period last year, with gross profit margins of 24.6% and 23.7% for the respective periods. The Company's increase in gross
profit was mainly attributable to higher revenues as mentioned above, with favorable margin impacts from year over year mix as well as personnel cost impacts.See Segment Financial
Information discussion for further information on the Companya€™s results of operations at the operating segment.Selling, general & administrative ("SG&A") expenses for the first fiscal
quarter of 2025 were $512.8 million compared to $522.7 million for the corresponding period last year, representing a decrease of $9.9 million or 1.9%. Lower SG&A expenses as compared
to the corresponding period last year was due primarily to decrease of $22.2 million in Restructuring and other charges costs associated with the Separation Transaction. This decrease in
SG&A expenses was partly offset by increases in expenses associated with the Transition Services Agreement (the "TSA") with Amentum, incentives and other department spend. Lastly,
SG&A expenses were impacted by unfavorable foreign exchange impacts of $3.2 million for the first fiscal quarter of 2025 as compared to unfavorable impacts of $3.6 million for the first
fiscal quarter of 2024.Net interest expense for the first fiscal quarter of 2025 was $25.2 million, a decrease of $10.7 million from $35.8 million or 29.8%, for the corresponding period last
year. The decrease in net interest expense for the first fiscal quarter of 2025 was due primarily to the Company's higher levels of cash and lower overall levels of outstanding debt compared
to the last fiscal year compared to the comparative periods.Miscellaneous (expense) net for the first fiscal quarter of 2025 was $(130.1) million in comparison to $(3.0) million for the
corresponding period last year. The unfavorable comparisons to the corresponding period last year were due primarily to a $145.2 million loss associated with mark-to-market losses
associated with our investment in Amentum stock in connection with the Separation Transaction, offset in part by $11.4 million in TSA-related income associated with the Separation
Transaction as discussed in Note 15- Discontinued Operations.Page 37The Companya€™s effective tax rates from continuing operations for the three months ended DecemberA 27, 2024
and DecemberA 29, 2023 were 107.5% and (30.6)%, respectively. The most significant items contributing to the difference between the statutory U.S. federal corporate tax rate of 21.0%
and the Company's effective tax rate for the three-month period ended DecemberA 27, 2024 was due to $37.0 million in unfavorable tax impacts associated with the non-deductibility of
losses from our investment in Amentum stock, as well as U.S. state income tax expense of $5.4 million and U.S. tax on foreign earnings of $4.9 million. The U.S state income tax and U.S. tax
on foreign earnings are expected to have a continuing impact on the Company's effective tax rate for the remainder of the fiscal year.The most significant item contributing to the difference
between the statutory U.S. federal corporate tax rate of 21.0% and the Company's effective tax rate for the three-month period ended DecemberA 29, 2023 was related to the election to
treat an Australian subsidiary as a corporation versus a partnership for U.S. tax purposes, which resulted in the derecognition of a deferred tax liability and yielded a discrete income tax
benefit of $61.6 million as the Company asserted that a component of the investment will be indefinitely reinvested.In December 2021, the Organization for Economic Cooperation and
Development ("OECD") released the Pillar Two Model Rules (also referred to as the global minimum tax or Global Anti-Base Erosion "GloBE" rules), which were designed to ensure large
multinational enterprises pay a minimum 15 percent level of tax on the income arising in each jurisdiction in which they operate. Several jurisdictions in which we operate have enacted
these rules, which are effective for the first quarter of the fiscal year ending September 26, 2025. The Company is continually monitoring developments and evaluating the potential
impacts. At this time, implementation of these rules has not generated a material impact on consolidated income taxes.The amount of income taxes the Company pays is subject to ongoing
audits by tax jurisdictions around the world. In the normal course of business, the Company is subject to examination by tax authorities throughout the world, including such major
jurisdictions as Australia, Canada, India, the Netherlands, the United Kingdom and the United States. Our estimate of the potential outcome of any uncertain tax issue is subject to our
assessment of the relevant risks, facts, and circumstances existing at the time. The Company believes that it has adequately provided for reasonably foreseeable outcomes related to these
matters. However, future results may include favorable or unfavorable adjustments to our estimated tax liabilities in the period the assessments are made or resolved, which may impact our
effective tax rate.Net earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests including redeemable noncontrolling interests for the first fiscal quarter of 2025 were $13.1 million and $6.5 million
for the corresponding period last year. The year over year increase was primarily due to changes in net earnings results in our PA Consulting investment compared to the prior year
period.Restructuring and Other ChargesDuring fiscal 2023, the Company implemented restructuring initiatives relating to the Separation Transaction. The Company incurred approximately
$0.7A million during the first fiscal quarter of 2025 and $42.0A million and $17.5 million in fiscal 2024 and fiscal 2023, respectively, in pre-tax cash charges in connection with these
initiatives. These actions, which are expected to be substantially completed before the end of fiscal 2025, are expected to result in estimated gross annualized pre-tax cash savings of
approximately $120 million to $147 million. We will likely incur additional charges under this program through fiscal 2025, which are expected to result in additional savings in future
periods.During third quarter fiscal 2023, the Company approved a plan to improve business processes and cost structures of our PA Consulting investment by reorganizing senior
management and reducing headcount. In connection with these initiatives, which are substantially completed, the Company incurred approximately $6.4 million and $14.3 million in fiscal
2024 and fiscal 2023, respectively, in pre-tax cash charges. These activities are expected to result in estimated gross annualized pre-tax cash savings of approximately $50 million to $65
million.Refer to Note 17a€“ Restructuring and Other Charges for further information regarding restructuring and integration initiatives. Page 38Segment Financial InformationThe
following tables provide selected financial information for our operating segments and includes a reconciliation of segment operating profit to total U.S. GAAP operating profit from
continuing operations by including certain corporate-level expenses, Restructuring and other charges and transaction and integration costs (in thousands).Three Months EndedDecember
27, 2024December 29, 2023Revenues from External Customers:Infrastructure & Advanced Facilities$2,626,208A $2,504,226A PA

ConsultingSQG,748A 30@,0011& Total$2,932,95€1A $2,81Q,227A Three Months EndedDecember 27, 2024December 29, 2023Segment Operating Profit:Infrastructure & Advanced Facilities
(1)$157,776A $128,892A PA Consulting66,738A 54,455A Total Segment Operating Profit224,514A 183,347A Restructuring, Transaction and Other Charges (2)(16,096)(41,347)Total U.S.
GAAP Operating Profit 208,418A 142,000A Total Other (Expense) Income, net (3)(155,271)(38,795)Earnings Before Taxes from Continuing Operations$53,147A $103,205A (1)Segment
operating profit for Infrastructure & Advanced Facilities includes consolidated intangibles amortization of $38.7 million and $36.9 million and other corporate transaction related costs for
the three months ended DecemberA 27, 2024 and DecemberA 29, 2023, respectively. Excluding these amounts, operating profit for the segment was $210.3 million and $167.4 million,
respectively.(2)The three months ended DecemberA 27, 2024 and DecemberA 29, 2023 included $15.0 million and $37.1A million, respectively, of restructuring and other charges mainly
relating to the Separation Transaction (primarily professional services and employee separation costs). (3)The three months ended DecemberA 27, 2024 included $145.2 million in mark-to-
market losses associated with our investment in Amentum stock in connection with the Separation Transaction.Page 39Infrastructure & Advanced FacilitiesThree Months Ended(in
thousands)December 27, 2024December 29, 2023Revenue$2,626,208A $2,504,226A Operating Profit$157,776A $128,892A Revenues for the I&AF segment for the first fiscal quarter of
2025 was $2.63 billion, an increase of $122.0A million, or 4.9%, from reported amount of $2.50A billion for the corresponding period last year. The increase in revenue for the first fiscal
quarter of 2025 was driven by net revenue growth across all sectors, particularly in water, life sciences, transportation and energy. Foreign currency translation had approximately

$6.9A million in favorable impacts on revenues for the three months ended first fiscal quarter of 2025, as compared to $20.9A million in favorable impacts in the corresponding prior year
period.Operating profit for the I&AF segment for the first fiscal quarter of 2025 was $157.8 million, an increase of $28.9 million, or 22.4%, from $128.9 million for the corresponding period
last year. The increase in the three month period is a result of higher year over year segment revenues mentioned above as well as a one-time negative impact from changes in employee
benefits programs in prior year period. Foreign currency translation had approximately $0.7A million in favorable impact on operating profit for the first fiscal quarter of 2025, as compared
to $5.0A million in favorable impacts in the corresponding prior year period.PA ConsultingThree Months Ended(in thousands)December 27, 2024December 29,

2023Revenue$306,748A $306,001A Operating Profit$66,738A $54,455A Revenues for the PA Consulting segment for the first fiscal quarter of 2025 were $306.7 million, an increase of $0.7
million, or 0.2% from $306.0 million in the corresponding period last year. The three month increase is primarily due to foreign currency translation which had an approximately $9.5 million
in favorable impacts on revenues for the first fiscal quarter of 2025, as compared to $16.7 million in favorable impacts in the corresponding prior year period, offset by lower performance in
public sector work compared to the prior year.Operating profit for the segment for the first fiscal quarter of 2025 was $66.7 million, an increase of $12.3 million, or 22.6% from $54.5
million in the corresponding period last year. The year over year improvement in the quarter is mainly attributable to favorable impacts from cost reduction programs implemented in the
prior year.A A A A Backlog InformationBacklog represents revenue we expect to realize for work to be completed by our consolidated subsidiaries and our proportionate share of work to be
performed by unconsolidated joint ventures. Because of variations in the nature, size, expected duration, funding commitments, and the scope of services required by our contracts, the
amount and timing of when backlog will be recognized as revenues includes significant estimates and can vary greatly between individual contracts. Consistent with industry practice,
substantially all of our contracts are subject to cancellation or termination at the option of the client, including our U.S. government work. While management uses all information available
to determine backlog, at any given time our backlog is subject to changes in the scope of services to be provided as well as increases or decreases in costs relating to the contracts included
therein. Backlog is not necessarily an indicator of future revenues.Because certain contracts (e.g., contracts relating to large engineering, procurement & construction projects as well as
national government programs) can cause large increases to backlog in the fiscal period in which we recognize the Page 40award, and because many of our contracts require us to provide
services that span over several fiscal quarters (and sometimes over fiscal years), we have presented our backlog on a year-over-year basis, rather than on a sequential, quarter-over-quarter
basis.The following table summarizes our backlog at l?epgm}agré 27,2024 and DecemberA 29, 2023 (in millions):December 27, 2024December 29, 2023Infrastructure & Advanced

driven by growth across Water, Life Sciences and Transportation and Cities & Place markets.Consolidated backlog differs from the Companya€™s remaining performance obligations as
defined by ASC 606 primarily because of contract change orders or new wins not yet processed and our national government contracts where our policy is to generally include in backlog
the contract award, whether funded or unfunded excluding certain option periods while our remaining performance obligations represent a measure of the total dollar value of work to be



performed on contracts awarded and in progress. Additionally, the Company does not include our proportionate share of backlog related to unconsolidated joint ventures in our remaining
performance obligations.Liquidity and Capital ResourcesAt DecemberA 27, 2024, our principal sources of liquidity consisted of $1.30 billion in cash and cash equivalents and $1.74 billion of
available borrowing capacity under our $2.25 billion revolving credit agreement (the "Revolving Credit Facility"). We finance much of our operations and growth through cash generated by
our operations.Cash and cash equivalents at DecemberA 27, 2024 were $1.30 billion, representing an increase of $154.9 million from $1.14 billion at SeptemberA 27, 2024, the reasons for
which are described below. The following table presents selected consolidated cash flow information of the Company for the respective periods shown below (including discontinued
operations of our separated SpinCo businesses, see Note 15 - Discontinued Operations for more information):Page 41For the Three Months Ended(In thousands)December 27,

borrowing3589,000A 540,401A Repayments of long-term borrowings(221,000)(567,752)Repayments of short-term borrowings(5,345)(6,262)Debt issuance costsa€”A (1,606)Proceeds from
issuances of common stock7,984A 11,355A Common stock repurchases(201,626)(100,016)Taxes paid on vested restricted stock(14,404)(22,387)Cash dividends to shareholders(36,481)
(33,366)Net dividends associated with noncontrolling interests(2,245)(4,708)Repurchase of redeemable noncontrolling interests(3,729)(24,360)AAA AA A A A A A A A Net cash provided
by (used for) financing activities112,154A (208,701)Effect of Exchange Rate Changes(58,180)34,148A Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted

Cash153,510A 227,811A Cash and Cash Equivalents, including Restricted Cash, at the Beginning of the Period1,146,931A 929,445A Cash and Cash Equivalents, including Restricted Cash,
at the End of the Period$1,300,441A $1,157,256A Less Cash and Cash Equivalents included in Assets held for spin$a€”A $(215,622)Cash and Cash Equivalents, including Restricted Cash of
Continuing Operations at the End of the Period $1,300,441A $941,634A Our net cash flow provided by operations for the first fiscal quarter of 2025 was $107.5 million. For the first fiscal
quarter of 2024, cash from operations was $418.4 million (inclusive of discontinued operations) and $307.1 million from continuing operations. The decline on a continuing operations basis
was largely due to higher uses of cash from increases in net working capital, namely Accounts Receivables as well as increases in cash income tax payments of $48.0 million within accrued
liabilities. These decreases were offset in part by higher net earnings from continuing operations after adjustments for non-cash reconciling items, mainly losses on investment
securities.Our net cash used for investing activities for the first fiscal quarter of 2025 was $7.9 million, compared to cash used for investing activities of $16.0 million in the corresponding
prior year period (which included $2.3 million associated with discontinued operations), due to lower levels of additions to plant, property and equipment in the current year.Our net cash
provided by financing activities of $112.2 million for the first fiscal quarter of 2025 is driven by net proceeds from borrowings of $362.7 million, partly offset by share repurchases of $201.6
million, $36.5 million in dividends to shareholders, and $14.4 million in taxes paid on vested restricted stock. Cash used for financing activities in the corresponding prior year period was
$208.7 million, due primarily to share repurchases of $100.0 million, net repayments from borrowings of $33.6 million, $33.4 million in dividends to shareholders, and $24.4 million in net
PA Consulting related redeemable noncontrolling interests purchase and issuance activity.At DecemberA 27, 2024, the Company had approximately $229.7A million in cash and cash
equivalents held in the U.S. and $1,070.0A million held outside of the U.S. (primarily in the U.K., the Eurozone, Australia, India, Canada, and the Middle East region). Other than the tax cost
of repatriating funds to the U.S., there are no material impediments to repatriating these funds to the U.S.The Company had $283.3 million in letters of credit outstanding at DecemberA 27,
2024. Of this amount, $0.5 million was issued under the Revolving Credit Facility and $282.8 million was issued under separate, committed and uncommitted letter-of-credit facilities.Page
42Long-term debt as of DecemberA 27, 2024 increased by $368.7A million compared to SeptemberA 27, 2024 primarily due to an increased draw on the revolving credit facility to fund our
operations.Under the Separation Transaction, Jacobs and its shareholders will own up to 63% of AMTM stock upon consummation of the transaction, the exact amount of which continues to
be subject to final settlement based on the achievement of certain fiscal year 2024 operating profit targets. Jacobs is also expected to realize additional value after closing through the
disposition of its retained equity stake in the combined company within 12 months of the transaction closing date, but there can be no assurance regarding the ultimate timing of such
divestiture. The Company cannot predict the trading price of shares of Amentuma€™s common stock and the market value of the Amentum shares are subject to market volatility and other
factors outside of our control. Unanticipated developments could delay, prevent or otherwise adversely affect the divestiture, including but not limited to financial market conditions.On
February 6, 2023, the Company refinanced its Revolving Credit Facility and 2021 Term Loan Facility, and on February 16, 2023, the Company issued the 5.90% Bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of $500.0 million. On August 18, 2023, the Company issued the 6.35% Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of $600.0 million. See Note 12 - Borrowings for further
discussion relating to the terms of the 5.90% Bonds, the 6.35% Bonds, the Revolving Credit Facility and 2021 Term Loan Facility following the issuances and refinancing.We believe we have
adequate liquidity and capital resources to fund our projected cash requirements for the next twelve months based on the liquidity provided by our cash and cash equivalents on hand, our
borrowing capacity and our continuing cash from operations. We were in compliance with all of our debt covenants at DecemberA 27, 2024.Page 43Supplemental Obligor Group Financial
InformationOn February 16, 2023, Jacobs Engineering Group Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Jacobs Solutions Inc. (together, the "Obligor Group"), completed an offering of $500 million
aggregate principal amount of 5.90% Bonds, due 2033 and on August 18, 2023, completed an offering of $600 million aggregate principal amount of 6.35% Bonds, due 2028 (collectively the
a€eBondsa€). The Bonds are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by the Company (the 4€ceGuaranteesa€). The Bonds and the respective Guarantees were offered pursuant to prospectus
supplements, dated February 13, 2023 and August 15, 2023, respectively, to the prospectus dated February 6, 2023, that forms a part of the Company and JEGIa€™ s automatic shelf
registration statement on Form S-3ASR (File Nos. 333-269605 and 333-269605-01) previously filed with the SEC.In accordance with SEC Regulation S-X Rule 13-01, set forth below is the
summarized financial information for the Obligor Group on a combined basis after elimination of (i) intercompany transactions and balances between Jacobs and JEGI and (ii) equity in the
earnings from and investments in all other subsidiaries of the Company that do not guarantee the registered securities of either Jacobs or JEG. This summarized financial information (in
thousands) has been prepared and presented pursuant to Regulation S-X Rule 13-01, 4€ceFinancial Disclosures about Guarantors and Issuers of Guaranteed Securitiesa€ and is not intended
to present the financial position or results of operations of the Obligor Group in accordance with U.S. GAAP.Three Months Ended(in thousands)December 27, 2024Summarized Statement of
Earnings DataRevenue$986,628A Direct Costs$818,331A Selling, General and Administrative Expenses$109,068A Net loss attributable to Guarantor Subsidiaries from continuing
operations$(68,444)Noncontrolling interests$(1,215)(in thousands)December 27, 2024September 27, 2024Summarized Balance Sheet DataCurrent assets, less receivables from Non-
Guarantor Subsidiaries$1,736,272A $1,733,836A Current receivables from Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries$974,627A $573,631A Noncurrent assets, less noncurrent receivables from Non-
Guarantor Subsidiaries$515,231A $503,444A Noncurrent receivables from Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries$541,499A $615,986A Current liabilities$1,742,651A $1,568,187A Current liabilities
to Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries$a€”A $a€”A Long-term Debt$1,717,270A $1,348,594A Other Noncurrent liabilities, less amounts payable to Non-Guarantor

Subsidiaries$237,132A $237,025A Noncurrent liabilities to Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries$1,031,752A $1,051,899A Noncontrolling interests$2,515A $937A Accumulated
deficit$(963,692)$(779,745)Page 44Item 3. A A A A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.We do not enter into derivative financial instruments for trading, speculation
or other similar purposes that would expose the Company to market risk. In the normal course of business, our results of operations are exposed to risks associated with fluctuations in
interest rates and currency exchange rates.Interest Rate RiskPlease see the Note 12- Borrowings in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements appearing under Part I, Item 1 of this
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, which is incorporated herein by reference, for a discussion of the Revolving Credit Facility, 2021 Term Loan Facility and Note Purchase Agreement.Our
Revolving Credit Facility, 2021 Term Loan Facility and certain other debt obligations are subject to variable rate interest which could be adversely affected by an increase in interest rates.
As of DecemberA 27, 2024, we had an aggregate of $1.45 billion in outstanding borrowings under our Revolving Credit Facility and 2021 Term Loan Facility. Interest on amounts borrowed
under these agreements is subject to adjustment based on the Company&a€™s Consolidated Leverage Ratio (as defined in the credit agreements governing the Revolving Credit Facility and
the 2021 Term Loan Facility). Depending on the Companya€™s Consolidated Leverage Ratio, borrowings denominated in U.S. dollars under the Revolving Credit Facility and the 2021 Term
Loan Facility bear interest at a SOFR rate plus a margin of between 0.975% and 1.725% or a base rate plus a margin of between 0.0% and 0.625% including applicable margins while
borrowings denominated in British pounds under these respective facilities bear interest at an adjusted SONIA rate plus a margin of between 0.908% and 1.658%. Additionally, our
Revolving Credit Facility, 2021 Term Loan Facility and our 5.90% Bonds have interest rates subject to potential increases relating to certain ESG metrics as stipulated in the related
agreements and as discussed in Note 12- Borrowings.However, as discussed in Note 18- Commitments and Contingencies and Derivative Financial Instruments, we are party to a swap
agreement with a notional value of $200.0 million to convert the variable rate interest based liabilities associated with a corresponding amount of our debt into fixed interest rate liabilities,
leaving $1.25 billion in principal amount subject to variable interest rate risk. Additionally, during fiscal 2022, we entered into two treasury lock arrangements with an aggregate notional
value of $500.0 million, which were settled in the second quarter fiscal 2023, and are disclosed in further detail in Note 18- Commitments and Contingencies and Derivative Financial
Instruments.For the three months ended December 27, 2024, our weighted average borrowings that are subject to floating rate exposure were approximately $0.96 billion. If floating
interest rates had increased by 1.00%, our interest expense for the three months ended December 27, 2024 would have increased by approximately $9.6 million.Foreign Currency RiskIn
situations where the Company incurs costs in currencies other than our functional currency, we sometimes enter into foreign exchange contracts to limit our exposure to fluctuating foreign
currencies. We follow the provisions of ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging in accounting for our derivative contracts. The Company has $693.4 million in notional value of exchange rate
sensitive instruments at DecemberA 27, 2024. See Note 18- Commitments and Contingencies and Derivative Financial Instruments for discussion.Page 45Item 4.A A A A Controls and
Procedures.Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and ProceduresDisclosure controls and procedures are those controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to
be disclosed in our reports filed or submitted under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the &€ceExchange Acta€) are recorded, processed, summarized and reported within
the time periods specified in the SECa€™ s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed in our reports filed under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to management, including our Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer)
and Chief Financial Officer (principal financial officer), to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. The Companya€™s management, with the participation of its Chief Executive
Officer (principal executive officer) and Chief Financial Officer (principal financial officer), evaluated the effectiveness of the Companya€™s disclosure controls and procedures as defined
by Rule 13a-15(e) of the Exchange Act defined above, as of DecemberA 27, 2024, the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (the 4€ceEvaluation Datea€). Based
on that evaluation, the Companya€™s management, with the participation of the Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer) and Chief Financial Officer (principal financial officer)
concluded that the Companya€™s disclosure controls and procedures, as of the Evaluation Date, were effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the
reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC4€™s rules and forms and that such
information is accumulated and communicated to the Companya€ ™s management, including the Companya€™s Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer) and Chief Financial
Officer (principal financial officer), as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.Changes in Internal Control Over Financial ReportingThere were no changes to
our internal control over financial reporting which were identified in connection with the evaluation required by paragraph (d) of Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15 under the Exchange Act during
the quarter ended DecemberA 27, 2024 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.Page 46PART II - OTHER
INFORMATIONItem 1.A A A A Legal Proceedings.The information required by this Item 1 is included in the Note 18- Commitments and Contingencies and Derivative Financial Instruments
included in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements appearing under Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, which is incorporated herein by reference.ltem

1A.A A A A Risk Factors.Please refer to ItemA 1A- Risk Factors in our 2024 Form 10-K, which is incorporated herein by reference, for a discussion of some of the factors that have affected
our business, financial condition, and results of operations in the past and which could affect us in the future. There have been no material changes to those risk factors. Before making an
investment decision with respect to our common stock, you should carefully consider those risk factors, as well as the financial and business disclosures contained in this Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q and our other current and periodic reports filed with the SEC.Item 2. A A A A Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.There were no sales of unregistered
securities during the first fiscal quarter of 2025.Share RepurchasesOn January 25, 2023, the Company's Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program of up to $1.0 billion of
the Company's stock, to expire on January 25, 2026 (the "2023 Repurchase Authorization"). A summary of repurchases of the Companya€™s common stock made during the first quarter of
fiscal 2025 under the 2023 Share Repurchase Authorization follows:PeriodTotal Number of Shares PurchasedAverageA PriceA Per Share (1)Total Number of Shares Purchased under the
2023 Repurchase AuthorizationApproximate Dollar Value of Shares that May Yet Be Purchased Under the 2023 Repurchase Authorization September 28, 2024 - October 25,
202465,671$141.3165,671$463,134,8550ctober 26, 2024 - November 22, 2024170,266$140.59170,266$439,197,414November 23, 2024 - December 27,
20241,219,902$138.051,219,902$270,788,109Totall,455,8391,455,839(1)Includes commissions paid and excise tax due under the Inflation Reduction Act of 2022 and calculated at the
average price per share.On January 30, 2025, the Company's Board of Directors authorized an incremental share repurchase program of up to $1.5 billion of the Company's common stock,
to expire on January 30, 2028 (the "2025 Repurchase Authorization"). No repurchase activity has taken place under the 2025 Share Repurchase Authorization to date.Our share repurchase
program does not obligate the Company to purchase any shares. Share repurchases may be executed through various means including, without limitation, accelerated share repurchases,
open market transactions, privately negotiated transactions, purchases pursuant to Rule 10b5-1 plans or otherwise. The authorization for the share repurchase programs may be
terminated, increased or decreased by the Companya€™s Board of Directors in its discretion at any time. The timing, amount and manner of share repurchases may depend upon market
conditions and economic circumstances, availability of investment opportunities, the availability and costs of financing, currency fluctuations, the market price of the Company's common
stock, other uses of capital and other factors.Page 47Item 3.A A A A Defaults Upon Senior Securities.None.Iltem 4. A A A A Mine Safety Disclosure.None.Item 5. A A A A Other
Information.During the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, none of our officers or directors adopted or terminated any contract, instruction or written plan for the
purchase or sale of our securities that was intended to satisfy the affirmative defense conditions of Rule 10b5-1(c) under the Exchange Act or any a€cenon-Rule 10b5-1 trading
arrangementa€ as defined in Item 408(c) of Regulation S-K.Page 48Item 6. A A A A Exhibits. 2.1Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated November 20, 2023, by and among Jacobs Solutions
Inc., Amazon Holdco Inc., Amentum Parent Holdings LLC and Amentum Joint Venture LP. Filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the Registranta€™s Current Report on Form 8-K on November 21, 2023 and
incorporated herein by reference.2.2Amendment to Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated August 26, 2024, by and among Jacobs Solutions Inc., Amazon Holdco Inc., Amentum Parent
Holdings LLC and Amentum Joint Venture LP. Filed as Exhibit 2,5 to the Registranta€™s fiscal 2024 Annual Report on Form 10-K and incorporated herein by reference.3.1Restated
Certificate of Incorporation of Jacobs Solutions Inc, Filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Registranta€™s Current Report on Form 8-K on February 3, 2025 and incorporated herein by reference.
3.2Amended and Restated Bylaws of Jacobs Solutions Inc., dated as of January 29, 2025. Filed as Exhibit 3.3 to the Registranta€™s Current Report on Form 8-K on February 3, 2025 and
incorporated herein by reference.10.1#*Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (Performance Shares a4€“ Earnings Per Share (ELT)) (awarded pursuant to Jacobs' Stock Incentive
Plan).10.2#*Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (Performance Shares a4€“ ROIC (ELT)) (awarded pursuant to Jacobs' Stock Incentive Plan).10.3#*Offer Letter by and between Jacobs



Engineering Group Inc. and Venkatesh Nathamuni, dated as of May 12, 2024.22.1Subsidiary Issuers of Guaranteed Securities. Filed as Exhibit 22.1 to the Registranta€™s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the third quarter of fiscal 2024 and incorporated herein by reference.31.1*Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934.31.2*Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.32.1*Certification of Chief Executive Officer
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.32.2*Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.101The following financial statements from the Companya€™s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
DecemberA 27, 2024, formatted in Inline XBRL: (i) Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) Consolidated Statements of Earnings, (iii) Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss),
(iv) Consolidated Statements of Stockholdersa€™ Equity, (v) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows and (vi) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, tagged as blocks of text and
including detailed tags.104The cover page from the Companya€™s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended DecemberA 27, 2024, (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in
Exhibit 101).* Filed herewith# Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangementPage 49SIGNATURESPursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized. JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC.By:/s/ Venk NathamuniVenk
NathamuniChief Financial Officer(Principal Financial Officer)Date: February 4, 2025Page 50 EX-10.1 2 exhibit101-grantagreementx.htm EX-10.1 DocumentExhibit 10.1JACOBS
SOLUTIONS INC.FORM OF RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AGREEMENT(Performance Shares - Earnings Per Share)(Awarded Pursuant to the Jacobs Solutions Inc. 2023 Stock Incentive
Plan)This Agreement is executed as of , by and between Jacobs Solutions Inc. (the &€ceCompanya€ or a€ceJacobsa€) and (a€eEmployeea€) pursuant to the
Jacobs Solutions Inc. 2023 Stock Incentive Plan, as may be amended from time to time (the a€cePlana€). Unless the context clearly indicates otherwise, all terms defined in the Plan and
used in this Agreement (whether or not capitalized) have the meanings as set forth in the Plan. The Agreement also includes the provisions included in the Terms and Conditions for
International Employees (&€ceTerms for International Employeesa€), which is applicable to Employee if Employee is employed or resides outside the United States.1.Restricted Stock
UnitsPursuant to the Plan, and in consideration for services rendered or to be rendered to the Company or Related Company or for their benefit, the Company hereby issues, as of the above
date (the &€ceAward Datea€) to Employee an award of Restricted Stock Units in accordance with the Plan and the terms and conditions of this Agreement (the 4€ceAwarda€). The target
number of Restricted Stock Units Employee is eligible to earn under this Agreement is (the 4€ceTarget Earnings Per Share Restricted Stock Unitsa€). Each Restricted Stock
Unit represents the right to receive one share of Jacobs Common Stock (subject to adjustment pursuant to the Plan) in accordance with the terms and subject to the conditions (including
the vesting conditions) set forth in this Agreement and the Plan. If, with respect to the Restricted Stock Units, Employee has made an effective and operative deferral election (&€ceEDP
Deferral Electiona€) under the Jacobs Solutions Inc. Executive Deferral Plan (4€ceEDPa€) with respect to the shares underlying this Agreement, the terms of the EDP and EDP Deferral
Election governing the time and delivery of the shares underlying this Agreement that become vested, if any, are incorporated by reference herein.2.Vesting and Distribution(a)The Award
shall not be vested as of the Award Date and shall be forfeitable by Employee without consideration or compensation unless and until otherwise vested pursuant to the terms of this
Agreement.(b)The number of Restricted Stock Units earned under this Agreement (the &€ceEarned Earnings Per Share Restricted Stock Unitsa€) shall be equal to the Target EPS Restricted
Stock Units multiplied by the sum of (i) EPS Performance Multiplier (as defined herein) and (ii) the Stock Price Multiplier (as defined herein). The &4€eEPS Performance Multipliera€ will be
determined based upon the Companya€™ s average adjusted Earnings Per Share (as defined herein) over the three-year period Jacobs Solutions Inc.Restricted Stock Unit Agreement-
EPSPage 2 starting on the first day of fiscal 20__ and ending the last day of fiscal 20__ (the &€cePerformance Period&€). The &€ceStock Price Multipliera€ will be determined based upon the
Companya€™s average closing price per share of Jacobs Common Stock for a period of twenty (20) consecutive trading days as of the last day of fiscal 20 _ (the &€ceAverage Stock Pricea€).
Employee is eligible to earn between 0%-200% of the Target Earnings Per Share Restricted Stock Units based on the Companya€™s Earnings Per Share results and an additional 100% of
the Target Earnings Per Share Restricted Stock Units based on the Companya€™s Average Stock Price at the end of the fiscal year, in each case as described below. The maximum number
of Earned Earnings Per Share Restricted Stock Units that could be earned under this Award is equal to 300% of the Target Earnings Per Share Restricted Stock Units. The Earnings Per
Share Performance MultiplierThe Earnings Per Share Performance Multiplier will be calculated as set forth in the following table based upon the average of the Companya€™s Earnings Per
Share over the Performance Period:From Fiscal Year 20__ through Fiscal Year 20__Average Adjusted Earnings Per ShareEarnings Per Share Performance Multiplier$[a€¢10%$[a€¢]25%$[a€
¢]100%$[a€¢]200%The Earnings Per Share Performance Multiplier will be determined using straight-line interpolation based on the actual average adjusted Earnings Per Share results
other than those listed in the chart above. For purposes of this SectionA 2(b), &€ceEarnings Per Sharea€ for any fiscal period is computed by dividing Net Earnings by the weighted average
number of shares of the Companya€™s common stock outstanding during the period. a€ceNet Earningsa€ means the net earnings attributable to the Company as reported in its
consolidated financial statements for such period determined in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (4€ceGAAP&€) (A)A as may be adjusted to
eliminate the effects of (i)A costs associated with restructuring activities, as determined in accordance with GAAP, regardless of whether the Company discloses publicly the amount of such
restructuring costs or the fact that the Company engaged in restructuring activities during the periods restructuring costs were incurred; and (ii)A gains or losses associated with
discontinued operations, as determined in accordance with GAAP, but limited to the first reporting period an operation is determined to be discontinued and all subsequent periods (i.e.,
there will be no retroactive application of this adjustment); and (B)A as adjusted for all gains or losses associated with events or transactions that the Committee has made a finding are
unusual Jacobs Solutions Inc.Restricted Stock Unit Agreement-EPSPage 3 in nature, infrequently occurring and otherwise not indicative of the Companya€™s normal operations, and
therefore, not indicative of the underlying Company performance. For purposes of this partA (B), such events or transactions could include: (i)A settlements of claims and litigation;

(i)A disposals of operations including a disposition of a significant amount of the Companya€™s assets; (iii)A losses on sales of investments; (iv)A changes in laws and/or regulations; and
(v)A natural disasters, epidemics, pandemics or other acts of God.The Stock Price MultiplierThe Stock Price Multiplier will be calculated as set forth in the following table based on the
Companya€™ s Average Stock Price:Average Stock PriceStock Price Multiplier $[4€¢]1100%$[4€¢10%The Stock Price Multiplier will be determined using straight-line interpolation based on
the Companya€™s Average Stock Price results other than those listed in the chart above.(c)After the Award Date, a number of Restricted Stock Units equal to the Earned Earnings Per
Share Restricted Stock Units will become 100% vested (referred to as a€oeVested Unitsa€) on [a€¢], 20__ (the a€ceMaturity Datea€), provided that, except as provided in SectionA 2(d)
below, Employee remains continuously employed by the Company or Related Company through such Maturity Date.(d)Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement or ScheduleA B of the
Plan to the contrary, in the event that Employeea€™s employment with the Company or Related Company terminates prior to the Maturity Date as a result of Employeeda€™ s Retirement,
death, or Disability, this Award shall remain outstanding and shall vest on the Maturity Date (based on actual performance through the entire performance period); provided, that on the
Maturity Date only a pro-rated portion (based on the number of days, during the period between the Award Date and the Maturity Date, that Employee was employed by the Company or
Related Company prior to Employeea€™ s Retirement death, or Disability) of the Earned Earnings Per Share Restricted Stock Units will become vested, with the remainder of the Award
forfeited at that time. The foregoing notwithstanding, in the event of Employeea€™ s termination of employment from the Company due to an involuntary layoff (e.g., reduction in force or
redundancy action), the vesting period for Restricted Stock Units awarded under this Agreement shall continue to vest for a nine (9) months period following the date of Employeea€™s
termination.(e)Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement or ScheduleA B of the Plan to the contrary, in the event of a Change in Control, the number of Earned Earnings Per Share
Restricted Stock Units shall be determined as of the date such Change in Control is consummated, rather than the Maturity Date, with the number of Earned Earnings Per Share Restricted
Stock Units determined as set forth in Jacobs Solutions Inc.Restricted Stock Unit Agreement-EPSPage 4 SectionA 2(b) hereof, except that: (1)A if the Change in Control occurs prior to the
last day of fiscal year 20_, the Earnings Per Share Performance Multiplier will be 100%; (2)A if the Change in Control occurs upon or after the last day of fiscal year 20_, the Earnings Per
Share Performance Multiplier shall be determined pursuant to SectionA 2(b) based upon the Companya€™s average Earnings Per Share based on information available as of the Change in
Control (taking into account the consideration per share to be paid in the Change in Control transaction) and (3) the Stock Price Multiplier shall be determined pursuant to Section 2(b)
based upon the Companya€™ s stock price per share of Common Stock as of the Change in Control.Following a Change in Control, except as otherwise set forth in the Plan (including
ScheduleA B thereof), the Earned Earnings Per Share Restricted Stock Units shall remain outstanding and subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan and this Agreement, including the
vesting condition of continued employment through the Maturity Date.(f)Except as set forth herein and in the Plan (including ScheduleA B thereof the terms of which shall apply to the
Award), Employee has no rights, partial or otherwise, in the Award and/or any shares of Jacobs Common Stock subject thereto, unless and until the Award has been earned and vested
pursuant to this SectionA 2.(g)Each Vested Unit shall be settled by the delivery of one share of Common Stock (subject to adjustment under the Plan), unless the Committee elects to settle
the Vested Unit in another form of consideration of equivalent value (as determined by the Committee in its sole discretion) in connection with or following a Change in Control. If Employee
has not made any EDP Deferral Election with respect to Restricted Stock Units that become vested, settlement will occur as soon as practicable following certification by the Company of the
number of Earnings Per Share Restricted Stock Units and passage of the Maturity Date (or, if earlier, the date the Award becomes vested pursuant to the terms of the Plan, including
ScheduleA B thereof, or SectionA 2(d) above), but in no event later than 30A days following the Maturity Date (or such earlier date that the Award becomes vested). If Employee has made
an EDP Deferral Election, deferred Vested Units shall be settled as soon as practicable following the date elected on Employeea€™s operative EDP Deferral Election or other settlement
date set forth under the terms of the EDP. In any event, no fractional shares shall be issued pursuant to this Agreement.(h) The Award (and any rights and obligations thereunder) may not
be sold, exchanged, transferred, assigned, pledged, hypothecated or otherwise disposed of or hedged, in any manner (including through the use of any cash-settled instrument), whether
voluntarily or involuntarily and whether by operation of law or otherwise, other than (i) by will, (ii) by the laws of descent and distribution or (iii) to any trust established solely for the
benefit of Employee or any spouse, children or grandchildren of Employee, and the Award (and any rights thereunder) will be exercisable during the life of Employee only by Employee or
Employeea€™s legal representative. Any sale, exchange, transfer, assignment, pledge, hypothecation, or other disposition in violation of the provisions of this Section 2(h) will be null and
void and if the Award is hedged in any manner, it Jacobs Solutions Inc.Restricted Stock Unit Agreement-EPSPage 5 will immediately be forfeited. All of the terms and conditions of the Plan
and this Agreement will be binding upon any permitted successors and assigns. After the shares of Jacobs Common Stock issued under the Award have vested, the holder of such shares is
free to assign, hypothecate, donate, encumber or otherwise dispose of any interest in such shares provided that any such actions are in compliance with the provisions herein, the terms of
the Company4€™s trading policies as may be in effect from time to time and applicable law.3.SectionA 409A ComplianceNotwithstanding any other provision of the Plan or this Agreement
to the contrary, it is intended that this Award shall be exempted from the definition of &€cenon-qualified deferred compensationa€ within the meaning of SectionA 409A of the IRS Code
(together with any related regulations or other guidance promulgated with respect to such Section by the U.S. Department of the Treasury of the Internal Revenue Service, collectively
a€ceSectionA 409A4€) or otherwise comply with the requirements of Section 409A, and the Plan shall be interpreted accordingly (including to avoid the imposition of any additional or
accelerated taxes or other penalties under SectionA 409A of the Code). Under no circumstances, however, shall the Company have any liability under the Plan or this Agreement for any
taxes, penalties or interest due on amounts paid or payable pursuant to the Plan and/or this Agreement or any EDP Deferral Election, including any taxes, penalties or interest imposed
under SectionA 409A of the Code. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, to the extent that any payment or benefit under this Agreement, or any other plan
or arrangement of the Company or its affiliates, is determined by the Company to constitute &€cenon-qualified deferred compensationa€ subject to SectionA 409A and is payable to
Employee by reason of Employeed€™s termination of employment, then (a)A such payment or benefit shall be made or provided to Employee only upon a &€ceseparation from servicea€ as
defined for purposes of SectionA 409A under applicable regulations and (b)A if Employee is a 4€cespecified employeea€ (within the meaning of SectionA 409A and as determined by the
Company), such payment or benefit shall not be made or provided before the date that is six months after the date of Employeea€™s separation from service (or Employeea€™s earlier
death). Each payment under this Agreement will be treated as a separate payment under SectionA 409A of the Code.4.Status of ParticipantExcept as set forth in this section, Employee shall
have no rights as a stockholder (including, without limitation, any voting rights or rights to receive dividends with respect to the shares of Jacobs Common Stock subject to the Award) with
respect to either the Award granted hereunder or the shares of Jacobs Common Stock underlying the Award, unless and until such shares are issued in respect of Vested Units, and then
only to the extent of such issued shares.Notwithstanding the foregoing, Employee is entitled to a &€ceDividend Equivalent Righta€ under the EDP with respect to each Vested Unit for which
delivery of the underlying share of Common Stock has been deferred pursuant to an EDP Deferral Election, to the extent the Company pays any cash dividend with respect to outstanding
Jacobs Common Stock on or after the date on which such Vested Unit is deferred and while such Vested Unit remains outstanding. The term Jacobs Solutions Inc.Restricted Stock Unit
Agreement-EPSPage 6 a€ceDividend Equivalent Right4a€ shall mean a dollar amount equal to the per-share cash dividend paid by the Company. Except as otherwise provided under the
terms of the EDP or EDP Deferral Election, if applicable: (a)A any Dividend Equivalent Right with respect to Vested Units will be paid to Employee in cash at the same time that the
Company pays a dividend with respect to outstanding Jacobs Common Stock; and (b) Employee will not be credited with Dividend Equivalent Rights with respect to any Restricted Stock
Unit prior to vesting or to any Restricted Stock Unit that, as of the record date for the relevant dividend, is no longer outstanding for any reason (e.g., because it has been settled in
Common Stock or has been terminated), and Employee will not be entitled to any payment for Dividend Equivalent Rights with respect to any Restricted Stock Unit that terminates without
vesting. For purposes of this Agreement, a Vested Unit that has not yet been settled (e.g., because of an EDP Deferral Election) shall be considered outstanding for purposes of this
SectionA 4.No shares may be issued in respect of Vested Units if, in the opinion of counsel for the Company, all then applicable requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission
and any other regulatory agencies having jurisdiction and of any stock exchange upon which the shares of the Company may be listed are not fully met, and, as a condition of the issuance of
shares, Employee shall take all such action as counsel may advise is necessary for Employee to take to meet such requirements.5.Nature of Award In accepting the Award, Employee
acknowledges, understands and agrees that:(a)The Plan is established voluntarily by the Company, it is discretionary in nature and it may be modified, amended, suspended or terminated
by the Company at any time, to the extent permitted by the Plan;(b)The Award of the Restricted Stock Units hereunder is voluntary and occasional and does not create any contractual or
other right to receive future Awards of Restricted Stock Units, or any benefits in lieu of Restricted Stock Units, even if Restricted Stock Units have been awarded in the past;(c)All decisions
with respect to future Restricted Stock Unit or other awards, if any, will be at the sole discretion of the Company;(d)The Award and Employeed€™ s participation in the Plan shall not create
a right to employment or be interpreted as forming an employment or services contract with the Company, or any Related Companies and shall not interfere with the ability of the Company,
or any Related Company, as applicable, to terminate Employeea€™ s employment or service relationship (if any);(e)The Award and the shares of Jacobs Common Stock subject to the Award,
the value of same, and any ultimate gain, loss, income or expense associated with the Award are not part of Employeea€™ s normal or expected compensation for purposes Jacobs Solutions
Inc.Restricted Stock Unit Agreement-EPSPage 7 of calculating any severance, resignation, termination, redundancy, dismissal, end-of-service payments, bonuses, long-service awards,
pension or retirement or welfare benefits or similar payments;(f)No claim or entitlement to compensation or damages shall arise from forfeiture of the Award for any reason, including
forfeiture resulting from Employee ceasing to provide employment or other services to the Company or any Related Company (for any reason whatsoever whether or not later found to be
invalid or in breach of employment laws in the jurisdiction where Employee is employed or the terms of Employeea€™ s employment agreement, if any), and in consideration of the Award to



which Employee is otherwise not entitled, Employee irrevocably agrees never to institute or allow to be instituted on Employeea€™s behalf any claim against the Company or any of its
Related Companies, waives Employeea€™s ability, if any, to bring any such claim, and releases the Company and any Related Companies from any such claim; if, notwithstanding the
foregoing, any such claim is allowed by a court of competent jurisdiction, then, by participating in the Plan, Employee shall be deemed irrevocably to have agreed not to pursue such claim
and agrees to execute any and all documents necessary to request dismissal or withdrawal of such claim.6.Data Privacy Employee understands that the Company and/or a Related Company
may hold certain personal information about Employee in connection with this Agreement (including the terms of the EDP and EDP Deferral Election to the extent applicable under
SectionA 1), including, but not limited to, Employeea€™s name, home address and telephone number, date of birth, social security number or other identification number, salary,
nationality, job title, any shares of Jacobs Common Stock or directorships held in the Company, details of all Awards or any other entitlement to shares of Jacobs Common Stock awarded,
canceled, exercised, vested, unvested or outstanding in Employeea€™ s favor, for the exclusive purpose of implementing, administering and managing the Plan and this Agreement
(a€meDataé€).Employee hereby explicitly and unambiguously consents to the collection, use and transfer, in electronic or other form, of Employeea€™ s personal Data by and among, as
applicable, the Company and its Related Companies for the exclusive purpose of implementing, administering and managing Employeea€ ™s participation in the Plan and under this
Agreement.Employee understands that Data will be transferred to the Companya€™s broker, administrative agents or such other stock plan service provider as may be selected by the
Company in the future, which is assisting the Company with the implementation, administration and management of the Plan. Employee understands that the recipients of the Data may be
located in the United States or elsewhere, and that the recipientsa€™ country or countries in which such recipients reside or operate (e.g., the United States) may have different data
privacy laws and protections than Employeea€™ s country. Employee understands that if Employee resides outside the United States, Employee may request a list with the names and
addresses of any potential recipients of the Data by contacting Employeea€™ s local human resources representative. Employee understands that Data Jacobs Solutions Inc.Restricted Stock
Unit Agreement-EPSPage 8 will be held only as long as is necessary to implement, administer and manage Employeea€™ s participation in the Plan and this Agreement or as required under
applicable law.7.Payment of Withholding TaxesEmployee acknowledges that, regardless of any action taken by the Company or Related Companies or, if different, Employeea€™s employer
(the &€ceEmployera€) the ultimate liability for all income tax, social insurance, payroll tax, fringe benefits tax, payment on account or other tax-related items related to Employeea€™s
participation in the Plan and legally applicable to Employee or deemed by the Company, Related Company or the Employer in its discretion to be an appropriate charge to Employee even if
legally applicable to the Company, Related Company or the Employer (a€ceTax-Related Itemsa€), is and remains Employeea€ ™ s responsibility and may exceed the amount actually withheld
by the Company, Related Company or the Employer. Employee further acknowledges and agrees that the Company or Related Company and/or the Employer may, if it so determines, offset
any Employer tax liabilities deemed applicable to Employee by reducing the shares of Jacobs Common Stock otherwise deliverable to Employee pursuant to this Agreement. Employee
further acknowledges that the Company, Related Company and/or the Employer (1)A make no representations or undertakings regarding the treatment of any Tax-Related Items in
connection with any aspect of the Restricted Stock Units including, but not limited to, the grant, vesting or settlement of the Restricted Stock Units, the subsequent sale of shares of Jacobs
Common Stock acquired pursuant to such settlement; and (2)A do not commit to and are under no obligation to structure the terms of the Award or any aspect of the Restricted Stock Units
to reduce or eliminate Employeea€™s liability for Tax-Related Items or achieve any particular tax result. Further, if Employee is subject to Tax-Related Items in more than one jurisdiction
between the Award Date and the date of any relevant taxable or tax withholding event, as applicable, Employee acknowledges that the Company, Related Company and/or the Employer (or
former employer, as applicable) may be required to withhold or account for Tax-Related Items in more than one jurisdiction. The Company may refuse to issue or deliver any shares of
Jacobs Common Stock to Employee until the obligation for any Tax-Related Items due in connection with the Award has been satisfied.Under no circumstances can the Company be required
to withhold from the shares of Jacobs Common Stock that would otherwise be delivered to Employee upon settlement of the Award a number of shares having a total Fair Market Value that
exceeds the amount of withholding taxes as determined by the Company at the time the Award vests.8.Services as EmployeeEmployee shall not be deemed to have ceased to be employed by
the Company (or any Related Company) for purposes of this Agreement by reason of Employeea€™s transfer to a Related Company (or to the Company or to another Related Company). The
Committee may determine that, for purposes of this Agreement, Employee shall be considered as still in the employ of the Company or of the Related Company while on leave of
absence.Jacobs Solutions Inc.Restricted Stock Unit Agreement-EPSPage 9 Nothing contained in this Agreement or the Plan constitutes an employment or service commitment by the
Company or any Related Company, affects Employeea€™s status as an employee at will who is subject to termination without cause, confers upon Employee any right to remain employed by
or in service to the Company or any Related Company, interferes in any way with the right of the Company or any Related Company, as applicable, at any time to terminate such
employment or services, or affects the right of the Company or any Related Company, as applicable, to increase or decrease Employeea€™s other compensation or benefits. Nothing in this
Section, however, is intended to adversely affect any independent contractual right of Employee (if any) without Employeea€™s consent thereto.9.Miscellaneous Provisions This Agreement
is governed in all respects by the Plan and applicable law. In the event of any inconsistency between the terms of the Plan and this Agreement, (including the 4&€ceTerms for International
Employeesa€), the terms of the Plan shall prevail. Subject to the limitations of the Plan, the Company may, with the written consent of Employee, amend this Agreement. This Agreement
shall be construed, administered and enforced according to the laws of the State of Delaware. By accepting this Agreement, Employee agrees to submit to the jurisdiction and venue of any
court of competent jurisdiction in Delaware without regard to conflict of laws, rules or principles, for any claim arising out of this Agreement.10.ClawbackBy signing (electronically or
otherwise) this Agreement and/or electronically accepting the associated Award grant, Employee agrees to be bound by, and subject to, the terms and conditions of: (a) the Companya€™s
Mandatory Clawback Policy (as may be amended from time to time) if Employee is or becomes a Section 16 executive officer, (b) the Companya€™s Enhanced Clawback Policy (as may be
amended from time to time), including the restrictive covenants set forth therein, which Enhanced Clawback Policy shall apply to incentive-based compensation granted to Employee in any
prior fiscal year to the extent Employeeda€™ s target long-term incentive award opportunity for such fiscal year based on the grant date value was equal to or greater than $500,000, (c) any
clawback and forfeiture provisions set forth in this Agreement and (d) any other clawback, forfeiture, recoupment, or similar requirement required to apply to incentive-based compensation
granted to Employee under the programs, policies and procedures of the Company (as may be adopted from time to time) by any current or future applicable law or listing standard or
regulatory body. 11.Agreement of EmployeeBy signing (electronically or otherwise) this Agreement and/or electronically accepting the associated Award grant, Employee (a)A agrees to the
terms and conditions of this Agreement, (b)A confirms receipt of a copy of the Plan and all amendments and supplements thereto, and (c)A appoints the officers of the Company as
Employeea€™s true and lawful attorney-in-fact, with full power of substitution in the premises, granting to each full power and authority to do and Jacobs Solutions Inc.Restricted Stock
Unit Agreement-EPSPage 10 perform any and every act whatsoever requisite, necessary, or proper to be done, on behalf of Employee which, in the opinion of such attorney-in-fact, is
necessary or prudent to effect the delivery of the Jacobs Common Stock to Employee or the forfeiture of the Award to the Company, or, in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Agreement as of the date set forth above. JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. Robert V. Pragada Chief Executive Officer EX-
10.2 3 exhibit102-grantagreementx.htm EX-10.2 DocumentExhibit 10.2JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC.RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AGREEMENT(Performance Shares - ROIC)(Awarded Pursuant
to the Jacobs Solutions Inc. 2023 Stock Incentive Plan)This Agreement is executed as of , by and between Jacobs Solutions Inc. (the &€ceCompanya€ or a€ceJacobsa€) and
(a€eEmployeea€) pursuant to the Jacobs Solutions Inc. 2023 Stock Incentive Plan, as may be amended from time to time (the &€cePlana€). Unless the context clearly
indicates otherwise, all terms defined in the Plan and used in this Agreement (whether or not capitalized) have the meanings as set forth in the Plan. The Agreement also includes the
provisions included in the Terms and Conditions for International Employees (a&€ceTerms for International Employeesa€), which is applicable to Employee if Employee is employed or resides
outside the United States.1.Restricted Stock UnitsPursuant to the Plan, and in consideration for services rendered or to be rendered to the Company or Related Company or for their
benefit, the Company hereby issues, as of the above date (the &4€ceAward Datea€) to Employee an award of Restricted Stock Units in accordance with the Plan and the terms and conditions
of this Agreement (the &€ceAwarda€). The target number of Restricted Stock Units Employee is eligible to earn under this Agreement is (the a€ceTarget ROIC Restricted
Stock Unitsa€). Each Restricted Stock Unit represents the right to receive one share of Jacobs Common Stock (subject to adjustment pursuant to the Plan) in accordance with the terms and
subject to the conditions (including the vesting conditions) set forth in this Agreement and the Plan. If, with respect to the Restricted Stock Units, Employee has made an effective and
operative deferral election (4€ceEDP Deferral Electiona€) under the Jacobs Solutions Inc. Executive Deferral Plan (4€0eEDPA€) with respect to the shares underlying this Agreement, the
terms of the EDP and EDP Deferral Election governing the time of delivery of the shares underlying this Agreement that become vested, if any, are incorporated by reference
herein.2.Vesting and Distribution(a)The Award shall not be vested as of the Award Date and shall be forfeitable by Employee without consideration or compensation unless and until
otherwise vested pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.(b)The number of Restricted Stock Units earned under this Agreement shall be equal to the Target ROIC Restricted Stock Units
multiplied by the sum of (i) ROIC Performance Multiplier (as defined herein) and (ii) the Stock Price Multiplier (as defined herein). The 4€0eROIC Performance Multipliera€ will be
determined based upon the Companya€™s average ROIC (as defined herein) over the three-year period starting on the first day of fiscal 20__ and ending the last day of fiscal 20__ (the
a€cePerformance Period) (the &€ceEarned ROIC Restricted Stock Unitsa€). The a€oeStock Price Multipliera€ will be determined based upon the Companya€™s average closing Jacobs
Solutions Inc.Restricted Stock Unit Agreement-ROICPage 2 stock price per share of Jacobs Common Stock for a period of twenty (20) consecutive trading days as of the last day of fiscal
20 (the a€ceAverage Stock Priced€).Employee is eligible to earn between 0%-200% of the Target ROIC Restricted Stock Units based on the Companya€™s ROIC results and an additional
100% of the Target ROIC Restricted Stock Units based on the Companya€™s Average Stock Price at the end of the fiscal year, in each case as described below. The maximum number of
Earned ROIC Restricted Stock Units that could be earned under this Award is equal to 300% of the Target ROIC Restricted Stock Units.The Return on Invested Capital Performance
MultiplierThe ROIC Performance Multiplier will be calculated as set forth in the following table based upon the average ROIC over the Performance Period:Fiscal Year 20__ through Fiscal
Year 20__Average ROICROIC Performance Multiplier[a€¢]%0%[&€¢1%25%[&€¢1%100%[a€¢]1%200%The ROIC Performance Multiplier will be determined using straight-line interpolation
based on the actual average ROIC results other than those listed in the chart above.For purposes of this Section 2(b), the &€ceReturn on Invested Capitala€ for any fiscal period is computed
by dividing Adjusted Net Earnings by the Average of Beginning and Ending Invested Capital during the period, and where invested capital is the sum of equity plus long term debt less cash
and cash equivalents. Adjusted Net Earnings means the Net Earnings attributable to the Company as reported in its consolidated financial statements for such period determined in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (4€eGAAPA€) (A) as may be adjusted to eliminate the effects of (i) costs associated with restructuring
activities, as determined in accordance with GAAP, regardless of whether the Company discloses publicly the amount of such restructuring costs or the fact that the Company engaged in
restructuring activities during the periods restructuring costs were incurred; and (ii) gains or losses associated with discontinued operations, as determined in accordance with GAAP, but
limited to the first reporting period an operation is determined to be discontinued and all subsequent periods (i.e., there will be no retroactive application of this adjustment); and (B) as
adjusted for all gains or losses associated with events or transactions that the Committee has made a finding are unusual in nature, infrequently occurring and otherwise not indicative of
the Companya€™ s normal operations, and therefore, not indicative of the underlying Company performance. For purposes of this part (B), such events or transactions could include: (i)
settlements of claims and litigation; (ii) disposals of operations including a disposition of a significant amount of the Companya€™s Jacobs Solutions Inc.Restricted Stock Unit Agreement-
ROICPage 3 assets; (iii) losses on sales of investments; (iv) changes in laws and/or regulations; and (v) natural disasters, epidemics, pandemics or other acts of God. a€celnvested Capitala€
means (i) the value of the Companya€™ s equity as reported in its consolidated financial statements for such period determined in accordance with GAAP, plus (ii) the value of the
Company&a€™s debt as reported in its consolidated financial statements for such period determined in accordance with GAAP, minus (iii) the Company&€™s cash and cash equivalent assets
as reported in its consolidated financial statements for such period determined in accordance with GAAP.The Stock Price MultiplierThe Stock Price Multiplier will be calculated as set forth
in the following table based on the Companya€™s Average Stock Price:Average Stock PriceStock Price Multiplier $[a€¢]100%$[&€¢]0%The Stock Price Multiplier will be determined using
straight-line interpolation based on the Companya€™s Average Stock Price results other than those listed in the chart above.(c)After the Award Date, a number of Restricted Stock Units
equal to the Earned ROIC Restricted Stock Units will become 100% vested (referred to as a€ceVested Unitsa€) on [a€¢], 20 (the a&€oeMaturity Datea€), provided that, except as provided in
Section 2(d) below, Employee remains continuously employed by the Company or Related Company through such Maturity Date.(d)Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement or Schedule
B of the Plan to the contrary, in the event that Employeea€™ s employment with the Company or Related Company terminates prior to the Maturity Date as a result of Employeea€™s
Retirement, death, or Disability, this Award shall remain outstanding and shall vest on the Maturity Date based on the Company&a€ ™ s average Return on Invested Capital over the
Performance Period; provided, that on the Maturity Date only a pro-rated portion (based on the number of days, during the period between the Award Date and the Maturity Date, that
Employee was employed by the Company or Related Company prior to Employeea€™s Retirement death, or Disability) of the Earned ROIC Restricted Stock Units will become vested, with
the remainder of the Award forfeited at that time. The foregoing notwithstanding, in the event of Employeea€™s termination of employment from the Company due to an involuntary layoff
(e.g., reduction in force or redundancy action), the vesting period for Restricted Stock Units awarded under this Agreement shall continue to vest for a nine (9) months period following the
date of Employeed€™ s termination.(e)Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement or Schedule B of the Plan to the contrary, in the event of a Change in Control, the number of Earned
ROIC Restricted Stock Units shall be determined as of the date such Change in Control is consummated, rather than the Maturity Date, with the number of Earned ROIC Restricted Stock
Units determined as set forth in Section 2(b) hereof, except that: (1) if the Change in Control occurs prior to the last day of fiscal year 20_, the ROIC Performance Multiplier will be 100%i%
and (2) if the Change in Control occurs upon or after the last day of fiscal year 20__, the ROIC Performance Multiplier shall be determined pursuant to Section 2(b) based upon the
Companya€™s average Return on Invested Capital based on Jacobs Solutions Inc.Restricted Stock Unit Agreement-ROICPage 4 information available as of the Change in Control (taking
into account the consideration per share to be paid in the Change in Control transaction) (taking into account the consideration per share to be paid in the Change in Control transaction)
and (3) the Stock Price Multiplier shall be determined pursuant to Section 2(b) based upon the Companya€™ s stock price per share of Common Stock as of the Change in Control.Following
a Change in Control, except as otherwise set forth in the Plan (including Schedule B thereof), the Earned ROIC Restricted Stock Units shall remain outstanding and subject to the terms and
conditions of the Plan and this Agreement, including the vesting condition of continued employment through the Maturity Date.(f)Except as set forth herein and in the Plan (including
Schedule B thereof, the terms of which shall apply to the Award), Employee has no rights, partial or otherwise in the Award and/or any shares of Jacobs Common Stock subject thereto
unless and until the Award has been earned and vested pursuant to this Section 2.(g)Each Vested Unit shall be settled by the delivery of one share of Common Stock (subject to adjustment
under the Plan), unless the Committee elects to settle the Vested Unit in another form of consideration of equivalent value (as determined by the Committee in its sole discretion) in
connection with or following a Change in Control. If Employee has not made any EDP Deferral Election with respect to Restricted Stock Units that become vested, settlement will occur as
soon as practicable following certification by the Company of the number of Earned ROIC Restricted Stock Units and passage of the Maturity Date (or, if earlier, the date the Award
becomes vested pursuant to the terms of the Plan, including Schedule B thereof, or Section 2(d) above), but in no event later than 30 days following the Maturity Date (or such earlier date
that the Award becomes vested). If Employee has made an EDP Deferral Election, deferred Vested Units shall be settled as soon as practicable following the date elected on Employeea€™s



operative EDP Deferral Election or other settlement date set forth under the terms of the EDP. In any event, no fractional shares shall be issued pursuant to this Agreement.(h)The Award
(and any rights and obligations thereunder) may not be sold, exchanged, transferred, assigned, pledged, hypothecated or otherwise disposed of or hedged, in any manner (including through
the use of any cash-settled instrument), whether voluntarily or involuntarily and whether by operation of law or otherwise, other than (i) by will, (ii) by the laws of descent and distribution
or (iii) to any trust established solely for the benefit of Employee or any spouse, children or grandchildren of Employee, and the Award (and any rights thereunder) will be exercisable during
the life of Employee only by Employee or Employeed€™ s legal representative. Any sale, exchange, transfer, assignment, pledge, hypothecation, or other disposition in violation of the
provisions of this Section 2(h) will be null and void and if the Award is hedged in any manner, it will immediately be forfeited. All of the terms and conditions of the Plan and this Agreement
will be binding upon any permitted successors and assigns. After the shares of Jacobs Common Stock issued under the Award have vested, the holder of such shares is free to assign,
hypothecate, donate, encumber or otherwise dispose of any interest in such shares provided that any such actions are in compliance with the provisions herein, the terms of the
Companya€™s trading policies as may be in effect from time to time and applicable law.3.Section 409A ComplianceNotwithstanding any other provision of the Plan or this Agreement to the
contrary, it is intended that this Award shall be exempted from the definition of &€cenon-qualified deferred compensationa€ within the meaning of Section 409A of the IRS Code (together
with any related regulations or Jacobs Solutions Inc.Restricted Stock Unit Agreement-ROICPage 5 other guidance promulgated with respect to such Section by the U.S. Department of the
Treasury of the Internal Revenue Service, collectively &€ceSection 409A4€), or otherwise comply with the requirements of Section 409A, and the Plan shall be interpreted accordingly
(including to avoid the imposition of any additional or accelerated taxes or other penalties under Section 409A of the Code). Under no circumstances, however, shall the Company have any
liability under the Plan or this Agreement for any taxes, penalties or interest due on amounts paid or payable pursuant to the Plan and/or this Agreement or any EDP Deferral Election,
including any taxes, penalties or interest imposed under Section 409A of the Code. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, to the extent that any payment or
benefit under this Agreement, or any other plan or arrangement of the Company or its affiliates, is determined by the Company to constitute &€cenon-qualified deferred compensationa€
subject to Section 409A and is payable to Employee by reason of Employeed€™s termination of employment, then (a) such payment or benefit shall be made or provided to Employee only
upon a &€ceseparation from servicea€ as defined for purposes of Section 409A under applicable regulations and (b) if Employee is a &€aespecified employeea€ (within the meaning of Section
409A and as determined by the Company), such payment or benefit shall not be made or provided before the date that is six months after the date of Employee&a€™ s separation from service
(or Employeea€™s earlier death). Each payment under this Agreement will be treated as a separate payment under Section 409A of the Code.4.Status of ParticipantExcept as set forth in
this section, Employee shall have no rights as a stockholder (including, without limitation, any voting rights or rights to receive dividends with respect to the shares of Jacobs Common Stock
subject to the Award) with respect to either the Award granted hereunder or the shares of Jacobs Common Stock underlying the Award, unless and until such shares are issued in respect of
Vested Units, and then only to the extent of such issued shares.Notwithstanding the foregoing, Employee is entitled to a &€eeDividend Equivalent Righta€ under the EDP with respect to
each Vested Unit for which delivery of the underlying share of Common Stock has been deferred pursuant to an EDP Deferral Election, to the extent the Company pays any cash dividend
with respect to outstanding Jacobs Common Stock on or after the date on which such Vested Unit is deferred and while such Vested Unit remains outstanding. The term 4€ceDividend
Equivalent Right&€ shall mean a dollar amount equal to the per-share cash dividend paid by the Company. Except as otherwise provided under the terms of the EDP or EDP Deferral
Election, if applicable: (a) any Dividend Equivalent Right with respect to Vested Units will be paid to Employee in cash at the same time that the Company pays a dividend with respect to
outstanding Jacobs Common Stock; and (b) Employee will not be credited with Dividend Equivalent Rights with respect to any Restricted Stock Unit prior to vesting or to any Restricted
Stock Unit that, as of the record date for the relevant dividend, is no longer outstanding for any reason (e.g., because it has been settled in Common Stock or has been terminated), and
Employee will not be entitled to any payment for Dividend Equivalent Rights with respect to any Restricted Stock Unit that terminates without vesting. For purposes of this Agreement, a
Vested Unit that has not yet been Jacobs Solutions Inc.Restricted Stock Unit Agreement-ROICPage 6 settled (e.g., because of an EDP Deferral Election) shall be considered outstanding for
purposes of this Section 4.No shares may be issued in respect of Vested Units if, in the opinion of counsel for the Company, all then applicable requirements of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and any other regulatory agencies having jurisdiction and of any stock exchange upon which the shares of the Company may be listed are not fully met, and, as a condition of
the issuance of shares, Employee shall take all such action as counsel may advise is necessary for Employee to take to meet such requirements.5.Nature of AwardIn accepting the Award,
Employee acknowledges, understands and agrees that:(a)The Plan is established voluntarily by the Company, it is discretionary in nature and it may be modified, amended, suspended or
terminated by the Company at any time, to the extent permitted by the Plan;(b)The Award of the Restricted Stock Units hereunder is voluntary and occasional and does not create any
contractual or other right to receive future Awards of Restricted Stock Units, or any benefits in lieu of Restricted Stock Units, even if Restricted Stock Units have been awarded in the past;
(c)All decisions with respect to future Restricted Stock Unit or other awards, if any, will be at the sole discretion of the Company;(d)The Award and Employeea€ ™s participation in the Plan
shall not create a right to employment or be interpreted as forming an employment or services contract with the Company, or any Related Companies and shall not interfere with the ability
of the Company, or any Related Company, as applicable, to terminate Employee&€™s employment or service relationship (if any);(e)The Award and the shares of Jacobs Common Stock
subject to the Award, the value of same, and any ultimate gain, loss, income or expense associated with the Award are not part of Employeea€™ s normal or expected compensation for
purposes of calculating any severance, resignation, termination, redundancy, dismissal, end-of-service payments, bonuses, long-service awards, pension or retirement or welfare benefits or
similar payments;(f)No claim or entitlement to compensation or damages shall arise from forfeiture of the Award for any reason, including forfeiture resulting from Employee ceasing to
provide employment or other services to the Company or any Related Company (for any reason whatsoever whether or not later found to be invalid or in breach of employment laws in the
jurisdiction where Employee is employed or the terms of Employeed€™s employment agreement, if any), and in consideration of the Award to which Employee is otherwise not entitled,
Employee irrevocably agrees never to institute or allow to be instituted on Employeea€™ s behalf any claim against the Company or any of its Related Companies, waives Employeea€™s
ability, if any, to bring any such claim, and releases the Company and any Related Companies from any such claim; if, notwithstanding the foregoing, any such claim is allowed by a court of
competent jurisdiction, then, by participating in the Plan, Employee shall be deemed irrevocably to have agreed not to pursue such claim and agrees to execute any and all documents
necessary to request dismissal or withdrawal of such claim.Jacobs Solutions Inc.Restricted Stock Unit Agreement-ROICPage 7 6.Data PrivacyEmployee understands that the Company
and/or a Related Company may hold certain personal information about Employee in connection with this Agreement (including the terms of the EDP and EDP Deferral Election to the extent
applicable under Section 1), including, but not limited to, Employeea€™s name, home address and telephone number, date of birth, social security number or other identification number,
salary, nationality, job title, any shares of Jacobs Common Stock or directorships held in the Company, details of all Awards or any other entitlement to shares of Jacobs Common Stock
awarded, canceled, exercised, vested, unvested or outstanding in Employeea€™s favor, for the exclusive purpose of implementing, administering and managing the Plan and this Agreement
(&€mDataé€).Employee hereby explicitly and unambiguously consents to the collection, use and transfer, in electronic or other form, of Employeea€™ s personal Data by and among, as
applicable, the Company and its Related Companies for the exclusive purpose of implementing, administering and managing Employeed€™ s participation in the Plan and under this
Agreement.Employee understands that Data will be transferred to the Companya€™ s broker, administrative agents or such other stock plan service provider as may be selected by the
Company in the future, which is assisting the Company with the implementation, administration and management of the Plan. Employee understands that the recipients of the Data may be
located in the United States or elsewhere, and that the recipientsa€™ country or countries in which such recipients reside or operate (e.g., the United States) may have different data
privacy laws and protections than Employeea€™ s country. Employee understands that if Employee resides outside the United States, Employee may request a list with the names and
addresses of any potential recipients of the Data by contacting Employee&€™ s local human resources representative. Employee understands that Data will be held only as long as is
necessary to implement, administer and manage Employeed€™ s participation in the Plan and this Agreement or as required under applicable law.7.Payment of Withholding TaxesEmployee
acknowledges that, regardless of any action taken by the Company or Related Companies or, if different, Employeea€™ s employer (the &€ceEmployera€) the ultimate liability for all income
tax, social insurance, payroll tax, fringe benefits tax, payment on account or other tax-related items related to Employeea€ ™s participation in the Plan and legally applicable to Employee or
deemed by the Company, Related Company or the Employer in its discretion to be an appropriate charge to Employee even if legally applicable to the Company, Related Company or the
Employer (d€ceTax-Related Itemsa€), is and remains Employeed€™ s responsibility and may exceed the amount actually withheld by the Company, Related Company or the Employer.
Employee further acknowledges and agrees that the Company or Related Company and/or the Employer may, if it so determines, offset any Employer tax liabilities deemed applicable to
Employee by reducing the shares of Jacobs Common Stock otherwise deliverable to Employee pursuant to this Agreement. Employee further acknowledges that the Company, Related
Company and/or the Employer (1) make no representations or undertakings regarding the treatment of any Tax-Jacobs Solutions Inc.Restricted Stock Unit Agreement-ROICPage 8 Related
Items in connection with any aspect of the Restricted Stock Units including, but not limited to, the grant, vesting or settlement of the Restricted Stock Units, the subsequent sale of shares
of Jacobs Common Stock acquired pursuant to such settlementi% and (2) do not commit to and are under no obligation to structure the terms of the Award or any aspect of the Restricted
Stock Units to reduce or eliminate Employeea€ ™ s liability for Tax-Related Items or achieve any particular tax result. Further, if Employee is subject to Tax-Related Items in more than one
jurisdiction between the Award Date and the date of any relevant taxable or tax withholding event, as applicable, Employee acknowledges that the Company, Related Company and/or the
Employer (or former employer, as applicable) may be required to withhold or account for Tax-Related Items in more than one jurisdiction. The Company may refuse to issue or deliver any
shares of Jacobs Common Stock to Employee until the obligation for any Tax-Related Items due in connection with the Award has been satisfied.Under no circumstances can the Company
be required to withhold from the shares of Jacobs Common Stock that would otherwise be delivered to Employee upon settlement of the Award a number of shares having a total Fair
Market Value that exceeds the amount of withholding taxes as determined by the Company at the time the Award vests.8.Services as EmployeeEmployee shall not be deemed to have ceased
to be employed by the Company (or any Related Company) for purposes of this Agreement by reason of Employeea€™s transfer to a Related Company (or to the Company or to another
Related Company). The Committee may determine that, for purposes of this Agreement, Employee shall be considered as still in the employ of the Company or of the Related Company while
on leave of absence.Nothing contained in this Agreement or the Plan constitutes an employment or service commitment by the Company or any Related Company, affects Employeea€™s
status as an employee at will who is subject to termination without cause, confers upon Employee any right to remain employed by or in service to the Company or any Related Company,
interferes in any way with the right of the Company or any Related Company, as applicable, at any time to terminate such employment or services, or affects the right of the Company or any
Related Company, as applicable, to increase or decrease Employeea€™s other compensation or benefits. Nothing in this Section, however, is intended to adversely affect any independent
contractual right of Employee (if any) without Employeea€™s consent thereto.9.Miscellaneous ProvisionsThis Agreement is governed in all respects by the Plan and applicable law. In the
event of any inconsistency between the terms of the Plan and this Agreement, (including the 4€ceTerms for International Employeesa€), the terms of the Plan shall prevail. Subject to the
limitations of the Plan, the Company may, with the written consent of Employee, amend this Agreement. This Agreement shall be construed, administered and enforced according to the
laws of the State of Delaware. By accepting this Agreement, Employee agrees to submit to the jurisdiction and venue Jacobs Solutions Inc.Restricted Stock Unit Agreement-ROICPage 9 of
any court of competent jurisdiction in Delaware without regard to conflict of laws, rules or principles, for any claim arising out of this Agreement.10.ClawbackBy signing (electronically or
otherwise) this Agreement and/or electronically accepting the associated Award grant, Employee agrees to be bound by, and subject to, the terms and conditions of: (a) the Companya€™s
Mandatory Clawback Policy (as may be amended from time to time) if Employee is or becomes a Section 16 executive officer, (b) the Companya€™s Enhanced Clawback Policy (as may be
amended from time to time), including the restrictive covenants set forth therein, which Enhanced Clawback Policy shall apply to incentive-based compensation granted to Employee in any
prior fiscal year to the extent Employeea€™ s target long-term incentive award opportunity for such fiscal year based on the grant date value was equal to or greater than $500,000, (c) any
clawback and forfeiture provisions set forth in this Agreement and (d) any other clawback, forfeiture, recoupment, or similar requirement required to apply to incentive-based compensation
granted to Employee under the programs, policies and procedures of the Company (as may be adopted from time to time) by any current or future applicable law or listing standard or
regulatory body. 11.Agreement of EmployeeBy signing (electronically or otherwise) this Agreement and/or electronically accepting the associated Award grant, Employee (1) agrees to the
terms and conditions of this Agreement, (2) confirms receipt of a copy of the Plan and all amendments and supplements thereto, and (3) appoints the officers of the Company as
Employeea€™s true and lawful attorney-in-fact, with full power of substitution in the premises, granting to each full power and authority to do and perform any and every act whatsoever
requisite, necessary, or proper to be done, on behalf of Employee which, in the opinion of such attorney-in-fact, is necessary or prudent to effect the delivery of the Jacobs Common Stock to
Employee or the forfeiture of the Award to the Company, in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this
Agreement as of the date set forth above. JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. Robert V. Pragada Chief Executive Officer EX-10.3 4 exhibit103-offerletterxven.htm EX-10.3 DocumentExhibit 10.31999
Bryan StreetFloor 35Dallas, TX 75201USAMay 8, 2024Mr. Venkatesh NathamuniDelivered via e-mailJacobs is embarking on a new and bold strategy that enables us to deliver purpose
driven and technology enabled solutions to our clients. This strategy requires that we have a culture of inspiration, inclusion, and innovation and that we have a strong leadership team to
drive and implement our bold strategy. I am pleased to confirm our offer to you to join us atA Jacobs Solutions Inc. as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (CFO). You will
report directly to me and will be a key member of the Executive Leadership Team who will lead and drive this important strategy to create our future. We are excited about the vision,
capabilities, and leadership that you will bring to Jacobs.Below are the compensation elements offered to you for the EVP and CFO role:a€¢Date of hire is anticipated to be June 3, 2024
upon acceptance of the terms and conditions outlined in this letter and the attached Employee Acceptance Statement. 4€¢Biweekly pay rate of $24,038A for an annual starting salary of
$625,000. Compensation is reviewed annually and is based on individual performance and market competitiveness. The position is classified as exempt.A a€¢Participation in Jacobsa€™
Leadership Performance Plan (LPP) with an incentive target ofA 100% of your base salary ($625,000).A Your fiscal year (4€ceFYa€) 2024 opportunity will not be prorated, meaning you will
be paid based on the LPPA€™ s established performance metrics for corporate functions as though you were with Jacobs the entirety of FY2024.A Annual incentives are based on position
and are subject to performance and other requirements as described in the terms and conditions of the plan.A 4€¢A FY2024 Leadership Long Term Incentive (LLTI) award of $1,750,000, as
approved by the Board. Per practice for executives at your level, 40% of the LTI value ($700,000) will be granted as restricted stock units (RSUs) and 60% of the LTI value ($1,050,000) will
be granted as performance stock units (PSUs). All stock grants are subject to your acceptance of the associated restricted covenants outlined for stock grants at Jacobs. Below is the
breakout of both RSUs and PSUs:Restricted Stock Units (RSUs) - $700,000 will be granted on your first day of employment and will vest 25% on each anniversary of the grant date, subject
to your continued employment. The specific number of RSUs will be determined based on the closing stock price on the grant date. Performance Stock Units (PSUs) - $1,050,000
Performance Stock Units (PSUs) with a three-year performance period ending November 2026 based on the same performance targets as the fiscal year 2024 grants provided to the
Companya€™s senior management in November 2023.4€¢A sign-on bonus of $500,000 in the form of Restricted Stock Units (RSUs), as approved by the Board, will be granted on your first
day of employment, with 50% vesting after one year and the remaining 50% vesting after the second year from the grant date. This grant is also subject to your acceptance of the associated
restricted covenants.Venkatesh Nathamuni 4&€¢A cash sign-on bonus of $150,000 paid to you within 30 days of your start date with Jacobs. If you should voluntarily resign prior to June



2025, you agree to repay Jacobs 50% of your sign on bonus.a€¢Eligibility to participate in the Jacobsa€™ Executive Deferral Plan (EDP), subject to the terms and conditions of the plan. This
voluntary plan is reserved for a select group of management and highly compensated employees. The Executive Deferral Plan is a 4€cenon-qualifieda€ plan which assists participants in
achieving retirement income objectives in a tax efficient way. Current tax laws limit the amount of compensation that employees can tax defer under a€cequalifieda€ benefit programs, such
as a 401(k) plan. The EDP allows mid-year hires to defer up to 50 percent of their base pay and 100% of LTI awards, and in November for the annual enrollment process you can also defer
up to 50 percent of your annual bonus. We will provide you with enrollment materials separately from this letter. A If you are interested in deferring your LTI awards this year, A you must
make your election prior to your start date.A Otherwise,A base salaryA deferral elections must be made during your first 30 days of employment.A All elections, once made,A are
irrevocableA until the next EDP plan year enrollment and elections period; we encourage you to obtain your own tax advice relative to whether to participate and at what deferral levels in
the EDP.a€¢ Participation in the US-based employee benefits program described in the enclosed benefits brochure.a€¢As an EVP, you will be a participant in our Personalized Paid-Time Off
program and eligible for an annual executive physical and financial services through AYCO.As approved by the Human Resources and Compensation Committee of the Board, you will also
be eligible, subject to its terms, for the Jacobs Solutions, Inc. Executive Severance Plan (4&€ceExecutive Severance Plana€), attached. A Please review the enclosed Employee Acceptance
Statement, which notes our conditions of employment and your rights and responsibilities. A None of the provisions of this letter or any other Jacobsa€™ policy or procedure will be
construed as an employment agreement.A Jacobs is an employer-at-will, wherein either party may terminate the employment relationship with or without cause at any time. A A If you agree
to the foregoing terms of employment and accept this conditional offer, please accept this offer by May 13, 2024.A By accepting this offer you also acknowledge that you are not relying on
any promises or representations other than those set forth above in deciding to accept this conditional offer of employment.A A A Venk, we are very pleased at the prospect of you joining
Jacobs, and I look forward to your enterprise-wide leadership and the contributions you will make towards Jacobsa€™ future success.A A Sincerely,/s/ Bob PragadaA Bob PragadaChief
Executive OfficerA Venkatesh Nathamuni2 Please sign, date, and return your acceptance to Shelie Gustafson at shelie.gustafson@jacobs.com.I hereby accept the terms and conditions of

this offer letter.A /s/ Venkatesh NathamuniAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAMay 12, 2024 AAAAAAAA Venkatesh
NathamuniAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAADateATTACHMENTS:2024 Benefits Guide2024 Holiday ScheduleFY24 LTI and LPP BrochuresExecutive Deferral
PlanExecutive Severance PolicyVenkatesh Nathamuni3 A EMPLOYEE ACCEPTANCE STATEMENTA A The following information addresses Jacobsa€™ employment requirements and your
rights and responsibilities. Jacobs is an employer at will; wherein, either party may conclude the employment relationship at any time.A Equal Employment OpportunityJacobs provides a
workplace free of discrimination and harassment. Our Equal Employment Opportunity and Affirmative Action Programs promote equality in the design and administration of personnel
actions, such as recruitment, compensation, benefits, transfers and promotions, training, and social and recreational programs. These activities shall be administered equitably without
regard to race, color, religion, gender, national origin, age, sexual orientation, gender identity, disability, veteran status or any other characteristic protected by country, regional or local
law.Any employee with questions or concerns about any type of discrimination in the workplace is encouraged to bring these issues to the attention of his/her immediate supervisor, the
Human Resources Department, the Compliance Officer and/or the Integrity Hotline. Employees can raise concerns and make reports without fear of reprisal. Anyone found to be engaging
in any type of unlawful discrimination will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment.A ReferencesEmployment is conditional upon completion of an
application of employment. Employment is also conditional upon satisfactory reference checks and/or background screening, as appropriate. You authorize any and all persons, schools,
companies, and other organizations to supply Jacobs with any information they have concerning you as it relates to employment eligibility and qualifications and release them from liability
with respect thereto. You agree that if Jacobs finds any misrepresentation or is dissatisfied with the results of any portion of this review, any offer of employment may be withdrawn or
employment terminated.A Employment EligibilityAs a requirement of the U.S. Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, all employees hired to work in the United States must show
evidence of employment eligibility and identity. Employment is conditional upon your ability to verify your eligibility for employment with Jacobs in the United States. During the onboarding
process, you will be asked to provide information and acceptable documents in order to complete the Form I-9, Employment Eligibility Verification.A The list of acceptable documents can
be found on the form which can be found on the U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services web site at http://www.uscis.gov/i-9.A Please be prepared to comply with this requirement within
three (3) business days of starting work.A A Drug-Free WorkplaceYou understand that in accordance with Jacobsa€™ policy, employment is conditional upon you passing a pre-employment
drug screen prior to your start date.A Confidentiality and Business ConductAs a further condition of employment and as part of your Onboarding process, you will be asked to read and
acknowledge a Confidentiality Agreement and the Jacobs Code of Conduct.A 31 Day Benefits Rule (Applies to Benefits-Eligible Employees only)Due to Section 125 of the IRS Regulations,
employees are required to enroll in benefits within 31 days of Venkatesh Nathamuni4 eligibility.A Your date of eligibility is your date of hire mentioned in the above letter.A A Benefits are
effective on the first of the month coincident with or following your date of hire.A You have 31 days from the date of your eligibility to enroll in benefits.A If you do not enroll by this
deadline, you will waive your privilege to participate in those Jacobs benefits for which no enrollment election was made.A You will not be able to make any changes or elect benefits
UNLESS you experience an IRS Qualified Life Event or during annual enrollment (generally held in the fall for an effective date of January 1).A Venkatesh Nathamuni5 EX-31.1 5
exhibit311q1fy2025.htm EX-31.1 DocumentExhibit 31.1CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICERPursuant to SectionA 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20021, Bob Pragada, certify
that:1.I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended DecemberA 27, 2024 of Jacobs Solutions Inc.;2.Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any
untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;3.Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;4.The registranta€™s other certifying
officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:a.Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure
controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;b.Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control
over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;c.Evaluated the effectiveness of the registranta€™s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; andd.Disclosed in this
report any change in the registrantd€™ s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registranta€™s most recent fiscal quarter (the registranta€™s fourth fiscal
quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registranta€™ s internal control over financial reporting; and5.The
registranta€™s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registranta€™s auditors and the audit
committee of the registranta€™ s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):a.All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of
internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registranta€™s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; andb.Any
fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting./s/ Bob PragadaBob
PragadaChief Executive OfficerA February 4, 2025 EX-31.2 6 exhibit312q1fy2025.htm EX-31.2 DocumentExhibit 31.2CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICERPursuant to
SectionA 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20021, Venk Nathamuni, certify that:1.I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended DecemberA 27, 2024 of Jacobs
Solutions Inc.;2.Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light
of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;3.Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and
other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;4.The registranta€™ s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:a.Designed
such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;b.Designed such
internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;c.Evaluated the effectiveness
of the registranta€™s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; andd.Disclosed in this report any change in the registranta€™ s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registranta€™s most recent fiscal quarter (the registranta€™s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
the registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting; and5.The registranta€™ s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):a.All significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registranta€™s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; andb.Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting./s/ Venk NathamuniVenk NathamuniChief Financial OfficerFebruary 4, 2025 EX-32.1 7 exhibit321q1fy2025.htm EX-32.1
DocumentExhibit 32.1CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICERPursuant to 18 U.S.C. SectionA 1350Adopted Pursuant to SectionA 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002In
connection with the Quarterly Report of Jacobs Solutions Inc. (the 4€ceCompanya€) on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended DecemberA 27, 2024 as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on the date hereof (the &€ceReporta€), I, Bob Pragada, Chief Executive Officer of the Company (principal executive officer), certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. SectionA 1350, as
adopted pursuant to SectionA 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that: (1)A the Report fully complies with the requirements of SectionA 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934; and (2)A the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company./s/Bob PragadaBob
PragadaChief Executive OfficerA February 4, 2025A signed original of this written statement required by SectionA 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request. EX-32.2 8 exhibit322q1fy2025.htm EX-32.2 DocumentExhibit 32.2CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF
FINANCIAL OFFICERPursuant to 18 U.S.C. SectionA 1350Adopted Pursuant to SectionA 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002In connection with the Quarterly Report of Jacobs Solutions
Inc. (the 4€ceCompanya€) on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended DecemberA 27, 2024 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the &€ceReporta€), I, Venk
Nathamuni, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. SectionA 1350, as adopted pursuant to SectionA 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that: (1)A the
Report fully complies with the requirements of SectionA 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and (2)A the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all
material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company./s/ Venk NathamuniVenk NathamuniChief Financial OfficerA February 4, 2025A signed original of this
written statement required by SectionA 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff
upon request. EX-101.SCH 9 jec-20241227.xsd XBRL TAXONOMY EXTENSION SCHEMA DOCUMENT 0000001 - Document - Cover Page link:presentationLink link:calculationLink
link:definitionLink 9952151 - Statement - CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9952152 - Statement - CONSOLIDATED
BALANCE SHEETS (Parenthetical) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9952153 - Statement - CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9952154 - Statement - CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME link:presentationLink
link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9952155 - Statement - CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERSa€™ EQUITY link:presentationLink link:calculationLink
link:definitionLink 9952156 - Statement - CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS&€™ EQUITY (Parenthetical) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink
9952157 - Statement - CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9952158 - Disclosure - Basis of Presentation
link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9952159 - Disclosure - Use of Estimates and Assumptions link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9952160
- Disclosure - Fair Value and Fair Value Measurements link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9952161 - Disclosure - New Accounting Pronouncements
link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9952162 - Disclosure - Revenue Accounting for Contracts link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9952163
- Disclosure - Earnings Per Share and Certain Related Information link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9952164 - Disclosure - Goodwill and Intangibles
link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9952165 - Disclosure - Receivables and Contract Assets link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9952166 -
Disclosure - Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9952167 - Disclosure - Income Taxes link:presentationLink
link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9952168 - Disclosure - Joint Ventures, VIEs and Other Investments link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9952169 - Disclosure
- Borrowings link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9952170 - Disclosure - Leases link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9952171 - Disclosure -
Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9952172 - Disclosure - Discontinued Operations link:presentationLink
link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9952173 - Disclosure - PA Consulting Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9952174 -
Disclosure - Restructuring and Other Charges link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9952175 - Disclosure - Commitments and Contingencies and Derivative Financial
Instruments link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9952176 - Disclosure - Segment Information link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955511
- Disclosure - Use of Estimates and Assumptions (Policies) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955512 - Disclosure - Revenue Accounting for Contracts (Tables)
link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955513 - Disclosure - Earnings Per Share and Certain Related Information (Tables) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink
link:definitionLink 9955514 - Disclosure - Goodwill and Intangibles (Tables) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955515 - Disclosure - Receivables and Contract
Assets (Tables) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955516 - Disclosure - Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Tables) link:presentationLink
link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955517 - Disclosure - Borrowings (Tables) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955518 - Disclosure - Leases (Tables)
link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955519 - Disclosure - Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans (Tables) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink
link:definitionLink 9955520 - Disclosure - Discontinued Operations (Tables) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955521 - Disclosure - PA Consulting Redeemable
Noncontrolling Interests (Tables) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955522 - Disclosure - Restructuring and Other Charges (Tables) link:presentationLink




link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955523 - Disclosure - Segment Information (Tables) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955524 - Disclosure - Basis of
Presentation (Details) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955525 - Disclosure - Revenue Accounting for Contracts - Schedule of Disaggregation of Revenue
(Details) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955526 - Disclosure - Revenue Accounting for Contracts - Contract Liabilities (Details) link:presentationLink
link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955527 - Disclosure - Revenue Accounting for Contracts - Remaining Performance Obligation (Details) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink
link:definitionLink 9955527 - Disclosure - Revenue Accounting for Contracts - Remaining Performance Obligation (Details) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink
9955528 - Disclosure - Earnings Per Share and Certain Related Information - Schedule of EPS to Denominator (Details) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink
9955529 - Disclosure - Earnings Per Share and Certain Related Information - Narrative (Details) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955530 - Disclosure -
Earnings Per Share and Certain Related Information - Schedule of Share Repurchases (Details) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955531 - Disclosure - Earnings
Per Share and Certain Related Information - Schedule of Dividends (Details) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955532 - Disclosure - Goodwill and Intangibles -
Schedule of Carrying Value of Goodwill by Reportable Segment Appearing in Accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets (Details) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink
link:definitionLink 9955533 - Disclosure - Goodwill and Intangibles - Schedule of Acquired Intangibles in Accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets (Details) link:presentationLink
link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955534 - Disclosure - Goodwill and Intangibles - Schedule of Estimated Amortization Expense of Intangible Assets (Details) link:presentationLink
link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955535 - Disclosure - Receivables and Contract Assets (Details) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955536 - Disclosure -
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Details) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955537 - Disclosure - Income Taxes (Details) link:presentationLink
link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955538 - Disclosure - Joint Ventures, VIEs and Other Investments (Details) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955539 -
Disclosure - Borrowings - Schedule of Long-term Debt (Details) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955540 - Disclosure - Borrowings - Narrative (Details)
link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955541 - Disclosure - Leases - Schedule of Lease Cost (Details) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink
9955542 - Disclosure - Leases - Schedule of Supplemental Cash Flow (Details) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955543 - Disclosure - Leases - Schedule of
Operating Lease Maturity (Details) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955543 - Disclosure - Leases - Schedule of Operating Lease Maturity (Details)
link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955544 - Disclosure - Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans - Schedule of Pension Plans' Expense (Details)
link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955545 - Disclosure - Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans - Schedule of Certain Information Regarding Cash
Contributions (Details) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955546 - Disclosure - Discontinued Operations - Narrative (Details) link:presentationLink
link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955547 - Disclosure - Discontinued Operations- Schedule of Earnings (Loss) From Discontinued Operations, Net of tax (Details)
link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955548 - Disclosure - Discontinued Operations - Schedule of Notable Components Included In Consolidated Statements of
Cash Flows For These Discontinued Operations (Details) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955549 - Disclosure - PA Consulting Redeemable Noncontrolling
Interests - Narrative (Details) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955550 - Disclosure - PA Consulting Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests - Schedule of Change
in Redeemable Noncontrolling Interest (Details) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955551 - Disclosure - Restructuring and Other Charges - Schedule of
Restructuring and Other Charges Impacts on Reportable Segment Income by Line of Business (Details) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955552 - Disclosure -
Restructuring and Other Charges - Schedule of Restructuring and Other Activities (Details) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955553 - Disclosure -
Restructuring and Other Charges - Schedule of Restructuring and Other Activities by Major Type of Costs (Details) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955554 -
Disclosure - Restructuring and Other Charges - Schedule of Cumulative Amounts Incurred for Restructuring and Other Activities Costs (Details) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink
link:definitionLink 9955555 - Disclosure - Commitments and Contingencies and Derivative Financial Instruments (Details) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink
9955556 - Disclosure - Segment Information - Narrative (Details) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 9955557 - Disclosure - Segment Information - Schedule of
Total Revenues, Segment Operating Profit and Total Asset for Reporting Segment (Details) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink EX-101.CAL 10 jec-

20241227 _cal.xml XBRL TAXONOMY EXTENSION CALCULATION LINKBASE DOCUMENT EX-101.DEF 11 jec-20241227_def.xml XBRL TAXONOMY EXTENSION DEFINITION LINKBASE
DOCUMENT EX-101.LAB 12 jec-20241227 lab.xml XBRL TAXONOMY EXTENSION LABEL LINKBASE DOCUMENT Repurchase of redeemable noncontrolling interests Repurchase of
redeemable noncontrolling interests Payments for Repurchase of Redeemable Noncontrolling Interest Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) earnings to net cash flows provided by operations:
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income (Loss) to Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities [Abstract] Statistical Measurement [Domain] Statistical Measurement [Domain] Repayments
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Expected Timing of Satisfaction, Start Date [Axis] Cash flow hedges Derivative gains (losses), deferred tax expense (benefit) Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Cash Flow Hedge, Gain
(Loss), after Reclassification, Tax Basis of Presentation Organization, Consolidation and Presentation of Financial Statements Disclosure [Text Block] Non-Rule 10b5-1 Arrangement Adopted
Non-Rule 10b5-1 Arrangement Adopted [Flag] Net (Loss) Earnings of the Group from Continuing Operations Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations, Net of Tax, Including Portion
Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest Fair Value and Fair Value Measurements Fair Value Disclosures [Text Block] Restructuring and Related Activities [Abstract] Restructuring and
Related Activities [Abstract] Other comprehensive (loss) income before taxes Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), before Tax Award Timing Disclosures [Line Items] Gain on derivatives,
before taxes Derivative, Gain (Loss) on Derivative, Net Investment, Name [Domain] Investment, Name [Domain] Other Performance Measure, Amount Other Performance Measure, Amount
2028 Finite-Lived Intangible Asset, Expected Amortization, Year Three Step Up Date Axis [Domain] Step Up Date Axis [Domain] Step Up Date Axis [Domain] Goodwill [Line Items] Goodwill
[Line Items] Leases Lessee, Operating Leases [Text Block] Common stock, outstanding (in shares) Common Stock, Shares, Outstanding Operating lease expense Operating Lease, Cost
Discontinued Operations, Disposed of by Means Other than Sale, Spinoff Discontinued Operations, Disposed of by Means Other than Sale, Spinoff [Member] Long-term operating lease
liability Operating Lease, Liability, Noncurrent Repurchase of redeemable noncontrolling interests Noncontrolling Interest, Decrease from Redemptions or Purchase of Interests Cash Flows
from Financing Activities: Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities, Continuing Operations [Abstract] Revenue from Contract with Customer [Abstract] Revenue from Contract
with Customer [Abstract] United States UNITED STATES Service cost Defined Benefit Plan, Service Cost Less Cash and Cash Equivalents included in Assets held for spin Disposal Group,
Including Discontinued Operation, Cash and Cash Equivalents Total other noncurrent assets Other Assets, Noncurrent Entity Tax Identification Number Entity Tax Identification Number
Leases [Abstract] Schedule of Long-term Debt Schedule of Long-Term Debt Instruments [Table Text Block] New Accounting Pronouncements and Changes in Accounting Principles
[Abstract] Accounting Standards Update and Change in Accounting Principle [Abstract] Receivables and Contract Assets Loans, Notes, Trade and Other Receivables Disclosure [Text Block]
Operating Segments Operating Segments [Member] Equity method investment retained, shares transferred to escrow (in shares) Discontinued Operation, Shares Transferred to Escrow
Discontinued Operation, Shares Transferred to Escrow Net cash provided by operating activities Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities [Abstract] Schedule of Reclassification out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income Schedule of Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income (Loss) [Table Text Block] Earnings Per Share Reconciliation [Abstract] Earnings Per Share Reconciliation [Abstract] Intangible assets Disposal Group, Including
Discontinued Operations, Amortization of Intangible Assets Disposal Group, Including Discontinued Operations, Amortization of Intangible Assets Schedule of Restructuring and Other
Activities by Major Type of Costs Schedule Of Major Type Of Restructuring Cost [Table Text Block] Schedule of major type of restructuring Prepaid expenses and other Prepaid Expense,
Current Equity Components [Axis] Equity Components [Axis] Award Timing Method Award Timing Method [Text Block] Total net periodic pension benefit expense recognized Defined
Benefit Plan, Net Periodic Benefit Cost (Credit) Trading Arrangements, by Individual Trading Arrangements, by Individual [Table] Restructuring Type [Axis] Restructuring Type [Axis] Trade
Names Trade Names [Member] Noncontrolling Interest [Line Items] Noncontrolling Interest [Line Items] Cash in employee benefit trust Business Combination, Recognized Identifiable
Assets Acquired and Liabilities Assumed, Employee Benefit Trust, Cash Business Combination, Recognized Identifiable Assets Acquired and Liabilities Assumed, Employee Benefit Trust,
Cash Entity Common Stock, Shares Outstanding Entity Common Stock, Shares Outstanding Insider Trading Policies and Procedures [Line Items] Cash received from SpinCo business
Proceeds from Divestiture of Businesses Use of Estimates and Assumptions Use of Estimates, Policy [Policy Text Block] Second Amendment to the Revolving Credit Facility Second
Amendment to the Revolving Credit Facility [Member] Second Amendment to the Revolving Credit Facility Business Acquisition, Acquiree [Domain] Business Acquisition, Acquiree [Domain]
Other Comprehensive Income: Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), before Tax [Abstract] Cash contributions made during the first three months of fiscal 2025 Payment for Pension Benefits
Adjustment to Compensation, Amount Adjustment to Compensation Amount Additional paid-in capital Additional Paid in Capital, Common Stock Compensation Amount Outstanding
Recovery Compensation Amount Diluted (Loss) Earnings Per Share Earnings Per Share, Diluted [Abstract] Disposal Group Classification [Axis] Disposal Group Classification [Axis]
Aggregate Change in Present Value of Accumulated Benefit for All Pension Plans Reported in Summary Compensation Table Aggregate Change in Present Value of Accumulated Benefit for
All Pension Plans Reported in Summary Compensation Table [Member] Entity Small Business Entity Small Business U.S tax on foreign earnings Effective Income Tax Rate Reconciliation,
Repatriation of Foreign Earnings, Amount Developed Technology Developed Technology Rights [Member] Company Selected Measure Amount Company Selected Measure Amount
Geographical [Axis] Geographical [Axis] Schedule of Restructuring and Other Charges Impacts on Reportable Segment Income by Line of Business Restructuring and Related Costs [Table
Text Block] Debt issuance costs Payments of Debt Issuance Costs Tabular List, Table Tabular List [Table Text Block] Receivables and contract assets Total receivables and contract assets,
net Receivables, Net, Current Unrealized gain (loss) on derivatives Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Derivatives Repurchases of equity securities Stock Repurchased During Period, Value
Aggregate Grant Date Fair Value of Equity Award Amounts Reported in Summary Compensation Table Aggregate Grant Date Fair Value of Equity Award Amounts Reported in Summary
Compensation Table [Member] Accrued liabilities Accrued Liabilities, Current Antidilutive securities excluded from computation of EPS (in shares) Antidilutive Securities Excluded from
Computation of Earnings Per Share, Amount Net Earnings Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests from Discontinued Operations Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations, Net of Tax,
Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest Payments and other Payments for Restructuring Capital contributions to equity investees, net of return of capital distributions Payments for
(Proceeds from) Investments Credit Facility [Domain] Credit Facility [Domain] Cash and Cash Equivalents, including Restricted Cash of Continuing Operations at the End of the Period Cash,
Cash Equivalents, Restricted Cash, and Restricted Cash Equivalents Change in indefinite reinvestment assertion in foreign subsidiary Effective Income Tax Rate Reconciliation, Deferred
Tax Expense (Benefit), Change in Indefinite Reinvestment Assertion in Foreign Subsidiary Effective Income Tax Rate Reconciliation, Deferred Tax Expense (Benefit), Change in Indefinite
Reinvestment Assertion in Foreign Subsidiary Net (loss) earnings Net Income (Loss), Excluding Portion Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest Net Income (Loss), Excluding Portion
Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest Current Assets: Assets, Current [Abstract] Goodwill Balance at the beginning of the period Balance at the end of the period Goodwill Consolidation
Items Consolidation Items [Axis] Taxes paid on vested restricted stock Payment, Tax Withholding, Share-Based Payment Arrangement Amount authorized to be repurchased Share
Repurchase Program, Authorized, Amount Net (Loss) Earnings Attributable to Jacobs from Continuing Operations Net (loss) earnings attributable to Jacobs from continuing operations
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations, Net of Tax, Attributable to Parent Infrastructure & Advanced Facilities Infrastructure & Advanced Facilities [Member] Infrastructure &
Advanced Facilities Forgone Recovery due to Disqualification of Tax Benefits, Amount Forgone Recovery due to Disqualification of Tax Benefits, Amount Covenant, leverage ratio, maximum
Debt Instrument, Covenant, Leverage Ratio, Maximum Debt Instrument, Covenant, Leverage Ratio, Maximum Employee Stock Option Share-Based Payment Arrangement, Option [Member]
Foreign Exchange Forward Foreign Exchange Forward [Member] Sub Facility Of Swing Line Loans Sub Facility Of Swing Line Loans [Member] Sub facility of swing line loans. Goodwill
[Roll Forward] Goodwill [Roll Forward] Fair Value Disclosures [Abstract] Fair Value Disclosures [Abstract] 2026 Lessee, Operating Lease, Liability, to be Paid, Year One Net Comprehensive
(Loss) Income Attributable to Jacobs Comprehensive Income (Loss), Net of Tax, Attributable to Parent CH2M HILL Companies, Ltd. C H2 M H I L L. Companies Limited [Member] CH2M
HILL companies, Ltd. 6.35% Bonds 6.35% Bonds [Member] 6.35% Bonds Preferred stock, outstanding (in shares) Preferred Stock, Shares Outstanding Security Exchange Name Security
Exchange Name Debt instrument, basis spread on variable rate Debt Instrument, Basis Spread on Variable Rate Total Expected Contributions To Funded Pension Plans Expected
contributions to funded pension plans. Award Type Award Type [Axis] Foreign currency translation and other Goodwill, Foreign Currency Translation Gain (Loss) Basic (Loss) Earnings Per
Share Earnings Per Share, Basic [Abstract] 2020 Stock Repurchase Program Two Thousand Twenty Stock Repurchase Program [Member] Two Thousand Twenty Stock Repurchase Program
Ordinary shares included in purchase price (in shares) Noncash or Part Noncash Acquisition, Noncash Financial or Equity Instrument Consideration, Shares Issued Property, Equipment and
Improvements, net Property, Plant and Equipment, Net Consolidated liabilities Liabilities Noncontrolling interests Redeemable noncontrolling interest, beginning balance Redeemable
noncontrolling interest, ending balance Equity, Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest Current maturities of long-term debt Short-Term Debt Miscellaneous Other Assets, Miscellaneous,
Noncurrent Common stock, par value (in dollars per share) Common Stock, Par or Stated Value Per Share Forgone Recovery, Explanation of Impracticability Forgone Recovery, Explanation
of Impracticability [Text Block] Schedule Of Finite Lived Intangible Assets And Liabilities [Table] Schedule Of Finite Lived Intangible Assets And Liabilities [Table] Schedule of finite lived
intangible assets and liabilities. Revolving Credit Facility Revolving Credit Facility [Member] Expiration Date Trading Arrangement Expiration Date Reclassification out of Accumulated
Other Comprehensive Income [Table] Reclassification out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income [Table] Goodwill and Intangible Assets Disclosure [Abstract] Goodwill and
Intangible Assets Disclosure [Abstract] Operating lease liability Operating Lease, Liability, Current Total Shareholder Return Amount Total Shareholder Return Amount Common stock,



issued (in shares) Common Stock, Shares, Issued Finite-Lived Intangible Assets and Liabilites [Line Items] Finite Lived Intangible Assets And Liabilities [Line Items] Finite lived intangible
assets and liabilities. Equity Awards Adjustments, Footnote Equity Awards Adjustments, Footnote [Text Block] Credit facility, maximum borrowing capacity Line of Credit Facility, Maximum
Borrowing Capacity 2021 Term Loan Facility - USD Portion 2021 Term Loan Facility - US Portion [Member] 2021 Term Loan Facility - US Portion Income Tax (Expense) Benefit: Other
Comprehensive Income (Loss), Tax, Portion Attributable to Parent, Parenthetical Disclosure [Abstract] Foreign currency translation adjustment Unrealized Gain (Loss), Foreign Currency
Transaction, after Tax 2021 Term Loan Facility 2021 Term Loan Facility [Member] 2021 Term Loan Facility Schedule of Share Repurchases Class of Treasury Stock [Table Text Block]
Insider Trading Policies and Procedures Adopted Insider Trading Policies and Procedures Adopted [Flag] Pension and retiree medical plan liability, deferred taxes Other Comprehensive
(Income) Loss, Defined Benefit Plan, after Reclassification Adjustment and Disposals, Tax Other Comprehensive (Income) Loss, Defined Benefit Plan, after Reclassification Adjustment and
Disposals, Tax Accounts receivable from unconsolidated joint ventures accounted for under the equity method Accounts Receivable, after Allowance for Credit Loss Asia Asia [Member] Debt
Instrument [Line Items] Debt Instrument [Line Items] Named Executive Officers, Footnote Named Executive Officers, Footnote [Text Block] Europe Europe [Member] Common stock,
authorized (in shares) Common Stock, Shares Authorized Other deferred liabilities Deferred Long-Term Liability Charges Derivative assets (liabilities), at fair value Derivative Assets
(Liabilities), at Fair Value, Net Fixed Rate Date Fixed Rate Date [Member] Fixed Rate Date Repurchase and issuance of redeemable noncontrolling interests Repurchase and Issuance of
Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests Repurchase and Issuance of Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests Shares used for calculating diluted EPS attributable to common stock (in shares)
Weighted Average Number of Shares Outstanding, Diluted Restructuring costs Restructuring Costs MNPI Disclosure Timed for Compensation Value MNPI Disclosure Timed for
Compensation Value [Flag] 2025 Finite-Lived Intangible Asset, Expected Amortization, Remainder of Fiscal Year Long-term Debt, Type [Axis] Long-Term Debt, Type [Axis] 2021 Term Loan
Facility - USD Portion 2021 Term Loan Facility - USD Portion [Member] 2021 Term Loan Facility - USD Portion Total Jacobs stockholdersa€™ equity Equity, Attributable to Parent Revenues
Disposal Group, Including Discontinued Operation, Revenue Cash Flows from Investing Activities: Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities, Continuing Operations [Abstract]
Balance Sheet Location [Axis] Statement of Financial Position Location, Balance [Axis] Interest expense Interest Expense, Nonoperating Schedule of Carrying Value of Goodwill by
Reportable Segment Appearing in Accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets Schedule of Goodwill [Table Text Block] Depreciation and amortization: Depreciation, Depletion and
Amortization [Abstract] Selling, general and administrative expenses Selling, General and Administrative Expense Amounts billed, net Billed Contracts Receivable Accrued Preferred
Dividend to Preference Shareholders Temporary Equity, Dividends, Adjustment Pension Adjustments Prior Service Cost Pension Adjustments Prior Service Cost [Member] Equity method
investment retained, fair value after disposal Discontinued Operation, Equity Method Investment Retained after Disposal, Fair Value After Disposal Discontinued Operation, Equity Method
Investment Retained after Disposal, Fair Value After Disposal Document Fiscal Period Focus Document Fiscal Period Focus All Executive Categories All Executive Categories [Member]
Stock compensation plans (in shares) Incremental Common Shares Attributable to Dilutive Effect of Share-Based Payment Arrangements Balance Sheet Location [Domain] Statement of
Financial Position Location, Balance [Domain] Schedule of Restructuring and Other Activities Schedule of Restructuring Reserve by Type of Cost [Table Text Block] 2027 Finite-Lived
Intangible Asset, Expected Amortization, Year Two Changed Peer Group, Footnote Changed Peer Group, Footnote [Text Block] Redeemable Noncontrolling interests redemption value
adjustment Noncontrolling Interest, Period Increase (Decrease) ASSETS Assets [Abstract] Net other comprehensive (loss) income Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Net of Tax Document
Type Document Type Derivative Contract [Domain] Derivative Contract [Domain] Effective interest rate Debt Instrument, Interest Rate, Effective Percentage Pension Benefits Adjustments,
Footnote Pension Benefits Adjustments, Footnote [Text Block] Schedule of Total Revenues, Segment Operating Profit and Total Asset for Reporting Segment Schedule of Segment Reporting
Information, by Segment [Table Text Block] Total Shareholder Return Vs Peer Group Total Shareholder Return Vs Peer Group [Text Block] Average Price Per Share (in dollars per share)
Shares Acquired, Average Cost Per Share Change in pension plan liabilities Other Comprehensive (Income) Loss, Defined Benefit Plan, after Reclassification Adjustment, Tax Cash and Cash
Equivalents, including Restricted Cash, at the Beginning of the Period Cash and Cash Equivalents, including Restricted Cash, at the End of the Period Cash, Cash Equivalents, Restricted
Cash, and Restricted Cash Equivalents, Including Disposal Group and Discontinued Operations Preferred Redeemable Noncontrolling interests redemption value adjustment (See Note 16-
PA Consulting Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests) Temporary Equity, Accretion to Redemption Value, Adjustment Schedule of Estimated Amortization Expense of Intangible Assets
Schedule of Finite-Lived Intangible Assets, Future Amortization Expense [Table Text Block] Total Jacobs Stockholdersa€™ Equity Parent [Member] Net Earnings Attributable to Redeemable
Noncontrolling interests Net Earnings Attributable to Redeemable Noncontrolling interests Net Income (Loss) Attributable to Redeemable Noncontrolling Interest, Continuing Operations
Net Income (Loss) Attributable to Redeemable Noncontrolling Interest, Continuing Operations Stockholders' Equity Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest [Roll Forward] Equity,
Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest [Roll Forward] Maximum Maximum [Member] Amortization Amortization of intangible assets Amortization of Intangible Assets Stock issued during
period, spinoff transaction ( in shares) Stock Issued During Period, Shares, Spinoff Transaction Stock Issued During Period, Shares, Spinoff Transaction Contract liabilities Contract with
Customer, Liability Equity Valuation Assumption Difference, Footnote Equity Valuation Assumption Difference, Footnote [Text Block] Beginning balance Ending balance Total Finite-Lived
Intangible Assets, Net 2023 Stock Repurchase Program Two Thousand Twenty-Three Stock Repurchase Program [Member] Two Thousand Twenty-Three Stock Repurchase Program
Accounts payable Accounts Payable, Current 2021 Term Loan Facility - GBP Portion 2021 Term Loan Facility - GBP Portion [Member] 2021 Term Loan Facility - GBP Portion Net earnings
attributable to redeemable noncontrolling interests to Common Shareholders Net Income (Loss) Attributable to Redeemable Noncontrolling Interest Fair Value and Fair Value
Measurements Fair Value Measurement, Policy [Policy Text Block] PA Consulting Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests Business Combination Disclosure [Text Block] Current Fiscal Year
End Date Current Fiscal Year End Date Less Interest Lessee, Operating Lease, Liability, Undiscounted Excess Amount Total lease expense Lease, Cost Statistical Measurement [Axis]
Statistical Measurement [Axis] Effect of dilutive securities: Weighted Average Number of Shares Outstanding, Diluted, Adjustment [Abstract] PEO Name PEO Name Non-Rule 10b5-1
Arrangement Terminated Non-Rule 10b5-1 Arrangement Terminated [Flag] Earnings from Continuing Operations Before Taxes Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations before Income
Taxes, Noncontrolling Interest Non-PEO NEO Average Total Compensation Amount Non-PEO NEO Average Total Compensation Amount All Award Types Award Type [Domain] Name
Outstanding Recovery, Individual Name Disaggregation of Revenue [Line Items] Disaggregation of Revenue [Line Items] Schedule of Disposal Groups, Including Discontinued Operations
Disposal Groups, Including Discontinued Operations [Table Text Block] Variable lease expense Variable Lease, Cost Compensation Actually Paid vs. Company Selected Measure
Compensation Actually Paid vs. Company Selected Measure [Text Block] Disposal Group, Including Discontinued Operation, Income Statement Disclosures [Abstract] Disposal Group,
Including Discontinued Operation, Income Statement Disclosures [Abstract] Distribution of SpinCo Business Stockholders' Equity Note, Spinoff Transaction Liabilities relating to defined
benefit pension and retirement plans Liability, Defined Benefit Plan, Noncurrent Deferred income tax assets Deferred Income Tax Assets, Net Non-PEO NEO Non-PEO NEO [Member]
Operating profit, excluding intangible amortization and other corporate transaction related costs Operating Income (Loss), Excluding Intangibles Amortization and Other Corporate
Transaction Related Costs Operating Income (Loss), Excluding Intangibles Amortization and Other Corporate Transaction Related Costs O 2024 Q4 A Dividends O 2024 Q4 A Dividends
[Member] O 2024 Q4 A Dividends Additional Paid-in Capital Additional Paid-in Capital [Member] Schedule of Receivables Schedule of Accounts, Notes, Loans and Financing Receivable
[Table Text Block] Award Timing Predetermined Award Timing Predetermined [Flag] Subsequent Event Type [Domain] Subsequent Event Type [Domain] Cash dividends to shareholders
Payments of Ordinary Dividends, Common Stock Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans Retirement Benefits [Text Block] Class of Stock [Line Items] Class of Stock [Line Items]
Investment, Name [Axis] Investment, Name [Axis] Redemption price percentage Debt Instrument, Redemption Price, Percentage Schedule of Certain Information Regarding Cash
Contributions Defined Benefit Plans Company Cash Contributions Table [Table Text Block] Tabular disclosure of cash contributions to company pension plans New Accounting
Pronouncements New Accounting Pronouncements, Policy [Policy Text Block] Diluted (Loss) Earnings Per Share (in dollars per share) Earnings Per Share, Diluted Finite-Lived Intangible
Assets by Major Class Finite-Lived Intangible Assets by Major Class [Axis] Name Measure Name Entity Interactive Data Current Entity Interactive Data Current Type of Restructuring
[Domain] Type of Restructuring [Domain] Schedule of Acquired Intangibles in Accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets Schedule Of Finite Lived Intangible Assets And Liabilities [Table
Text Block] Schedule Of Finite Lived Intangible Assets And Liabilities Net (Loss) Earnings Attributable to Jacobs from Discontinued Operations Net (loss) earnings attributable to Jacobs
from discontinued operations Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations, Net of Tax, Attributable to Parent Restatement does not require Recovery Restatement Does Not Require
Recovery [Text Block] Ownership [Axis] Ownership [Axis] Canada CANADA Number of operating segments Number of Operating Segments Preference share effect on basic earnings per
share (in dollars per share) Dilutive Securities, Effect on Basic Earnings Per Share, Preference Share Dilutive Securities, Effect on Basic Earnings Per Share, Preference Share Retirement
Benefits [Abstract] Preferred stock, issued (in shares) Preferred Stock, Shares Issued Disaggregation of Revenue [Table] Disaggregation of Revenue [Table] Statement of Financial Position
[Abstract] Statement of Financial Position [Abstract] Restructuring and Other Charges Restructuring and Related Activities Disclosure [Text Block] Contract assets Deposit Contracts,
Assets Receivables and contract assets, net of contract liabilities Increase (Decrease) in Receivables Stock based compensation Share-Based Payment Arrangement, Noncash Expense Net
(Loss) Earnings of the Group Net (Loss) Earnings of the Group Net (loss) earnings attributable to the Group Net Income (Loss), Including Portion Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest
Change in Net Pension Obligation Accumulated Defined Benefit Plans Adjustment Attributable to Parent [Member] Disposals of property and equipment and other assets Proceeds from Sale
of Property, Plant, and Equipment Income Tax (Expense) Benefit from Continuing Operations Income Tax Expense (Benefit) Interest cost Defined Benefit Plan, Interest Cost Other Income
(Expense): Nonoperating Income (Expense) [Abstract] Interest rate Debt Instrument, Interest Rate, Stated Percentage Derivative notional amount Derivative, Notional Amount Corporate
Segment Reporting, Reconciling Item, Corporate Nonsegment [Member] Component: Defined Benefit Plan, Net Periodic Benefit Cost (Credit) [Abstract] Other Restructuring and Related
Cost, Realized Gain (Loss) Restructuring and Related Cost, Realized Gain (Loss) Outside Services Outside Services Outside Services [Member] Outside services. Total other expense, net
Nonoperating Income (Expense) Statement of Comprehensive Income [Abstract] Statement of Comprehensive Income [Abstract] Number of instruments held Derivative, Number of
Instruments Held Effective income tax rate Effective Income Tax Rate Reconciliation, Percent Net cash used for investing activities Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities
Operating Profit Total Segment Operating Profit Operating Income (Loss) AOCI Including Portion Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest, Net of Tax [Roll Forward] AOCI Including Portion
Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest, Net of Tax [Roll Forward] PA Consulting Group Limited PA Consulting Group Limited [Member] PA Consulting Group Limited Variable Rate
[Domain] Variable Rate [Domain] Business Acquisition [Line Items] Business Acquisition [Line Items] Current maturities of long-term debt Long-Term Debt Including Overdrafts, Current
Maturities Long-Term Debt Including Overdrafts, Current Maturities Cumulative amounts incurred to date Restructuring and Related Cost, Cost Incurred to Date Net (loss) earnings from
continuing operations allocated to common stock for EPS calculation Undistributed Earnings (Loss) from Continuing Operations Available to Common Shareholders, Basic Total liabilities
and equity Liabilities and Equity Rule 10b5-1 Arrangement Terminated Rule 10b5-1 Arrangement Terminated [Flag] All Adjustments to Compensation All Adjustments to Compensation
[Member] Prepaid expenses and other current assets Increase (Decrease) in Prepaid Expense and Other Assets Short-term Debt, Type [Domain] Short-Term Debt, Type [Domain] Shares
issued during period, spinoff, conversion ratio (in shares) Shares Issued During Period, Spinoff, Conversion Ratio Shares Issued During Period, Spinoff, Conversion Ratio Net (loss) earnings
from discontinued operations allocated to common stock for EPS calculation Undistributed Earnings (Loss) from Discontinued Operations Available to Common Shareholders, Basic
Thereafter Finite-Lived Intangible Asset, Expected Amortization, after Year Four Finite-Lived Intangible Asset, Expected Amortization, after Year Four Restructuring and other charges Net
Charges (Credits) Restructuring charges Restructuring Charges SpinCo Business SpinCo Business [Member] SpinCo Business Noncontrolling Interest [Table] Noncontrolling Interest
[Table] Reclassification Adjustment out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income [Line Items] Reclassification Adjustment out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income [Line
Items] Commitments and Contingencies Disclosure [Abstract] Commitments and Contingencies Disclosure [Abstract] Net (Loss) Earnings of the Group from Discontinued Operations, net of
tax Net (Loss) Earnings of the Group from Discontinued Operations Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations, Net of Tax, Including Portion Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest
Interest income Investment Income, Interest Finite-Lived Intangible Assets, Major Class Name Finite-Lived Intangible Assets, Major Class Name [Domain] Right-of-use assets obtained in
exchange for new operating lease liabilities Right-of-Use Asset Obtained in Exchange for Operating Lease Liability Underlying Security Market Price Change Underlying Security Market
Price Change, Percent Expected return on plan assets Defined Benefit Plan, Expected Return (Loss) on Plan Assets Individual: Individual [Axis] Accumulated OtherA Comprehensive Income
(Loss) Total AOCI Attributable to Parent [Member] Revenue, remaining performance obligation, expected timing of satisfaction, period Revenue, Remaining Performance Obligation,
Expected Timing of Satisfaction, Period Gain/(Loss) on Cash Flow Hedges Accumulated Gain (Loss), Net, Cash Flow Hedge, Parent [Member] Long-term Debt, Type [Domain] Long-Term
Debt, Type [Domain] Dividends [Domain] Dividends [Domain] Entity Address, State or Province Entity Address, State or Province Redeemable Noncontrolling interests redemption value
adjustment Noncontrolling Interest, Change in Redemption Value Statement [Line Items] Statement [Line Items] Erroneous Compensation Analysis Erroneous Compensation Analysis [Text
Block] Current Assets Assets, Current [Member] Assets, Current Investment in equity securities Disposal Group, Including Discontinued Operation, Assets, Current U.S tax on return to
provision Effective Income Tax Rate Reconciliation, Retained Interest Disallowing Tax Benefit Effective Income Tax Rate Reconciliation, Retained Interest Disallowing Tax Benefit
Compensation Actually Paid vs. Total Shareholder Return Compensation Actually Paid vs. Total Shareholder Return [Text Block] Sublease income Sublease Income Consideration
transferred Business Combination, Consideration Transferred LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS&€™ EQUITY Liabilities and Equity [Abstract] Term of derivative contract Derivative,
Term of Contract Other Noncurrent Assets: Other Assets, Noncurrent [Abstract] Capital stock: Capital Stock [Abstract] Capital Stock [Abstract] Schedule of Pension Plans' Net Benefit
Obligation Schedule of Net Benefit Costs [Table Text Block] Derivative fixed interest rate Derivative, Fixed Interest Rate Lease Abandonments and Impairments Lease Abandonment
[Member] Lease abandonment. Minimum Minimum [Member] Restatement Determination Date Restatement Determination Date Adoption Date Trading Arrangement Adoption Date Pay vs
Performance Disclosure Pay vs Performance Disclosure [Table] Operating lease right-of-use assets Operating Lease, Right-of-Use Asset Erroneously Awarded Compensation Recovery
Erroneously Awarded Compensation Recovery [Table] Transition services agreement, expenses incurred Discontinued Operation, Transition Services Agreement, Expenses Discontinued
Operation, Transition Services Agreement, Expenses Foreign currency translation adjustments, deferred taxes Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Foreign Currency Translation
Adjustment, Tax Variable Interest Entity [Line Items] Variable Interest Entity [Line Items] Short-term Debt, Type [Axis] Short-Term Debt, Type [Axis] Segments Segments [Axis] Change in
Fair Value as of Vesting Date of Prior Year Equity Awards Vested in Covered Year Change in Fair Value as of Vesting Date of Prior Year Equity Awards Vested in Covered Year [Member]
Derivative Instrument [Axis] Derivative Instrument [Axis] Exercise Price Award Exercise Price Selling, general and administrative expense Disposal Group, Including Discontinued
Operation, General and Administrative Expense Earnings Per Share and Certain Related Information Earnings Per Share [Text Block] Arrangement Duration Trading Arrangement Duration
Subsequent Event Subsequent Event [Member] Leases Lessee, Finance Leases [Text Block] Goodwill and Intangibles Goodwill and Intangible Assets Disclosure [Text Block] Change in
pension plan liabilities Other Comprehensive (Income) Loss, Defined Benefit Plan, after Reclassification Adjustment, before Tax Basic Net (Loss) Earnings from Continuing Operations Per
Share (in dollars per share) Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations, Per Basic Share Schedule of Variable Interest Entities [Table] Variable Interest Entity [Table] Peer Group Issuers,
Footnote Peer Group Issuers, Footnote [Text Block] Segments Segments [Domain] Income Tax (Expense) Benefit: Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Tax Material Terms of Trading
Arrangement Material Terms of Trading Arrangement [Text Block] Equity method investment retained after disposal, investment disposal period Discontinued Operation, Equity Method



Investment Retained after Disposal, Investment Disposal Period Discontinued Operation, Equity Method Investment Retained after Disposal, Investment Disposal Period 2029 Finite-Lived
Intangible Asset, Expected Amortization, Year Four All Individuals All Individuals [Member] Diluted Net (Loss) Earnings from Discontinued Operations Per Share (in dollars per share)
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations and Disposal of Discontinued Operations, Net of Tax, Per Diluted Share PEO PEO [Member] Variable Rate [Axis] Variable Rate [Axis] Income
Tax Disclosure [Abstract] Income Tax Disclosure [Abstract] Name Trading Arrangement, Individual Name Miscellaneous expense Other Nonoperating Income (Expense) Statement of
Stockholders' Equity [Abstract] Statement of Stockholders' Equity [Abstract] Intangibles, net Intangible Assets, Net (Excluding Goodwill) Disposal Group Name [Axis] Disposal Group Name
[Axis] Equity in earnings of operating ventures, net of return on capital distributions Income from equity method investments Income (Loss) from Equity Method Investments Line of credit
facility, unused capacity, commitment fee percentage Line of Credit Facility, Unused Capacity, Commitment Fee Percentage Income Statement, Balance Sheet and Additional Disclosures by
Disposal Groups, Including Discontinued Operations [Line Items] Income Statement, Balance Sheet and Additional Disclosures by Disposal Groups, Including Discontinued Operations [Line
Items] Business Combination, Asset Acquisition, and Joint Venture Formation [Abstract] Awards Close in Time to MNPI Disclosures, Table Awards Close in Time to MNPI Disclosures [Table
Text Block] Disposal Groups, Including Discontinued Operations [Table] Disposal Groups, Including Discontinued Operations [Table] Prior Year End Fair Value of Equity Awards Granted in
Any Prior Year that Fail to Meet Applicable Vesting Conditions During Covered Year Prior Year End Fair Value of Equity Awards Granted in Any Prior Year that Fail to Meet Applicable
Vesting Conditions During Covered Year [Member] Total other noncurrent liabilities Liabilities, Noncurrent Aggregate Erroneous Compensation Amount Aggregate Erroneous
Compensation Amount Restructuring Cost and Reserve [Line Items] Restructuring Cost and Reserve [Line Items] Segment Operating Profit: Segment Reporting Information, Operating
Income (Loss) [Abstract] Middle East and Africa Middle East and Africa [Member] Middle East and Africa [Member] Gross profit Disposal Group, Including Discontinued Operation, Gross
Profit (Loss) Local Phone Number Local Phone Number Other, net Increase (Decrease) In Noncurrent Assets And Other Net Increase (Decrease) In Noncurrent Assets And Other Net
Aggregate Erroneous Compensation Not Yet Determined Aggregate Erroneous Compensation Not Yet Determined [Text Block] Deferred income tax liabilities Deferred Income Tax
Liabilities, Net Other Other Restructuring [Member] Cumulative translation adjustment and other Noncontrolling Interest, Increase from Cumulative Translation Adjustment and Other
Noncontrolling Interest, Increase from Cumulative Translation Adjustment and Other Covenant, leverage ratio, temporary maximum Debt Instrument, Covenant, Leverage Ratio, Temporary
Maximum Debt Instrument, Covenant, Leverage Ratio, Temporary Maximum Miscellaneous other assets Increase (Decrease) in Other Operating Assets Changes in assets and liabilities:
Increase (Decrease) in Operating Capital [Abstract] Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR) Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR) [Member] Net (loss) earnings allocated to common
stock for EPS calculation Undistributed Earnings (Loss) Available to Common Shareholders, Basic PEO Total Compensation Amount PEO Total Compensation Amount Pension plan liability,
net of deferred taxes Other Comprehensive (Income) Loss, Defined Benefit Plan, after Reclassification Adjustment, after Tax Income Statement Location [Axis] Statement of Income
Location, Balance [Axis] Share Repurchase Program [Domain] Share Repurchase Program [Domain] Professional Services and Employee Seperation Professional Services and Employee
Separation [Member] Professional Services and Employee Separation Commitments and Contingencies and Derivative Financial Instruments Commitments and Contingencies Disclosure
[Text Block] Debt Disclosure [Abstract] Debt Disclosure [Abstract] Common Stock Common Stock [Member] Measure: Measure [Axis] Deferred income taxes Disposal Group, Including
Discontinued Operations, Deferred Income Taxes Disposal Group, Including Discontinued Operations, Deferred Income Taxes Preferred stock, authorized (in shares) Preferred Stock, Shares
Authorized Forgone Recovery due to Expense of Enforcement, Amount Forgone Recovery due to Expense of Enforcement, Amount Schedule of Business Acquisitions, by Acquisition [Table]
Schedule of Business Acquisitions, by Acquisition [Table] Line of Credit Line of Credit [Member] Entity Emerging Growth Company Entity Emerging Growth Company Segment Reporting
[Abstract] Segment Reporting [Abstract] Entity Central Index Key Entity Central Index Key Equity Method Investments and Joint Ventures [Abstract] Equity Method Investments and Joint
Ventures [Abstract] Direct cost of contracts Disposal Group, Including Discontinued Operation, Costs of Goods Sold Non-GAAP Measure Description Non-GAAP Measure Description [Text
Block] Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment Accumulated Foreign Currency Adjustment Attributable to Parent [Member] Schedule of Cumulative Amounts Incurred for Restructuring
and Other Activities Costs Schedule Of Cumulative Amounts Incurred For Restructuring And Other Activities Costs Table [Table Text Block] Schedule of cumulative amounts incurred for
restructuring and other activities costs. PA Consulting Employees PA Consulting Employees [Member] PA Consulting Employees Discontinued Operations and Disposal Groups [Abstract]
Discontinued Operations and Disposal Groups [Abstract] Non-PEO NEO Average Compensation Actually Paid Amount Non-PEO NEO Average Compensation Actually Paid Amount Award
Timing, How MNPI Considered Award Timing, How MNPI Considered [Text Block] Equity Component [Domain] Equity Component [Domain] Preferred stock, par value (in dollars per share)
Preferred Stock, Par or Stated Value Per Share Total Other (Expense) Income, net Other Nonoperating Income Expense Excluding Disposal Group Not Discontinued Operation Gain Loss On
Disposal Other non operating income expense excluding disposal group not discontinued operation gain loss on disposal. Less: Current Portion Long-Term Debt, Current Maturities Segment
Information Segment Reporting Disclosure [Text Block] Interest rate, increase (decrease) over period Debt Instrument, Interest Rate, Increase (Decrease) Additional 402(v) Disclosure
Additional 402(v) Disclosure [Text Block] Reclassifications from accumulated other comprehensive loss Reclassification from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income, Current Period,
Net of Tax New Accounting Pronouncements Accounting Standards Update and Change in Accounting Principle [Text Block] Stock based compensation APIC, Share-Based Payment
Arrangement, Increase for Cost Recognition Entity Shell Company Entity Shell Company Entity Incorporation, State or Country Code Entity Incorporation, State or Country Code CH2M
Hill, KeyM, John Wood Group Acquisitions and ECR Sale CH2M Hill, KeyM, John Wood Group Acquisitions and ECR Sale [Member] CH2M Hill, KeyM, John Wood Group Acquisitions and
ECR Sale Schedule of Dividends Declared Dividends Declared [Table Text Block] Title Trading Arrangement, Individual Title Consolidated Entities [Axis] Consolidated Entities [Axis]
Statement [Table] Statement [Table] Worley Stock Worley Stock [Member] Worley Stock [Member] Consolidation Items Consolidation Items [Domain] City Area Code City Area Code Income
Tax Benefit (Expense) Discontinued Operation, Tax Effect of Discontinued Operation Current Liabilities: Liabilities, Current [Abstract] (Loss) Earnings Before Taxes from Discontinued
Operations Discontinued Operation, Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operation, before Income Tax Revenues from External Customers: Segment Reporting Information, Revenue for
Reportable Segment [Abstract] Finite-lived Intangible Assets [Roll Forward] Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Roll Forward] India INDIA Disposal Group Classification [Domain] Disposal
Group Classification [Domain] Insider Trading Policies and Procedures Not Adopted Insider Trading Policies and Procedures Not Adopted [Text Block] Foreign currency translation
adjustments, net of deferred taxes Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Foreign Currency Transaction and Translation Adjustment, Net of Tax Other Expense Other Expense [Member]
Total current assets Assets, Current Additions to property and equipment Disposal Group, Including Discontinued Operation, Property and Equipment Additions Disposal Group, Including
Discontinued Operation, Property and Equipment Additions Statement of Cash Flows [Abstract] Statement of Cash Flows [Abstract] Senior Notes Senior Notes [Member] Surety Bond
Surety Bond [Member] Accrued liabilities Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Liabilities London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) 1 [Member] London
Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) 1 O 2024 Q4 B Dividends O 2024 Q4 B Dividends [Member] O 2024 Q4 B Dividends Dividends Payable [Table] Dividends Payable [Table] Common stock
repurchases Payments for Repurchase of Common Stock Amortization of previously unrecognized items Defined Benefit Plan, Amortization of Gain (Loss) and Prior Service Cost (Credit)
Defined Benefit Plan, Amortization of Gain (Loss) and Prior Service Cost (Credit) Schedule of Long-term Debt Instruments [Table] Schedule of Long-Term Debt Instruments [Table] Long-
term debt Long-Term Debt, Excluding Current Maturities Schedule of Segment Reporting Information, by Segment [Table] Schedule of Segment Reporting Information, by Segment [Table]
Interest rate and cross currency swap gains to be reclassified during the next 12 months Interest Rate Cash Flow Hedge Gain (Loss) to be Reclassified During Next 12 Months, Net
Terminations Terminations [Member] Terminations Other income, net Disposal Group, Including Discontinued Operation, Other Income Restructuring Reserve [Roll Forward] Restructuring
Reserve [Roll Forward] Subsequent Event Type [Axis] Subsequent Event Type [Axis] Remaining performance obligation, percentage Revenue, Remaining Performance Obligation,
Percentage Income Taxes Income Tax Disclosure [Text Block] 2029 Lessee, Operating Lease, Liability, to be Paid, Year Four Net Earnings Per Share: Earnings Per Share [Abstract] Equity
[Abstract] Equity [Abstract] Net Earnings Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests from Continuing Operations Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations, Net of Tax, Attributable to
Noncontrolling Interest Retained earnings Retained Earnings (Accumulated Deficit) Customer Relationships, Contracts and Backlog Contracts And Backlog Intangible [Member] Contracts
And Backlog Intangible TotalA Shares Repurchased and Retired (in shares) Stock Repurchased and Retired During Period, Shares PA Consulting PA Consulting [Member] PA Consulting
Organization, Consolidation and Presentation of Financial Statements [Abstract] Aggregate Available Trading Arrangement, Securities Aggregate Available Amount Denominator for Basic
and Diluted EPS: Denominator For Basic And Diluted Earnings Per Share [Abstract] Denominator for basic and diluted earnings per share. Equity Awards Adjustments Equity Awards
Adjustments [Member] Weighted average discount rate - operating leases Operating Lease, Weighted Average Discount Rate, Percent Operating lease liabilities Operating Lease, Liability
Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities Underlying Securities Award Underlying Securities Amount Derivative, gain on
derivative Derivative, Gain on Derivative Credit Facility [Axis] Credit Facility [Axis] Amendment Flag Amendment Flag Loss Contingency Nature [Axis] Loss Contingency Nature [Axis] Long-
term debt, fair value Long-Term Debt, Fair Value Entity Registrant Name Entity Registrant Name Consideration paid in cash Payments to Acquire Businesses, Gross (Gain) loss on disposals
of assets, net Gain (Loss) on Disposition of Property Plant Equipment Adjustment to Non-PEO NEO Compensation Footnote Adjustment to Non-PEO NEO Compensation Footnote [Text
Block] Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs) Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs) [Member] Revenue, Remaining Performance Obligation, Expected Timing of Satisfaction [Table] Revenue,
Remaining Performance Obligation, Expected Timing of Satisfaction [Table] Gross profit Gross Profit Fair Value as of Grant Date Award Grant Date Fair Value Revolving Credit Facility
Revolving Credit Facility One Billion Six Hundred Million [Member] Revolving credit facility, one billion six hundred million. Other comprehensive Income (loss) Other Comprehensive
Income (Loss), before Reclassifications, Net of Tax Less: Deferred Financing Fees Debt Issuance Costs, Net Borrowings Debt Disclosure [Text Block] Stockholdersa€™ Equity: Equity,
Including Portion Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest [Abstract] Geographical [Domain] Geographical [Domain] Recovery of Erroneously Awarded Compensation Disclosure [Line Items]
Aggregate principal amount Debt Instrument, Face Amount Schedule of Disaggregation of Revenue Disaggregation of Revenue [Table Text Block] Issuances of equity securities including
shares withheld for taxes Stock Issued During Period, Value, New Issues Unbilled receivables and other Unbilled Contracts Receivable Entity Address, Postal Zip Code Entity Address,
Postal Zip Code Interest Rate Swap Interest Rate Swap [Member] Schedule of Restructuring and Related Costs [Table] Restructuring Cost [Table] Net dividends associated with
noncontrolling interests Payments of Ordinary Dividends, Noncontrolling Interest Restatement Determination Date: Restatement Determination Date [Axis] Title of 12(b) Security Title of
12(b) Security Equity method investment retained, shares owned after disposal (in shares) Discontinued Operation, Equity Method Investment Retained after Disposal, Shares Owned after
Disposal Discontinued Operation, Equity Method Investment Retained after Disposal, Shares Owned after Disposal Common stock, $1 par value, authorized - 240,000,000 shares; issued and
outstanding - 122,912,389 shares and 124,253,511 shares as of DecemberA 27, 2024 and SeptemberA 27, 2024, respectively Common Stock, Value, Issued Interest rate payable period
Interest Rate Payable Period Interest Rate Payable Period Basic Net (Loss) Earnings from Discontinued Operations Per Share (in dollars per share) Income (Loss) from Discontinued
Operations and Disposal of Discontinued Operations, Net of Tax, Per Basic Share Cash and cash equivalents Cash and Cash Equivalents, at Carrying Value Accounts, Notes, Loans and
Financing Receivable, Gross, Allowance, and Net [Abstract] Accounts, Notes, Loans and Financing Receivable, Gross, Allowance, and Net [Abstract] Amentum Holdings, Inc. Amentum
Holdings, Inc. [Member] Amentum Holdings, Inc. Year-over-Year Change in Fair Value of Equity Awards Granted in Prior Years That are Outstanding and Unvested Year-over-Year Change
in Fair Value of Equity Awards Granted in Prior Years That are Outstanding and Unvested [Member] Sterling Overnight Interbank Average Rate (SONIA) Sterling Overnight Interbank
Average Rate (SONIA) [Member] Sterling Overnight Interbank Average Rate (SONIA) Year-end Fair Value of Equity Awards Granted in Covered Year that are Outstanding and Unvested
Year-end Fair Value of Equity Awards Granted in Covered Year that are Outstanding and Unvested [Member] Preferred stock, $1 par value, authorized - 1,000,000 shares; issued and
outstanding - none Preferred Stock, Value, Issued U.S state income tax expense Effective Income Tax Rate Reconciliation, State and Local Income Taxes, Amount VIE, not primary
beneficiary Variable Interest Entity, Not Primary Beneficiary [Member] Step Up Date Axis [Axis] Step Up Date Axis [Axis] Step Up Date Axis Property, equipment and improvements
Depreciation, Depletion and Amortization, Nonproduction Committed and Uncommitted Letter-of-Credit Facilities Committed And Uncommitted Letter Of Credit Facility [Member]
Committed and Uncommitted Letter of Credit Facility [Member] Basic (Loss) Earnings Per Share (in dollars per share) Earnings Per Share, Basic Equity Method Investment,
Nonconsolidated Investee [Axis] Equity Method Investment, Nonconsolidated Investee [Axis] Accounts payable Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable Proceeds from issuances of common
stock Proceeds from Issuance of Common Stock Adjustment To PEO Compensation, Footnote Adjustment To PEO Compensation, Footnote [Text Block] Award Timing MNPI Disclosure
Award Timing MNPI Disclosure [Text Block] Ownership [Domain] Ownership [Domain] Aggregate Pension Adjustments Service Cost Aggregate Pension Adjustments Service Cost [Member]
Schedule of Goodwill [Table] Goodwill [Table] Dividends Payable [Line Items] Dividends Payable [Line Items] Compensation Actually Paid vs. Other Measure Compensation Actually Paid vs.
Other Measure [Text Block] Schedule of Stock by Class [Table] Stock, Class of Stock [Table] Total current liabilities Liabilities, Current Vesting Date Fair Value of Equity Awards Granted
and Vested in Covered Year Vesting Date Fair Value of Equity Awards Granted and Vested in Covered Year [Member] Redeemable Noncontrolling interests Temporary Equity, Carrying
Amount, Attributable to Parent Share Repurchase Program [Axis] Share Repurchase Program [Axis] Assets Assets Assets Second Step Up Date Second Step Up Date [Member] Second Step
Up Date Loss on investment in equity securities Debt and Equity Securities, Gain (Loss) Property, equipment and improvements Depreciation and Amortization, Property Equipment, and
Improvements, Discontinued Operations Depreciation and Amortization, Property Equipment, and Improvements, Discontinued Operations 2026 Finite-Lived Intangible Asset, Expected
Amortization, Year One Direct cost of contracts Cost of Goods and Services Sold Equity Method Investment, Nonconsolidated Investee [Domain] Equity Method Investment, Nonconsolidated
Investee [Domain] Long-term line of credit Long-Term Line of Credit Additions to property and equipment Payments to Acquire Property, Plant, and Equipment Forgone Recovery due to
Violation of Home Country Law, Amount Forgone Recovery due to Violation of Home Country Law, Amount Revenue, Remaining Performance Obligation, Expected Timing of Satisfaction
[Line Items] Revenue, Remaining Performance Obligation, Expected Timing of Satisfaction [Line Items] Commitments and Contingencies Commitments and Contingencies Joint Ventures,
VIEs and Other Investments Equity Method Investments and Joint Ventures Disclosure [Text Block] Worley WorleyParsons Limited, ECR Business [Member] WorleyParsons Limited, ECR
Business [Member] Termination Date Trading Arrangement Termination Date Cash paid for amounts included in the measurements of lease liabilities Operating Lease, Lease Income, Lease
Payments Repayments of short-term borrowings Repayments of Short-Term Debt 2027 Lessee, Operating Lease, Liability, to be Paid, Year Two Entity Address, City or Town Entity Address,
City or Town Proceeds from long-term borrowings Proceeds from Issuance of Long-Term Debt Equity method investment retained after disposal, mark-to market losses Discontinued
Operation, Equity Method Investment Retained after Disposal, Change in Fair Value, Realized Gain (Loss) Discontinued Operation, Equity Method Investment Retained after Disposal,
Change in Fair Value, Realized Gain (Loss) Debt Instrument [Axis] Debt Instrument [Axis] Allocated share-based compensation expense Share-Based Payment Arrangement, Expense
Dividends [Axis] Dividends [Axis] Discontinued Operations Disposal Groups, Including Discontinued Operations, Disclosure [Text Block] Net (Loss) Earnings Attributable to Jacobs Net
Income (Loss) Net Income (Loss) Attributable to Parent Trading Arrangement: Trading Arrangement [Axis] Revenues Revenues Revenue from Contract with Customer, Including Assessed
Tax Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income Comprehensive Income (Loss) Note [Text Block] Pay vs Performance Disclosure, Table Pay vs Performance [Table Text Block] Loss
Contingencies [Table] Loss Contingencies [Table] Business Acquisition [Axis] Business Acquisition [Axis] Available borrowing capacity Line of Credit Facility, Current Borrowing Capacity
Equity Awards Adjustments, Excluding Value Reported in Compensation Table Equity Awards Adjustments, Excluding Value Reported in the Compensation Table [Member] Dividends or



Other Earnings Paid on Equity Awards not Otherwise Reflected in Total Compensation for Covered Year Dividends or Other Earnings Paid on Equity Awards not Otherwise Reflected in Total
Compensation for Covered Year [Member] Infrastructure & Advanced Facilities People And Places Solutions [Member] People And Places Solutions Entity File Number Entity File Number
Change in cash flow hedges Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Cash Flow Hedge, Gain (Loss), after Reclassification and Tax Consolidated Entities [Domain] Consolidated Entities
[Domain] Numerator for Basic and Diluted EPS: Numerator For Basic And Diluted Earnings Per Share [Abstract] Numerator for basic and diluted earnings per share. Revenue Accounting
for Contracts Revenue from Contract with Customer [Text Block] Document Fiscal Year Focus Document Fiscal Year Focus Noncontrolling Interests Noncontrolling Interest [Member]
Income Statement [Abstract] Income Statement [Abstract] Entity Address, Address Line One Entity Address, Address Line One Entity Address, Address Line Two Entity Address, Address
Line Two Debt Instrument, Name [Domain] Debt Instrument, Name [Domain] Effect of Exchange Rate Changes Effect of Exchange Rate on Cash, Cash Equivalents, Restricted Cash, and
Restricted Cash Equivalents, Continuing Operations Dividends Dividends, Common Stock Name Forgone Recovery, Individual Name Thereafter Lessee, Operating Lease, Liability, to be
Paid, after Year Four Lessee, Operating Lease, Liability, to be Paid, after Year Four 2025 Lessee, Operating Lease, Liability, to be Paid, Remainder of Fiscal Year Weighted average
remaining lease term - operating leases Operating Lease, Weighted Average Remaining Lease Term Document Period End Date Document Period End Date Loss Contingency, Nature
[Domain] Loss Contingency, Nature [Domain] Deferred income taxes Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Income Taxes Award Timing MNPI Considered Award Timing MNPI Considered [Flag]
Base Rate Base Rate [Member] Remaining lease payments under operating leases Lessee, Operating Lease, Liability, to be Paid Insider Trading Arrangements [Line Items] Outstanding
Aggregate Erroneous Compensation Amount Outstanding Aggregate Erroneous Compensation Amount Other deferred liabilities Increase (Decrease) in Other Deferred Liability 2028
Lessee, Operating Lease, Liability, to be Paid, Year Three PEO Actually Paid Compensation Amount PEO Actually Paid Compensation Amount Diluted Net (Loss) Earnings from Continuing
Operations Per Share (in dollars per share) Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations, Per Diluted Share Revenue recognized included in contract liability Contract with Customer,
Liability, Revenue Recognized Adjustment to Compensation: Adjustment to Compensation [Axis] Net Earnings Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests Net Income (Loss) Attributable to
Noncontrolling Interest Document Transition Report Document Transition Report Document Quarterly Report Document Quarterly Report Schedule of Redeemable Noncontrolling Interest
Redeemable Noncontrolling Interest [Table Text Block] Accumulated other comprehensive loss Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Net of Tax Entity Current Reporting
Status Entity Current Reporting Status Retained Earnings Retained Earnings [Member] Current Liabilities Liabilities, Current [Member] Liabilities, Current Ownership interest of
employees Subsidiary, Ownership Percentage, Noncontrolling Owner Pension Adjustments Service Cost Pension Adjustments Service Cost [Member] Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility
February 6, 2023 Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility February 6, 2023 [Member] Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility February 6, 2023 Shares used for calculating basic EPS attributable
to common stock (in shares) Weighted Average Number of Shares Outstanding, Basic Stock Price or TSR Estimation Method Stock Price or TSR Estimation Method [Text Block] Cash
contributions projected for the remainder of fiscal 2025 Expected Pension Contributions Expected Pension Contributions Total Group stockholdersa€™ equity Beginning balance Ending
balance Equity, Including Portion Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest Increase (Decrease) in Stockholders' Equity [Roll Forward] Increase (Decrease) in Stockholders' Equity [Roll
Forward] Foreign currency translation adjustment Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Foreign Currency Transaction and Translation Adjustment, before Tax Executive Category:
Executive Category [Axis] Name Awards Close in Time to MNPI Disclosures, Individual Name Restructuring, Transaction and Other Charges Restructuring And Other Charges Restructuring
and other charges. Foreign currency translation and other Finite-Lived Intangible Assets, Foreign Currency Translation Gain (Loss) Treasury Lock Treasury Lock [Member] Entity Filer
Category Entity Filer Category Beginning balance Ending balance Restructuring Reserve Remaining performance obligation, amounts Revenue, Remaining Performance Obligation, Amount
Use of Estimates and Assumptions Use Of Estimates And Assumptions Disclosure [Text Block] Use of estimates and assumptions disclosure. Income Statement Location [Domain] Statement
of Income Location, Balance [Domain] Loss Contingencies [Line Items] Loss Contingencies [Line Items] Letter of Credit Letter of Credit [Member] Change in cash flow hedges, net of
deferred taxes Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Cash Flow Hedge, Gain (Loss), after Reclassification and Tax, Parent Company Selected Measure Name Company Selected Measure
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